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Nordea Bank Finland Plc is part of the Nordea Group
Nordea’s vision is to be a Great European bank,
acknowledged for its people, creating superior edior
customers and shareholders. We are making it ples&b
our customers to reach their goals by providingidev
range of products, services and solutions withinkiag,
asset management and insurance. Nordea has arolind 1
million customers, approximately 750 branch office
locations and is among the ten largest universalksan
Europe in terms of total market capitalisation. Therdea
share is listed on the Nasdaq Stockholm, Nasdasjifte!

and Nasdaq Copenhagen exchanges.
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Nordea Bank Finland Group

Five-year overview of the Directors’ Report

Income statement *

EURmM 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Net interest income 1,189 1,183 1,258 1,355 1,182
Net fee and commission income 75 -113 295 309 289
Net result from items at fair value 970 1,114 1,217 937 979
Profit from companies accounted for under the gquit
method 3 8 18 9 6
Other operating income 41 32 36 34 43
Total operating income 2,278 2,224 2,824 2,644 2,499
General administrative expenses:

Staff costs -559 -553 -574 -592 -553

Other expenses -433 -466 -447 -457 -479
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment chardes o
tangible and intangible assets -92 -40 -50 -43 -41
Total operating expenses -1,084 -1,059 -1,071 -1,092 -1,073
Profit before loan losses 1,194 1,165 1,753 1,552 1,426
Net loan losses -60 -53 -144 -70 -272
Impairment of securities held as financial non-entr
assets - 1 - - 2
Operating profit 1,134 1,113 1,609 1,482 1,156
Income tax expense -232 -285 -428 -381 -302
Net profit for the year 902 828 1,181 1,101 854
Balance sheet *
EURmM 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Loans to central banks and credit institutions 85,3 35,767 36,827 79,350 67,751
Loans to the public 113,748 113,779 100,765 99,331 73,607
Interest-bearing securities and pledged instruments 45,701 34,246 37,896 33,764 29,241
Derivatives 105,254 70,234 117,213 170,228 97,251
Other assets 46,144 50,735 42,760 11,151 18,236
Total assets 346,198 304,761 335,461 393,824 286,086
Deposits by credit institutions 87,368 79,426 74,666 76,007 60,549
Deposits and borrowings from the public 76,879 80,909 70,212 68,260 55,459
Debt securities in issue 48,472 47,130 48,999 49,153 39,846
Derivatives 102,876 67,109 115,836 168,436 95,676
Subordinated liabilities 620 429 514 503 477
Other liabilities 20,365 20,244 16,017 19,864 22,855
Equity 9,618 9,514 9,217 11,601 11,224
Total liabilities and equity 346,198 304,761 335,461 393,824 286,086

! The comparative figures for 2012 (but not for 2010-2011) have been restated in relation to the amendment to IAS 19.

2 The comparative figures for 2012 and 2011 (but not for 2010) have been restated in relation to the amendment to IAS 19 and the presentation of forward starting bonds.
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Ratios and key figures

Group

2014 2013 2012 2012 2010
Return on equity, % 9.4 8.8 11.3 9.7 7.7
Cost/income ratio, % 48 48 38 41 43
Loan loss ratio, basis points 5 5 14 9 41
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, incl. Baselddr™ >
4 % 14.2 15.0 18.0 12.8 13.6
Tier 1 capital ratio, incl. Basel | floor?, % 15.1 15.0 18.0 12.8 13.6
Total capital ratio, incl. Basel | floor?, % 15.2 15.8 18.8 134 14.3
Common Equity Tier 1 capital, incl. Basel | flooEURM 8,454 8,430 8,246 10,310 10,242
Tier 1 capitat “5 EURm 9,004 8,430 8,246 10,310 10,242
Risk exposure amount, incl. Basel | flopEURmM 61,275 56,077 45,733 80,567 75,203
Number of employees (full-time equivalerits) 6,653 7,981 8,252 8,828 9,097
Average number of employees 7,802 8,937 9,269 10,014 10,038
Salaries and remuneration, EURm -420 -426 -434 -463 -433
Return on total assets, % 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3
Equity to total assets, % 2.8 3.1 2.7 2.9 3.9

*End of the year
2 Further information in Capital management section

3 The comparative figures for 2012 and 2011 (but not for 2010) have been restated in relation to the amendment to IAS 19 and the presentation of forward starting bonds.

“ Including result of the year

5 The 2013 ratios are reported under the Basel Il regulation framework and the 2014 ratios are reported using the Basel Ill (CRR/CRDIV) framework.
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Business definitions and exchange rates

These definitions apply to the descriptions inAmaual Report.

Cost/income ratio
Total operating expenses divided by total operating
income.

Equity to total assets
Total shareholders’ equity including minority
interests as a percentage of total assets at yelar-e

Expected losses

Normalised loss level of the individual loan
exposure over a business cycle as well as various
portfolios.

Own funds

Own funds is the sum Tier 1 and Tier 2 capitalr Tie
1 capital consists of both common equity Tier 1 and
additional Tier 1 capital.

RAROCAR, %
(Risk-adjusted return on capital at risk), Risk-
adjusted profit relative to Economic capital.

Return on equity (ROE)

Net profit for the year excluding non-controlling
interests as a percentage of average equity for the
year. Average equity including net profit for the
year and dividend until paid, non-controlling
interests excluded.

Return on total assets (ROA)

Operating profit less taxes as a percentage of
average total assets. Average total assets are
calculated as the mean of total assets at the
beginning and end of the year.

Risk-adjusted profit
Total income minus total operating expenses, minus
Expected losses and strandard tax (20% 2014). In

addition, Risk-adjusted profit excludes major non-
recurring items.

Risk exposure amount

Total assets and off-balance-sheet items valued on
the basis of the credit and market risks, as veell a

the operational risks of the Group’s undertakirigs,
accordance with regulations governing capital
adequacy, excluding carrying amount of shares
which have been deducted from the capital base and
intangible assets.

Tier 1 capital

The proportion of the capital base, which includes
consolidated shareholders’ equity excluding
proposed dividend, deferred tax assets, intangible
assets in the banking operations. Shortfall — the
negative difference between expected losses and
provisions is deducted with 100% in CET1 in 2014,
but 50% in 2013. Subsequent to the approval of the
supervisory authorities, Tier 1 capital also inesd
qualified forms of subordinated loans (Tier 1
capital contributions and hybrid capital loans).

The Common equity Tier 1 capital constitutes the
Tier 1 capital excluding hybrid capital loans.

Tier 1 capital ratio

Tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk exposure
amount. The Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio is
calculated as Common equity Tier 1 capital as a
percentage of risk exposure amount.

Total capital ratio
Capital base as a percentage of risk exposure
amount.

Exchange rates appliedend of year rates as at 31 December 2014)

EUR 1.0000 usD 1.2141
GBP 0.7789 CHF 1.2024
NOK 9.042 PLN 4.2732
Rating, Nordea Bank Finland

31 Dec 2014 Short Long
Moody's P-1 Aa3
Standard & Poor’s A-1+ AA-
Fitch F1+ AA-
DBRS R-1 (high) AA

: Negative outlook
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Nordea Bank Finland

Director’s Report

Throughout this report the terms “Nordea Bank
Finland”, “NBF” and “Bank Group” refer to Nordea
Bank Finland Plc and its subsidiaries. Nordea Bank
Finland Plc is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nordea
Bank AB (publ), the parent company in the Nordea
Group. The Nordea Group is referred to as
“Nordea”.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc is domiciled in Helsinki
and its business identity code is 1680235-8.

As part of the Nordea Group, NBF operates in the
banking business. All the operations of NBF are
integrated into the operations of the Nordea Group,
whose annual report, with activities and earnings
reported by the business areas, encompasses the
operations of NBF in their entirety.

Legal structure

Nordea aims at continuous simplification of itsdeg
structure and as regards the Nordic banks thesim i
that Nordea Bank AB (publ) will be converted into
a European company. Among other things, a
conversion is conditional on Nordea obtaining
necessary approvals from the relevant authorities.

The final regulatory responses to the financiadisri
are yet to be fully seen, and to be evaluated. &wrd
is following up and analysing the changes in the
process, which are not expected to be finalised
during 2015.

Subsidiaries and foreign branches

NBF has subsidiaries in Finland and abroad. The
most significant subsidiary is Nordea Finance
Finland Ltd, which is responsible for the Group’s
finance company operations in Finland. The Nordea
Finance Finland Group comprises one Finnish
financial institution and several real estate
companies, four associated companies as well as
three subsidiaries operating in the Baltic market:
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Nordea Finance Estonia Ltd, Nordea Finance Latvia
Ltd and Nordea Finance Lithuania Ltd.

NBF has foreign branches in New York and
Singapore. Branches in London and Frankfurt were
sold to Nordea Bank AB (publ) on 1 January 2015
and branches in the Baltic countries on 1 April
2014. NBF has no foreign representative offices.

Changes in the group structure

On 1 April 2014 Nordea Bank Finland PlIc sold its
operations in the Baltic branches and the
subsidiaries Promano Est O, Promano Lit UAB,

SIA Promano Lat, SIA Realm and 4 other Baltic

real estate companies to the parent company Nordea
Bank AB (publ). The consolidated SPEs for

acquiring commercial real estate were also included
in the transaction.

The transferred operations will continue as befiore
Nordea. The impact of the transaction on NBF is
not material. However, the income statement impact
is presented in a separate Note 49 for comparison
purposes. The impact on the balance sheet was
approximately EUR -3.1bn.

The transfer of foreign branch operations to Nordea
Bank AB (publ) was continued on 1 January 2015
when the London and Frankfurt operations were
sold. The impact of the operations on the 2014
income statement is disclosed in Note 49. The sales
profit from the transaction was EUR 35m and it was
recognised in January 2015. Impact on the balance
sheet was EUR -0.7bn.

The Polish Financial Supervision Authority
approved the sale of Nordea Bank Polska on 2
March 2014 and the transaction was completed on 1
April 2014. Nordea Bank Polska was owned by
Nordea Bank AB (publ. The sale included the
wholly-owned subsidiary of Nordea Finance

Finland Ltd, Nordea Finance Polska S.A.



Improvements in Corporate Governance during
2014

In order to strengthen corporate governance on lega
entity level, The Board of Directors of NBF Plc has
established four new Board committees: risk
committee, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Each
committee has tasks set out to it in the Act ord@re
Institutions.

The President of NBF Plc has established a
Management Group to assist and support him in
fulfilling his duties derived from his role as a
responsible for managing the day-to-day operations
of NBF. The Management Group consists of NBF’s
President, CFO, CRO, Board Secretary, Head of
Banking Finland and Head of CIB Finland.

NBF has a Chief Risk Officer (CRO). The CRO of
NBF is subordinated to the President of NBF.

Further information on corporate governance can be
found in the Corporate Governance report, which is
attached to this annual report.

The Corporate Governance report, including the
Report on the key aspects of the systems for iatern
control and risk management regarding financial
reports, has not been reviewed by the auditors.

Business development in 2014

2014 was another year of low growth and low
interest rates as these declined further to even ze
levels. The global scene was characterised by mixed
developments in economic data, geopolitical
turbulence and higher volatility in the financial
market. In the Nordic economies, the latest
macroeconomic developments have been weaker,
although the overall picture still appears reldtive
robust.

Despite the weak macroeconomic trend and the
transfer of the Baltic operations to Nordea Bank AB
(publ), total operating income increased 2%. Profit
before loan losses was 2% and operating profit 2%
higher than in the previous year. Loan losses
increased slightly and the loan loss ratio wasdsha
points. Profit before tax totalled EUR 1,134m
(2013: 1,113), and return on equity was 9.4% (8.8).

Comments on the income statement

Operating income

Total operating incomécreased to EUR 2,278m
(2,224), mainly explained by the higher net fee and
commission income and lower net result from items
at fair value.

Net interest incomancreased 1% to EUR 1,189m
(1,183). Lending volumes were largely unchanged
whereas deposit volumes decreased 5%. Average
lending margins were higher than in the previous
year while deposit margins overall were down from
one year ago. Total lending to the public, exclgdin
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reverse repurchase agreements and the transfer of
the Baltic operations, increased 3%. Deposit
volumes, excluding repurchase agreements and the
transfer of the Baltic operations, increased 5%.

Net fee and commission incoimereased to EUR

75m (-113). Fee and commission income was 5%
higher and totalled EUR 794m (759). Increases
were mainly seen in savings related commissions as
well as in lending commissions. Fee and
commission expenses decreased approximately
EUR 150m and totalled EUR 719m (872).The
decrease was mainly due to the lower guarantee fee
paid to Nordea Bank AB (publ).

Net result from items at fair valukecreased to EUR
970m (1,114) due to lower demand for fixed income
products and challenging market conditions.

Profit from companies accounted for under the
equity methodlecreased to EUR 3m (8).

Other operating incomancreased to EUR 41m
(32). EUR 8m related to the transfer of the Baltic
operations to Nordea Bank AB (publ).

Operating expenses
Total operating expensegere 2% higher than in
the previous year and totalled EUR 1,084m (1,059).

Staff costsncreased 1% to EUR 559m (553). The
sale the Baltic operations decreased staff cosils wh
the accelerated cost efficiency programme increased
expenses. The number of employees, measured by
full-time equivalents, decreased by around 1,300
during the year and amounted to 6,653 at the end of
the year.

Other expensesere down 7% and amounted to
EUR 433m (466). IT expenses were higher whereas
other operating expenses decreased as a reshé# of t
sale of the Baltic operations and the cost efficyen
programme.

The impairment of capitalised IT development
increased depreciations and impairment charges to
EUR 92m (40). The main driver behind the
impairment decision was to build new core banking
and payment platforms, but to some extent also
reassessments of the useful lives of other systems
influenced the decision.

Loan losses

Net loan losseamounted to EUR 60m (53) and the
loan loss ratio was stable at 5 basis points.
Provisions for collectively assessed loans totalled
EUR 19m and provisions for individually assessed
loans EUR 41m.

Individual loan losses amounted to 4 basis poifts o
loans to the public in 2014 compared to 6 basis
points in 2013. Collective provisions net amounted
to 2 basis points in 2014 compared to -1 basistpoin
in 2013.



Nordea Bank AB (publ) has guaranteed part of
NBF'’s corporate exposures and based on the
agreement NBF’s loan losses decreased EUR 66m
in 2014 and EUR 83m in 2013.

Taxes

Income tax expensegere EUR 232m (285). The
effective tax rate amounted to 20% (26), which is
the same as the legal tax rate.

Net profit
Net profit for the yeaamounted to EUR 902m
(828). Return on equity was 9.4% (8.8).

Comments on the balance sheet

Assets

Consolidatedotal assetamounted to EUR 346bn
at year-end, showing an increase of EUR 41bn
compared to the previous year-end.

Loans to central banks and credit institutions
decreased to EUR 35bn (36).

Loans to the publigvere stable at EUR 114bn.
Volumes of reverse repurchase agreements
decreased EUR 5bn, and the impact of the sale of
the Baltic operations was EUR -7bn. Traditional
domestic mortgage lending to household customers
increased 2%.

Corporate lending increased 2% compared to the
previous year totalling EUR 76bn (75). Excluding

repurchase agreements, the decrease was EUR 3bn.

Consumer lending to households increased slightly
to EUR 8bn.

Interest-bearing securitiesnd financial
instruments pledgeds collateralincreased to EUR
46bn (44).

Positive market values ofrivativesincreased EUR
35bn to EUR 105bn (70) due to a steep decrease in
the long-term interest rates during 2014.

Other assetincreased approximately EUR 5bn,
mainly reflecting the higher balance sheet valdes o
CSA collaterals.

Liabilities

Total liabilitiesamounted to EUR 337bn (295),
showing an increase of EUR 42bn.

Deposits by credit institutiorend central banks
increased EUR 8bn to EUR 87bn (79).

Deposits and borrowings from the pubtiecreased
EUR 4bn to EUR 77bn (81). Excluding the impact
of repurchase agreements, the decrease in deposits
was 3%.
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Debt securities in issuacreased to EUR 48bn (47).
NBF issued covered bonds in the amount of EUR
16.2bn. Other issued securities mainly comprise
short-term debt instruments with a maturity under
one year.

Negative market values derivativesincreased
EUR 36bn to EUR 103bn (67).

The change in subordinated liabilities is explained
by the buy-back of a subordinated loan with a
nominal value of GBP 300m in July 2014. The buy-
back had a permission from the Finnish FSA.
Additionally, NBF issued an Additional Tier 1 loan
of EUR 550m to its parent company Nordea Bank
AB (publ) on 30 September 2014. The full terms
and conditions of the loan are disclosed at
nordea.com/investor relations

Other liabilitieswere stable compared to the
previous year-end.

Equity

Shareholders’ equity amounted to EUR 9,514m at
the beginning of 2014. EUR 750m was paid as
dividend to Nordea Bank AB (publ). Net profit for
the year was EUR 902m. At the end of 2014 total
equity amounted to EUR 9,618m.

Appropriation of distributable funds

The parent company'’s distributable funds on 31

December 2014 were EUR 6,114m of which the

profit for the year is EUR 821m. It is proposedttha

» adividend of EUR 450m be paid

» whereafter the distributable funds will total
EUR 5,664m.

Off-balance sheet commitments

The bank’s business operations include a
considerable proportion of off-balance sheet items,
such as guarantees, documentary credits and credit
commitments. Credit commitments and unutilised
credit lines amounted to EUR 16.0bn (15.9), while
guarantees and granted but not utilised documentary
credits as well as other off-balance sheet
commitments, excluding the nominal values of
derivative contracts, totalled EUR 15.7bn (16.6).

The nominal values of derivatives increased to EUR
6,973bn (6,757).
Capital adequacy

At year-end, the Group’s total capital ratio was
15.2% (15.8) and the Tier 1 ratio 15.1% (15.0)kRis
exposure amount totalled EUR 61bn (56).



Risk, Liquidity and Capital management

Management of risk, liquidity and capital is a key
success factor in the financial services industhe
maintaining of risk awareness within the
organisation is ingrained in the business strategie
Nordea has clearly defined risk, liquidity and ¢api
management frameworks, including policies and
instructions for different risk types, capital
adequacy and the capital structure.

Management principles and control

Group Board and Board Credit Committee

The Group Board has the ultimate responsibility for
limiting and monitoring the Group’s risk exposure
as well as for setting the targets for the capital
ratios. Risk is measured and reported according to
common principles and policies approved by the
Group Board, which also decides on policies for
credit risk, counterparty credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk and business risk, Life insurancskri
operational risk management as well as the Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).
All policies are reviewed at least annually.

The Group Board approves the credit instructions in
which the powers-to-act for all credit committees i
the organisation are included. These authorisations
vary for different decision-making levels, mainiy i
terms of size of limits, and are also dependent on
the internal risk categorization of customers. The
Group Board also decides on the limits for market
and liquidity risk in the Group.

The Board Risk Committee assists the Group Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities conaggng
management and control of the risks, risk
framework as well as controls and processes
associated with the Group’s operations.

Responsibility of CEO and GEM

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has the overall
responsibility for developing and maintaining
effective risk, liquidity and capital management
principles and control of the Bank and the Group.

The CEO in Group Executive Management (GEM)
decides on the Group’s earnings volatility

measurement framework(s) and targets for these,
such as the Structural Interest Income Risk (SIIR).

The CEO and GEM regularly review reports on risk
exposure and have established a number of
committees for risk, liquidity and capital
management.

e The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
chaired by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
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prepares issues of major importance concerning
the Group’s financial operations and balance
sheet risks as well as capital management for
decision either by the CEO in GEM or for
recommendation by the CEO in GEM and for
decision by the Group Board.

» The Risk Committee, chaired by the Chief Risk
Officer (CRO), oversees the management and
control of the Group’s risks on an aggregate
level and evaluates the sufficiency of the risk
frameworks, controls and processes associated
with these risks. Further, within the scope of
resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors,
the Risk Committee decides on the allocation of
the market risk limits and liquidity risk limits to
the risk-taking units Group Treasury and
Markets. The limits are set in accordance with
the business strategies and are reviewed at least
annually. The heads of the units allocate the
respective limits within the unit and may
introduce more detailed limits and other risk
mitigating techniques such as stop-loss rules.
The Risk Committee has established
subcommittees for its work and decision-
making within specific risk areas. Minutes of
the meetings in sub-committees are distributed
to the members of the Risk Committee.

» The Group Executive Management Credit
Committee (GEM CC) and Executive Credit
Committee (ECC) are chaired by the CRO
while the Group Credit Committee Retail
Banking (GCCR) and the Group Credit
Committee Wholesale Banking (GCCW) are
chaired by the Chief Credit Officer (CCO).
These credit committees decide on major credit
risk customer limits. Credit risk limits are
granted as individual limits for customers or
consolidated customer groups and as industry
limits for certain defined industries.

Responsibility of Group Risk Management and
Group Corporate Centre

Within the Group, two units, Group Risk
Management and Group Corporate Centre, are
responsible for risk, capital, liquidity and balanc
sheet management. Group Risk Management,
headed by the CRO, is responsible for the risk
management framework and processes. Group
Corporate Centre, headed by the CFO, is
responsible for the capital policy, the composition
of the capital base, the capital adequacy framework
and for the management of liquidity risk.



Each business area and group function is primarily
responsible for managing the risks in its operation
within the applicable limits and framework,
including identification, control and reporting.

Risk appetite

Risk appetite within Nordea is defined as the level
and nature of risk that the bank is willing to take
order to pursue the articulated strategy on bedfalf
shareholders, and is defined by constraints
reflecting the views of shareholders, debt holders,
regulators and other stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of Nordea is ultimately
responsible for the overall risk appetite of the@Gr
and for setting the principles for how risk appetdt
managed. The Board Risk Committee assists the
Board of Directors in fulfilling these responsiligis

by reviewing the development of the risk profile in
relation to the risk appetite and by making
recommendations regarding changes to the Group’s
risk appetite.

Nordea'’s risk appetite framework is based on
explicit top-down risk appetite statements ensuring
comprehensive coverage of key risks faced by the
Group. These statements collectively define the
boundaries for Nordea'’s risk-taking activities and
will also help identify areas with scope for
additional risk taking. The statements are approved
by the Board of Directors, and set the basis for a
new risk reporting structure. Moreover, the
framework supports management decision
processes, such as planning and target setting.
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The risk appetite framework considers key risks
relevant to Nordea's business activities and on an
aggregate level is represented in terms of creski r
market risk, operational risk, solvency,
compliance/non-negotiable risks and liquidity risk.

The risk appetite framework is further presented in
the Capital and Risk Management Report (Pillar Il
report).

Monitoring and reporting

The control environment is based on the principles
for segregation of duties and independence.
Monitoring and reporting of risk are conducted on a
daily basis for market and liquidity risk and on a
monthly and quarterly basis for credit and
operational risk.

Risk reporting including reporting the development
of REA (Risk Exposure Amount) s regularly made
to the GEM and the Board of Directors. Group
Internal Audit (GIA) makes an independent
evaluation of the processes regarding the risk and
capital management in accordance with the annual
audit plan.

Disclosure requirements of the CRR — Capital

and risk management report 2014

Additional and more detailed information on risk
and capital management is presented in the Capital
and Risk Management Report 2014, in accordance
with the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR),
which is based on the Basel Ill framework issued by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. The
report is available at www.nordea.com.
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Risk management

Credit Risk management Credit risk definition and identification
Group Risk Management is responsible for the Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss if
credit process framework and credit risk counterparts fail to fulfil their agreed obligatn
management framework, consisting of policies, and the pledged collateral does not cover the
instructions and guidelines for the Group. Group existing claims. Credit risk stems mainly from
Risk Management is responsible for controlling and ~ various forms of lending, but also from guarantees
monitoring the quality of the credit portfolio attte and documentary credits, counterparty credit sk i
credit process. Each division/unit is primarily derivative contracts, transfer risk attributablehe
responsible for managing the credit risks in its transfer of money from another country and
operations within the applicable framework and settlement risk. For monitoring the distributionaof
limits, including identification, control and portfolio, improving the risk management and
reporting. defining a common strategy towards specific

o industries there are specific industry credit
Within the powers to act granted by the Board of principles and industry credit policies in place
Directors, credit risk limits are approved by establishing requirements and caps.
decision-making authorities on different levels in
the organisation. The risk categorization of the Individual and collective assessment of
customer and the exposure decide the level at which ~ 'mpairment o
the decision will be made. Responsibility for a Throughout the process of identifying and
credit exposure lies with the relevant customer mitigating credit impairments, Nordea continuously

responsible unit. Customers are assigned a rating o~ '€views the quality of the credit exposures. Weak

score in accordance with the Nordea framework for ~ @nd impaired exposures are closely and
quantification of credit risk. continuously monitored and reviewed at least on a

quarterly basis in terms of current performance,
business outlook, future debt service capacity and
the possible need for provisions.

Credit decision-making structure for main operations

Nordea - Board of Directors / Board Risk Committee
Policy matters/ Monitoring / Guidelines / Risk Appetite

Executive Credit Committee / Group Executive Management Credit Committee

Retail Country Credit Committee Credit Credit Com- T Credit Group
Denmark, Finland, Norway, Committee mittecinicmag Gt Committee Treasury
Sweden & Baltic countries cIB tional Banks S Shipping and Credit
and Countries Offshore Serv. Committee
Local Credit Risk Committee Retail Local Credit Committee CIB

Local Business Unit

Four-eyes principle

Personal powers to act

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 11



A provision is recognised if there is objective
evidence based on loss events and observable data
that the customer’s future cash flow is weakened to
the extent that full repayment is unlikely, collate
included. Exposures with provision are considered
as impaired. The size of the provision is equah&®
estimated loss being the difference between the
book value of the outstanding exposure and the
discounted value of the future cash flow, including
the value of pledged collateral. Impaired exposures
can be either performing or non-performing.
Exposures that have been past due more than 90
days are by definition regarded as non-performing,
and reported as impaired or not impaired depending
on the deemed loss potential.

Forbearance is negotiated terms or restructurirg du
to borrowers’ financial stress. The intention with
granting forbearance for a limited period of tirse i

to ensure full repayment of the outstanding debt.
Examples of negotiated terms are changes in
amortization profile, repayment schedule, customer
margin as well as ease of financial covenants.
Forbearance is undertaken on a selective and
individual basis and followed by impairment testing
for rated corporate customers. Loan loss provisions
are taken if necessary. Forborne customers without
impairment charges are fully covered by either
collateral and/or the net present value of futaghc
flow.

Credit risk exposure and loans

In addition to individual impairment testing of all
individually significant customers, collective
impairment testing is performed for groups of
customers that have not been found to be impaired
on individual level. The collective impairment is
based on the migration of rated and scored
customers in the credit portfolio as well as
management judgement. The assessment of
collective impairment reacts to up- and down-
ratings of customers as well as new customers and
customers leaving the portfolio. Moreover,
customers going to and from default affect the
calculation. Collective impairment is assessed
quarterly for each legal unit. The rationale fasth
two-step procedure with both individual and
collective assessment is to ensure that all indurre
losses are accounted for up to and including each
balance sheet day.

Further information on credit risk is presented in
Note 45 to the financial statements.

Credit portfolio

Credit risk is measured, monitored and segmented
in different ways. On-balance lending constitutes
the major part of the credit portfolio and the kasi
for impaired loans and loan losses. Credit risk in
lending is measured and presented as the principal
amount of on-balance sheet claims, i.e. loans to
central banks and credit institutions, loans to the
public and off-balance sheet potential claims on
customers and counterparts, net after allowances.
Credit risk exposure also includes the risk reldted
derivative contracts and securities financing.

(excluding cash and balances at central banksettidreent risk exposure)

Group Parent company

EURmM 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Loans to central banks and credit institutions 35,81 35,767 41,091 41,220
Loans to the public 113,748 113,779 106,639 107,268
- of which corporate 76,238 74,895 72,031 71,064
- of which household 36,296 38,156 33,394 35,476
- of which public sector 1,214 728 1,214 728

Total loans 149,099 149,546 147,731 148,489
Off-balance credit exposure 30,907 31,698 28,379 29,469
Counterparty risk exposure 35,627 20,439 35,627 20,439
Interest-bearing securities 45,701 43,985 45,701 43,985
Total credit risk exposure in the banking operatiors 261,334 245,668 257,438 242,382
! Also includes interest-bearing securities pledged as collateral in repurchase agreements
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NBF's total lending was largely unchanged at EUR
114bn during 2014. It is attributable to an inceeas
of 2% in the corporate portfolio and a decrease of
5% in the household portfolio. Part of the corperat
portfolio is guaranteed by NBF’s parent company
Nordea Bank AB (publ). Including off-balance
sheet exposures, the total credit risk exposure at
year-end was EUR 261bn (246). Out of lending to
the public, corporate customers accounted for 67%
(66) and household customers 32% (34). Loans to
credit institutions and central banks, mainly ia th
form of inter-bank deposits, decreased to EUR 35bn
(36) at the end of 2014.

Loans to corporate customers

Loans to corporate customers at the end of 2014
amounted to EUR 76bn (75), up 2%. Real estate
remains the largest sector in NBF's lending
portfolio at EUR 8.1bn (9.6). The real estate
portfolio predominantly consists of relatively larg
and financially strong companies.

The distribution of loans to corporates by size of
loans shows a high degree of diversification where
approx. 81% (80) of the corporate volume
represents loans up to EUR 50m per customer.

Credit risk mitigation is an inherent part of the
credit decision process. In every credit decisioth a
review, the valuation of collaterals is considered
together with the adequacy of covenants and other
risk mitigations.

Pledging of collateral is the main credit risk
mitigation technique. In corporate exposures, the
main collateral types are real estate mortgages,
floating charges and leasing objects. Collateral
coverage is higher for exposures to financially
weaker customers than for those who are financially
strong. Regarding large exposures syndication of

Rating distribution, IRB Corporate
customers
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loans is the primary tool for managing concentratio
risk while credit risk mitigation by the use of die
default swaps has been applied to a limited extent.

Covenants in credit agreements do not substitute
collaterals, but are an important complement tdbot
secured and unsecured exposures. Most exposures
of substantial size and complexity include
appropriate covenants. Financial covenants are
designed to react to early warning signs and are
carefully monitored.

Loans to household customers

In 2014 lending to household customers decreased
5% to EUR 36bn (38). Mortgage loans decreased
8% to EUR 28bn while consumer loans increased to
EUR 8bn. The proportion of mortgage loans of total
household loans decreased to 78% (81).

Geographical distribution

Lending to the public distributed by borrower
domicile shows that the Nordic market accounts for
72% (67). Other EU countries represent the main
part of the lending outside the Nordic and Baltic
countries. Lending to customers in the Baltic
countries decreased to EUR 0.4bn (8.4) at the &nd o
2014 as the Baltic operations were sold to Nordea
Bank AB (publ) on 1 April 2014.

Rating and scoring distribution

One way of assessing credit quality is through an
analysis of the distribution across rating grades f
rated corporate customers and institutions asagell
across risk grades for scored household and small
business customers, i.e. retail exposures. About
84% (84) of the corporate exposure is rated 4- or
higher and the portion of institutional exposure
rated 5- or higher is 92% (92). About 89% (89) of
the retail exposures are scored C- or higher.

Risk grade distribution, IRB Retail
customers
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Loans to the public and to credit institutions, bycountry and industry

Group

31 Dec 2014, EURm Finland Baltic Total 2014 Total 2013
Energy (oil, gas etc.) 677 0 677 698
Metals and mining materials 215 12 227 313
Paper and forest materials 737 22 759 840
Other materials (building materials etc.) 1,673 50 1,723 1,991
Industrial capital goods 820 4 824 805
Industrial commercial services etc. 1,452 154 1,606 1,627
Construction and engineering 781 59 839 947
Shipping and offshore 4,139 0 4,139 4,073
Transportation 872 281 1,153 1,454
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc.) 470 16 486 855
Media and leisure 517 16 533 631
Retail trade 2,176 117 2,293 2,710
Consumer staples (food, agriculture, etc.) 1,236 169 1,405 1,872
Health care and pharmaceuticals 300 14 315 355
Financial institutions 1,729 8 1,737 1,103
Real estate 8,086 18 8,103 9,560
IT software, hardware and services 323 10 333 357
Telecommunication equipment 25 27 29
Telecommunication operators 435 438 411
Utilities (distribution and productions) 1,748 1,756 1,806
Other, public and organisations 46,625 240 46,865 42,459
Total corporate loans 75,038 1,200 76,238 74,895
Household mortgages 28,386 0 28,386 30,723
Household consumer 7,726 184 7,910 7,433
Public sector 1,214 0 1,214 728
Total loans to the public 112,364 1,384 113,748 113,779
Loans to credit institutions 35,351 0 35,351 35,767
Total loans 147,715 1,384 149,099 149,546
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 14



Loans to the public and to credit institutions, bycountry and industry

Parent company

31 Dec 2014, EURm Finland Baltic Total 2014 Total 2013
Energy (oil, gas etc.) 676 676 693
Metals and mining materials 176 176 256
Paper and forest materials 598 598 709
Other materials (building materials etc.) 1,320 1,320 1,501
Industrial capital goods 661 661 673
Industrial commercial services etc. 1,089 1,089 1,157
Construction and engineering 495 495 666
Shipping and offshore 4,133 4,133 4,064
Transportation 376 376 720
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc.) 421 421 775
Media and leisure 431 431 527
Retail trade 1,840 1,840 2,274
Consumer staples (food, agriculture, etc.) 993 993 1,487
Health care and pharmaceuticals 221 221 268
Financial institutions 1,715 1,715 1,078
Real estate 8,064 8,064 9,520
IT software, hardware and services 229 229 244
Telecommunication equipment 23 23 26
Telecommunication operators 434 434 406
Utilities (distribution and productions) 1,701 1,701 1,758
Other, public and organisations 46,436 46,436 42,263
Total corporate loans 72,031 - 72,031 71,064
Household mortgages 28,386 28,386 30,723
Household consumer 5,008 5,008 4,753
Public sector 1,214 1,214 728
Total loans to the public 106,639 - 106,639 107,268
Loans to credit institutions 41,091 - 41,091 41,220
Total loans 147,731 - 147,731 148,489
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 15



Impaired loans

Impaired loans gross decreased 26% to EUR
1,480m from EUR 2,008m, corresponding to 99bp
(133) of total loans. 56% (52) of impaired loans
gross are performing and 44% (48) are non-
performing. Impaired loans net, after allowances fo
individually assessed impaired loans, amounted to
EUR 964m (1,294), corresponding to 64bp (86).
Allowances for individually assessed loans
decreased to EUR 516m from EUR 714m.
Allowances for collectively assessed loans
decreased to EUR 119m from EUR 125m. The
provisioning ratio was 43% (42). The main
increases in impaired loans were in the corporate
sectors Industrial commercial services and Other
material (building materials).

Past due loans (6 days or more) to corporate
customers that are not considered impaired
decreased to EUR 223m (251). The volume of past

due loans to household customers decreased to EUR

280m (438) in 2014.

Impaired loans and ratios

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Impaired loans
gross 1,480 2,008 1,188 1,716
- of which
performing 823 1,034 653 839
- of which

non-performing 657 974 535 877

Impaired loans

ratio, basis points 99 133 80 115
Total allowance
ratio, basis points 42 56 38 50

Provisioning ratio,
% 43 42 48 44
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Net loan losses

Loan losses increased to EUR 60m (53) in 2014.
This corresponded to a loan loss ratio of S5bp (5).
EUR 34m (33) relates to corporate customers and
EUR 26m (19) relates to household customers. The
main losses were in the corporate sector Reald=stat

Net loan losses and loan loss ratios

Group Parent company

Basis points of loans 2014 2013 2013 2013

Net loan losses, EURmM 60 53 54 43
Loan loss ratib 5 5 5 5
- of which individual 4 6 3 6
- of which collective 2 -1 2 -1
Loan loss ratio,

Retail Banking 7 6 7 6
Loan loss ratio, Corporate

& Institutional Banking 2 1 3 1
Loan loss ratio, Shipping,

Offshore & Oil Service -2 4 -2 4
Loan loss ratio,

Baltic countries 3 1 3 1

* Net loan losses divided by the opening balance of loans to the public
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Impaired loans gross and allowances by country anishdustry
(loans to the public and to credit institutions)

Group

Provisioning
31 Dec 2014, EURm Finland Baltic Allowances ratio
Energy (oil, gas etc) 2 2 95%
Metals and mining materials 33 23 69%
Paper and forest materials 100 21 21%
Other materials (building materials etc.) 193 96 50%
Industrial capital goods 90 46 52%
Industrial commercial services etc. 143 70 49%
Construction and engineering 51 26 51%
Shipping and offshore 20 26 130%
Transportation 24 5 21%
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc.) 37 15 41%
Media and leisure 45 21 47%
Retail trade 140 52 37%
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc.) 45 32 71%
Health care and pharmaceuticals 10 3 32%
Financial institutions 49 30 60%
Real estate 37 14 38%
IT software, hardware and services 56 25 44%
Telecommunication equipment 3 1 50%
Telecommunication operators 2 1 46%
Utilities (distribution and productions) 1 0 22%
Other, public and organisations 6 13 34
Total corporate impaired loans 1,084 13 542 49%
Household mortgage loans 168 7 4%
Household consumer loans 214 86 40%
Public sector 0 0
Credit institutions 0 0
Total impaired loans gross 1,467 13 1,480
Total allowances 629 6 635
Provisioning ratio 43% 48% 43%
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Impaired loans gross and allowances by country anishdustry
(loans to the public and to credit institutions)

Parent company

Provisioning
31 Dec 2014, EURm Finland Baltic Allowances ratio
Energy (oil, gas etc.) 2 2 90%
Metals and mining materials 21 17 83%
Paper and forest materials 93 21 23%
Other materials (building materials etc.) 147 92 63%
Industrial capital goods 70 46 66%
Industrial commercial services etc. 128 70 54%
Construction and engineering 43 25 57%
Shipping and offshore 20 26 130%
Transportation 10 3 30%
Consumer durables (cars, appliances etc.) 33 15 45%
Media and leisure 37 21 57%
Retail trade 122 51 42%
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc.) 42 31 75%
Health care and pharmaceuticals 6 2 38%
Financial institutions 49 29 60%
Real estate 36 14 39%
IT software, hardware and services 53 25 47%
Telecommunication equipment 51%
Telecommunication operators 58%
Utilities (distribution and productions) 0 0 24%
Other, public and organisations 6 21
Total corporate impaired loans 923 - 514 56%
Household mortgage loans 168 7 4%
Household consumer loans 96 44 46%
Public sector - -
Credit institutions - -
Total impaired loans gross 1,188 - 1,188
Total allowances 565 565
Provisioning ratio 48% 48%
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 18



Counterparty credit risk

Counterparty credit risk is the risk that Nordea’s
counterpart in a FX, interest, commodity, equity or
credit derivative contract defaults prior to mattyri

of the contract and that Nordea at that time has a
claim on the counterpart. Counterparty credit risk
can also exist in repurchase agreements and other
securities financing transactions. The exposure at
the end of 2014 was EUR 35.6bn (20.4), of which
the current exposure net (after close-out and
collateral reduction) represents EUR 16.2bn. 53%
of the exposure and 34% of the current exposure net
was towards financial institutions.

For information about financial instruments subject
to master netting agreement, see Note 41.

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk of loss in
Nordea’s holdings and transactions as a result of
changes in market rates and parameters that affect
the market value, such as changes to interest rates
credit spreads, FX rates, equity prices, commodity
prices and option volatilities.

Nordea Markets, Group Treasury and Group Asset
and Liability Management are the key contributors
to market risk in the Nordea Group. Nordea
Markets is responsible for the customer driven
trading activities, Group Treasury is responsible f
funding activities, and investments for Nordea’s
own account, and Group Asset and Liability
Management is responsible for asset and liability
management, liquidity portfolios, pledge/collateral
portfolios. For all other banking activities, marke
risks are transferred to Group Treasury and Group
Asset and Liability Management.

Consolidated market risk figures, VaR

Measurement of market risk

Nordea calculates VaR using historical simulation.
The current portfolio is revaluated using the daily
changes in market prices and parameters observed
during the last 500 trading days, thus generating a
distribution of 499 returns based on empirical data
From this distribution, the expected shortfall
method is used to calculate a VaR figure, meaning
that the VaR figure is based on the average of the
worst outcomes from the distribution. The 1-day
VaR figure is subsequently scaled to a 10-day
figure. The 10-day VaR figure is used to limit and
measure market risk both in the trading book and in
the banking book.

Separate VaR figures are calculated for interest
rate, credit spread, foreign exchange rate andyequi
risks. The total VaR includes all these risk
categories and allows for diversification among
them. The VaR figures include both linear positions
and options. The model has been calibrated to
generate a 99% VaR figure. This means that the 10-
day VaR figure can be interpreted as a loss thiat wi
be exceeded in one of hundred 10-day trading
periods.

It is important to note that while every effort is

made to make the VaR model as realistic as
possible, all VaR models are based on assumptions
and approximations that have a significant effect o
the risk figures produced.

While historical simulation has the advantage df no
being dependent on a specific assumption regarding
the distribution of returns, it should be notedt tha

the historical observations of the market variables
that are used as input may not give an adequate
description of the behaviour of these variables in
the future. The choice of the time period used is
also important. While using a longer time period

Group

EURmM Measure 31 Dec 2014 2014 high 2014 low 2014 average 31 Dec 2013
Total Risk VaR 27.9 84.9 16.9 37.8 90.5

- Interest Rate Risk VaR 26.1 87.4 17.6 40.1 95.0

- Equity Risk VaR 5.9 10.4 13 53 3.2

- Credit Spread Risk VaR 7.0 28.2 3.7 10.6 14.5

- Foreign Exchange Risk VaR 3.5 20.8 2.8 11.3 4.2
Diversification effect VaR 35 % 59 % 17% 45 % 23 %

* For a description of Nordea's VaR model, see “Measurement of market risk” page 19
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may enhance the model’s predictive properties and
lead to reduced cyclicality, using a shorter time
period increases the model’s responsiveness to
sudden changes in the volatility of financial

markets. Nordea’s choice to use the last 500 days o
historical data has thus been made with the aim to
strike a balance between the pros and cons of using
longer or shorter time series in the calculation of
VaR.

Market risk analysis

The consolidated market risk for NBF presented in
the table on the previous page includes both the
trading book and the banking book. The total VaR
was EUR 28m at the end of 2014 (91). The decrease
in total VaR over the year is mainly related to the
decrease in interest rate VaR, which is a reflectio

of changed positions and an decreased interest rate
level. Interest rate VaR was EUR 26m (95), with the
largest part of the interest rate sensitivity stengm
from interest rate positions denominated in Euro,
Swedish kronor and Danish kroner. The commodity
risk was at an insignificant level.

The fair value of investments in private equitydsn
reported as fair value option was EUR 2m (4) at the
end of 2014.

Foreign exchange rate positions in FX VaR

Group

EURmM 2014 2013
DKK 625 377
SEK 88 -72
USD 58 -1
NOK -47 12
CHF -33 -61
BRL -22 -2
LTL 21 26
Othef 9 97

! The disclosed FX positions relate to positions in financial instruments
in the banking book and trading book. Financial derivatives are included
with their delta equivalent. Structural FX risk e.g. related to investments
in subsidiaries and associated companies or related to earnings and cost
streams denominated in foreign currencies, are not included.

2 Aggregate net position for foreign exchange positions with an individual
absolute value below EUR 21m
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Structural Interest Income Risk

SIIR is the amount by which Nordea’s accumulated
net interest income would change during the next 12
months if all interest rates were to change by one
percentage point.

SIIR reflects the mismatches in the balance sheet
items and the off-balance sheet items when the
interest rate repricing periods, volumes or refeeen
rates of assets, liabilities and derivatives do not
correspond exactly.

Nordea Group’s SIIR management is based on
policy statements resulting in different SIIR
measures, and organisational procedures.

Policy statements focus on optimising the financial
structure, balanced risk taking and reliable egmin
growth, identification of all significant sourcet o
SIIR, measurement under stressful market
conditions and adequate public information.

Group Corporate Centre has the responsibility for
the operational management of SIIR.

SIIR measurement methods

Nordea’s SIIR is measured through dynamic
simulations by calculating several net interest
income scenarios and comparing the difference
between these scenarios. Several interest rate
scenarios are applied, but the basic measures for
SIIR are the two scenarios (increasing rates and
decreasing rates) measuring the effect on Nordea'’s
net interest income for a 12-month period of a one
percentage point increase, respectively decrease, i
all interest rates. The balance sheet is assumieel to
constant over time. However main elements of
customer behaviour and Nordea’s decision-making
process concerning Nordea's own rates are, taken
into account.

SIIR analysis

At the end of 2014, SIIR for increasing rates was
EUR +9m (+104) and SIIR for decreasing market
rates was EUR +56m (-59).

20



Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of direcct o
indirect loss, or damaged reputation, resultingnfro
inadequate or failed internal processes, from peopl
and systems or from external events. Operational
risk includes legal risk and compliance risk, which
is the risk of business not being conducted
according to obligations pursuant to laws, statutes
and other regulations applicable to the operations
subject to authorisation, and internal rules thgreb
jeopardizing customers’ best interest, other
stakeholders trust and increasing the risk of
regulatory sanctions, financial loss or damagé¢o t
reputation and confidence. Operational risk is
inherent in all activities within the organisation,
outsourced activities and in all interactions with
external parties.

Managing operational risk is part of the
management’s responsibilities. The operational
risks are monitored through regular risk assessment
procedures and a systematic, quality and risk
focused management of changes. Development of
new products, services, activities as well as
processes and systems shall be risk assessed.
Identified risk elements and consequences of risk
events are mitigated with, inter alia, up to date
Business Continuity Plans as well as Group Crisis
Management and Communication plans ensuring a
good contingency preparedness in all business plans
and crisis management structures. External risk
transfer is used in the form of insurance, inclgdin
reinsurance, to cover certain aspects of crime risk
and professional liability, including the liabilityf
directors and officers. Nordea furthermore uses
insurance for travel, property and general liapilit
purposes.
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The key principle for the management of
Operational risks is the three lines of defences Th
first line of defence is represented by the Busines
Areas and Group Functions who are responsible for
their own daily risk management and for operating
their business within limits for risk exposure and
accordance with decided framework for internal
control and risk management at the first line of
defence. The control functions Group Operational
Risk, in Group Risk Management, and Group
Compliance are in the second line of defence
responsibldor activities such as independently
monitoring, controlling and reporting of issues
related to key risks, including compliance with
internal and external regulations. Group Internal
Audit performs audits and provides assurance to
stakeholders on internal controls and risk
management processes in third line of defence.

The key process for management of operational
risks is the annual Operational Risk Assessment
process. The process includes the risk and control
self-assessment (RCSA) and the scenario analysis,
and puts focus on both the risks on a divisiondl an
unit level threatening its daily activities and the
risks which could cause extreme financial losses or
other significant impacts to Nordea as well as
ensuring fulfilment of requirements specified in
Group directives. The risks are identified both
through top-down and through bottom-up analysis
of results obtained from control questions as wasll
existing information from processes, such as
incident reporting, scenario analysis, quality and
risk analyses as well as product approvals. The
timing of this process is synchronised with the
annual planning process to be able to ensure
adequate input to the Group’s overall prioritisaio
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Liquidity risk management

Management principles and control

Group Corporate Centre is responsible for pursuing
Nordea’s liquidity strategy, managing the liquidity
in Nordea and for compliance with the group-wide
limits set by the Board of Directors and the Risk
Committee. Furthermore, Group Asset & Liability
Management develops the liquidity risk
management frameworks, which consist of policies,
instructions and guidelines for the Group as well a
the principles for pricing liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors defines the liquidity risk
appetite by setting limits for applied liquidityski
measures. The most central measure is survival
horizon, which defines the risk appetite by setting
the minimum survival of one month under
institution-specific and market-wide stress scearsari
with limited mitigation actions.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of being able to meet
liquidity commitments only at increased cost or,
ultimately, being unable to meet obligations agythe
fall due. Nordea’s liquidity management and
strategy are based on policy statements resuhing i
various liquidity risk measures, limits and
organisational procedures.

Policy statements stipulate that Nordea'’s liquidity
management reflects a conservative attitude towards
liquidity risk. Nordea strives to diversify the

Group’s sources of funding and seeks to establish
and maintain relationships with investors in orger
ensure market access. A broad and diversified
funding structure is reflected by the strong presen
in the Group’s four domestic markets in the form of
a strong and stable retail customer base and a
variety of funding programmes. Funding
programmes are both short-term (US Commercial
Papers, European Commercial Papers, Commercial
Papers, Certificates of Deposits) and long-term
(Covered Bonds, European Medium-Term Notes,
Medium Term Notes) and cover a range of
currencies.

Nordea’s liquidity risk management includes stress
testing and a business continuity plan for liqyidit
management. Stress testing is defined as the
evaluation of potential effects on a bank’s liqtydi
situation under a set of exceptional but plausible
events. Stress testing framework also includes the
survival horizon metric, which represents a
combined liquidity risk scenario (idiosyncratic and
market-wide stress).
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Liquidity risk measurement methods

The liquidity risk management focuses on both
short-term liquidity risk and long-term structural
liquidity risk. In order to manage short-term fumgli
positions, Nordea measures the funding gap risk,
which expresses the expected maximum
accumulated need for raising liquidity in the caurs
of the next 30 days. Cash flows from both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet items are
included. Funding gap risk is measured and limited
for each currency and as a total figure for all
currencies combined. The total figure for all
currencies combined is limited by the Board of
Directors.

To ensure funding in situations where Nordea is in
urgent need of cash and the normal funding sources
do not suffice, Nordea holds a liquidity buffer.erh
buffer minimum level is set by the Board of
Directors. The liquidity buffer consists of central
bank eligible high-grade liquid securities held by
Group Corporate Centre that can be readily sold or
used as collateral in funding operations.

During 2011, the survival horizon metric was
introduced. It is conceptually similar to the Basel
and EU Liquidity Coverage Ratio. The metric is
composed of a liquidity buffer and funding gap risk
cash flows, and includes expected behavioural cash
flows from contingent liquidity drivers. Survival
horizon defines the short-term liquidity risk apfeet
of the Group and expresses the excess liquidigy aft
a 30-day period without access to market funding.
The Board of Directors has set a limit for minimum
survival without access to market funding during 30
days.

The structural liquidity risk of Nordea is measured
and limited by the Board of Directors through the
Net Balance of Stable Funding (NBSF), which is
defined as the difference between stable liakslitie
and stable assets. These liabilities primarily
comprise retail deposits, bank deposits and bonds
with a remaining term to maturity of more than 12
months, as well as shareholders’ equity, whilelstab
assets primarily comprise retail loans, other loans
with a remaining term to maturity longer than 12
months and committed facilities. The CEO in GEM
has set it as a target that the NBSF should be
positive, which means that stable assets must be
funded by stable liabilities.
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Liquidity risk analysis

The short-term liquidity risk remained at moderate
levels throughout 2014. The average funding gap
risk, i.e. the average expected need for raising
liquidity in the course of the next 30 days, wasfEU
+2.0bn (+3.8).

NBF’s liquidity buffer range was EUR 14.6-18.9bn
(14.5-17.3) throughout 2014 with an average buffer
size of EUR 17.2bn (16.6). NBF's liquidity buffex i
highly liquid, consisting of only central bank

eligible securities held by Group Treasury.
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Survival horizon was in the range EUR +2.1 —
17.6bn

(+4.0 - 17.3) throughout 2014 with an average of
EUR 10.5bn (10.4). The aim of always maintaining
a positive NBSF was comfortably achieved
throughout 2014. The yearly average for the NBSF
was EUR 27.5bn (20.1).
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Capital management

Nordea strives to be efficient in its use of cdpita
and therefore actively manages its balance sheet
with respect to assets, liabilities and risks. gbal
is to enhance returns to shareholders while
maintaining a prudent capital structure.

Capital governance

The Board of Directors decides ultimately on the
targets for capital ratios and the capital polity i
Nordea, while the CEO in GEM decides on the
overall framework of capital management. The
ability to meet targets and to maintain minimum
capital requirements is reviewed regularly within
the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) and the
Risk Committee.

The capital requirement and the capital base
described in this section follow the CRD rules and
not accounting standards, see Note 38 for details.

Minimum capital requirements

Risk exposure amount (REA), previously referred to
as risk-weighted assets or RWA, is calculated in
accordance with the requirements in the CRD.
Nordea had 77% of the credit risk exposure covered
by internal rating based (IRB) approaches by the
end of 2014. During the first quarter of 2014
Nordea implemented the advanced IRB approach
for the corporate exposures in the Nordic regian. |
the fourth quarter, Nordea was approved to use the
retail IRB approach for the majority of the retalil
exposures in Finland which were not previously
reported in IRB.

NBF is approved to use its own internal Value-at-
Risk (VaR) models to calculate capital requirements
for the major share of the market risk in the tngdi
book. For operational risk the standardised aproac
is applied.

Internal capital requirement

Nordea bases its internal capital requirementsmunde
the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) on risks defined by the CRD and risks
internally defined under Pillar 1l. The following
major risk types are included in the internal calpit
requirement; credit risk, market risk, operational
risk and business risk. Additionally, interest rate
risk in the banking book, risk in Nordea’s sponsore
defined benefit pension plans, real estate risk and
concentration risk are explicitly accounted for.

In addition to calculating risk capital for its vaus

risk types, Nordea conducts a comprehensive capital
adequacy stress test to analyse the effects afesse
of global and local shock scenarios. The results of

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014

the stress tests are considered, along with patenti
management interventions, in Nordea'’s internal
capital requirements as buffers for economic stress
The internal capital requirement is a key component
of Nordea’s capital ratio target setting.

The ICAAP also describes Nordea's management,
mitigation and measurement of material risks and
assesses the adequacy of internal capital by dgfini
internal capital requirements reflecting the rigk o
the institution. However, regulatory buffers are
introduced with the implementation of CRD IV.

This might lead to higher capitalisation
requirements than what is determined in the interna
capital requirement.

Economic Capital (EC)

Nordea’s Economic Capital model is based on the
same risk components as the ICAAP but also
includes risks in the insurance businesses. EC is
calculated for the conglomerate whereas the
ICAAP, which is governed by the CRD, covers only
the financial group. EC has been aligned to CET1
capitalisation requirements according to CRD IV.
Additional capital items were introduced in the EC
during 2014 to reduce the gap between legal equity
and allocated capital.

Economic Capital for Nordea Bank Finland was at
the end of 2014 EUR 6.7bn (7.0).

Economic Profit (EP)

Nordea uses EP as one of its financial performance
indicators. EP is calculated as risk-adjusted profi
less the cost of equity. The risk-adjusted prafi a

EP are measures to support performance
management and shareholder value creation. In
investment decisions and customer relationships, EP
drives and supports the operational decision-making
process in Nordea. The EP model also captures both
growth and return. EC and expected losses (EL) are
inputs in the EP framework.

Expected losses (EL)

EL reflects the normalised loss level of an
individual credit exposure over a business cycle as
well as various portfolios. During 2014 there were
no changes to the EL framework apart from the
regular update of parameters based on the latest
validations.

EL is a more stable measure than actual losses, but
it will vary with the business cycle as a conseaqaen
of shifts in the repayment capacity (PD dimension)
and collateral coverage (LGD dimension)
distributions.
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Own funds

Own funds is the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.
Tier 1 capital consists of both common equity Tlier
(CET1) and additional Tier 1 capital. CET1 capital
is considered to be capital of the highest quality
with ultimate loss-absorbance characteristics and
consists predominately of paid in capital and
retained earnings. Profit may only be includedrafte
permission from the financial supervisory authority
and after deduction of proposed dividend. Due to
the implementation of CRR deductions that
according to previous rules were made 50 % from
Tier 1 and 50 % from Tier 2 are now fully deducted
from common equity Tier 1. Furthermore, CRR also
changed the treatment of investments in financial
sector entities and deferred tax assets that rely o
future profitability and arise from temporary
differences, which are now risk weighted instead of
deducted from Tier 1 and Tier 2.

Capital adequacy ratios

Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital consist mostly
of undated and dated subordinated loans,
respectively. Holdings of other financial sector
entities’ subordinated loans are deducted from the
corresponding Tier.

Further information

Note 38 Capital adequacy and the Capital and
Risk Management report

Further information on capital adequacy is
presented in Note 38 Capital adequacy. Additional
and more detailed information on risk and capital
management is presented in the Pillar Ill disclesur
in line with the requirements of the CRD in the
Basel Ill framework. The Pillar 11l disclosure is
publicly available atvww.nordea.com

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2014 2013 2014 2013

Excl. Basel | floor
CET1 capital ratio, % 16.7 16.0 17.2 16.6
Tier 1 capital ratio, % 17.8 16.0 18.4 16.6
Total capital ratio, % 18.0 16.8 18.6 17.6
Capital adequacy guotient (own funds / capital ireqoent) 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.2
Incl. Basel | floor
CET1 capital ratio, % 14.2 15.0 14.8 15.7
Tier 1 capital ratio, % 15.1 15.0 15.8 15.7
Total capital ratio, % 15.2 15.8 15.9 16.6
Capital adeguacy quotient (own funds / capital iegoent) 1.9 2.0 1.9 2.1
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Summary of items included in own fund$

Group

31 De¢ 31 De€
EURmM 2014 2013
Calculation of own funds
Equity in the consolidated situation 9,618 9,514
Proposed/actual dividend -450 -750
Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory atljuents 9,168 8,764
Deferred tax assets -5
Intangible assets -47 -100
IRB provisions shortfall (3) -237 -118
Deduction for investments in credit institution®¥5)f -2
Pension assets in excess of related liabffities -16 -56
Other items, net -414 -53
Total regulatory adjustments to Common Equity Tieapital -714 -334
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (net after deduction) 8,454 8,430
Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustis 550
Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tierdpital
Additional Tier 1 capital 550
Tier 1 capital (net after deduction) 9,004 8,430
Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 69 537
IRB provisions excess (+)/shortfall (-) -118
Deduction for investments in credit institution9%s) -2
Deductions for investments in insurance companies
Pension assets in excess of related liabilities
Other items, net 17
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -102
Tier 2 capital 69 436
Own funds (net after deductionf 9,073 8,866
O S e R S
3 Based on approval from Supervisory Authority
4 Own Funds adjusted for IRB provision, i.e. adjusted own funds equal EUR 9,309m by 31 Dec 2014
5 Including profit
© Terminology in table may differ from table Transitional Own Funds
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New regulations

The Capital Requirement Directive IV (CRD V)

and Capital Requirement Regulation (CRR) entered
into force from 1 January 2014. The CRR became
applicable in all EU countries from 1 January 2014
while the CRD IV was implemented through
national law within all EU member states during
2014, through national processes. In Finland the la
implementing CRD IV entered into force on 15
August 2014.

Starting in November 2014 the European Central
Bank (ECB) is responsible for the supervision of
NBF within the framework of the Single
Supervisory Mechanism (SSM). The SSM will
allow bank resolution to be managed effectively
through a Single Resolution Board and a Single
Resolution Fund, financed by the banking sector.

Parts of the CRD IV/CRR are still being phased-in.
In Finland the capital conservation buffer will fet
to 2.5% CET1 from 1 January 2015. The
countercyclical capital buffer is also applicabienf
1 January 2015, however there has been no
statement from the Finnish authorities on the rsgtti
of the countercyclical buffer yet. In addition tos
there will be a buffer requirement for systemically
important institutions (O-SlI) of 2% CET1 that will
be applicable from 1 January 2016. It has not yet
been communicated by the Finnish FSA which
institutions are to be seen as O-SlI, but it isieesd

that Nordea Bank Finland will be considered as one.

Investigations related to implementation of systemi
risk buffer in Finland is on-going.

Updates on Basel Il and theCRD IV/CRR

On 22 December 2014 the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (BCBS) published a
consultation on the design of a permanent floor,
replacing the current Basel | (transitional) flodhe
proposal is that the floor shall be based on the
revised standardised approaches for credit-, market
and operational risks that is currently, or has
recently been, on consultation. The intention from
the BCBS is to finalise the work by end 2015.

The CRR introduced a non-risk based measure, the
leverage ratio, in order to limit an excessive tuil

up of leverage on credit institutions’ balance stiee
The impact of the ratio is being monitored by the
supervisory authorities with an aim to migrate to a
binding measure in 2018. The leverage ratio will be
calculated as the Tier 1 capital divided by the
exposure (on-balance and off-balance sheet
exposures, with adjustments for certain items such
as derivatives and securities financing transasjion
On 17 January 2015 a revised version of the
calculation of the leverage ratio was published in
the Official Journal entering into force the dateaf

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014

The revised version is an update of the CRR to be
more in line with the BCBS leverage ratio
framework from January 2014.

The CRR also introduces two new quantitative
liquidity standards; liquidity coverage ratio (LCR)
and net stable funding ratio (NSFR). LCR requires
that a bank hold liquidity buffers which are
adequate to face any possible imbalance between
liquidity inflows and outflows under gravely
stressed conditions over a period of 30 days. The
EU Commission has published a delegated act on
LCR specifying details for calculations of inflows
and outflows. The detailed LCR rules will enteoint
force on 1 October 2015 with phase-in of 60% in
2015, 70% in 2016, 80% in 2017 and 100% in 2018.
NSFR requires that a bank shall ensure that long
term obligations are adequately met with a diversit
of stable funding instruments under both normal and
stressed conditions. BCBS published a final
recommendation on NSFR in October 2014 with the
intention to introduce NSFR as a minimum standard
in 2018. Within the EU, the EU Commission is
expected to present a proposal by late 2016jdf it
deemed appropriate.

Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive

The Banking Recovery and Resolution Directive
(BRRD) was published in the Official Journal in
June 2014 together with the Directive on Deposit
Guarantee Scheme. The BRRD outlines the tools
and powers available to the relevant authorities in
the EU, which are aimed at both preventing bank
defaults as well as handling banks in crises, while
maintaining financial stability. The DGS
strengthens the protection of citizens' deposits in
case of bank failures. The BRRD require banks to
draw up recovery plans to describe the measures
they would take in order to remain viable if their
financial situation is considerably weakened. The
BRRD also sets the minimum requirement for own
funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) for all EU
banks. In November 2014, the EBA published a
technical standard describing the calculation ef th
MREL requirement. The final version of the EBA
technical standard will be applied for all EU banks
at the latest in 2016. In November 2014 the
Financial Stability Board (FSB) published a
consultation on the total loss absorbing capacity
(TLAC). The TLAC is intended to ensure adequate
availability of loss-absorbing capacity for global
systemic banks in resolution, similar to the MREL.
The TLAC requirement will not be applied before
2019.
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Bank structural reform

In February 2012, the EU Commission established a
high-level expert group (HLEG) with the task to
assess whether additional reforms on the structure
of individual banks should be considered. The
HLEG answer to the task was presented in a report
in October 2012 and suggested mandatory
separation of proprietary trading and other higii-ri
trading activities from the normal banking actiegi
The main purpose would be to separate certain
particularly risky parts of financial activitiesoim
deposit taking activities within a banking group.
The underlying objective is to make deposit taking
banks safer and less connected to trading actvitie
Risky financial activities are defined as proprnigta
trading and all securities or derivatives incurired

the process of market-making as well as exposures
towards hedge funds, private equity investments and
structured investment vehicles. A proposal from the
European Commission was released in January
2014. The Commission proposal is currently being
discussed both in the European Parliament and in
the Council. Time for finalisation of the proposal
and implementation is still unclear.

Accounting

Nordea’s accounting policies, which follow IFRS,
are under change. Nordea’s assessment is that the
most important change is related to Financial
Instruments (IFRS 9), although other changes might
also have an impact on Nordea. IFRS 9 will become
mandatory from 2018 if endorsed in the EU.
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Impact on the financial statements and

regulatory capital from the asset quality review

as of 31 December 2013

An Asset Quality Review (AQR) and stress test for
banks within the euro area has been performed by
the European Central Bank (ECB) and includes the
assessment of the Nordea Bank Finland Group. The
results confirm Nordea Bank Finland’s strong
position with a CET1% capital ratio of 10.4% at the
end of the stress test horizon. The main findimgs i
the AQR relate to:

* Individual loan loss provisions — Negative
AQR adjustment EUR 164m (EUR 231m
including projection of findings)

» Collective loan loss provisions — Negative
AQR adjustment EUR 122m

»  Credit Valuation Adjustments (CVA) —
Negative AQR adjustment EUR 75m.

After tax and Nordea Group internal risk protection
the AQR impact on available capital in the Nordea
Bank Finland Group was negative by EUR 213m,
which translated to a 40bps negative impact on the
CET1 ratio.

Although the AQR shall be considered to be a
prudential exercise, an internal assessment has bee
made on whether any of the findings should impact
the financial statements 2014. Following this
assessment Nordea has to a certain extent adjusted
individual and collective loan loss provisions lret
financial statements in line with the ordinary dgted
process, but not as a direct consequence of the
findings in the AQR. No adjustment in the financial
statements has been made following the AQR
findings on CVA, although the prudent valuation
adjustment has been increased in the capital
adequacy reporting.
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Human resources
Great people create great customer experience

We can only achieve our goal of ensuring a great
customer experience if we employ the right people
and develop them in the right way. Recruiting,
developing, motivating and retaining the best peopl
are therefore among our highest priorities.

Staying value driven

Our values — Great customer experiences, It's all
about people and One Nordea team — continue to
underpin our People strategy and drive everything
we do. The values are incorporated in all our
processes, trainings and leadership, as well as
forming the basis for our leadership capabilities.

Enhancing our leadership

At Nordea, we put relationship first, striving to
create superior value for every one of our custesmer
and shareholders. We know that requires strong
leadership — since great leaders are a prereqtosite
great employees. Leadership is one of the most
important drivers of culture, performance,
motivation and job satisfaction. How our leaders
perform is key to how our people perform, which in
turn impacts the quality of our customer’s
experience. Our leaders also have an important role
in helping the staff to live the company values.

When the world changes, leaders have to change.
When leaders are remote from their direct reports —
perhaps even in another country — it is even more
important that they are ‘present’ in the way they
manage. They need to be very clear about
responsibilities, what tasks need doing and how
people are expected to perform. Increasingly,
leaders will be held accountable for developing the
talents that report to them and creating the right
team to lead the future relationship bank.

Managing our talents

Ensuring that our customers have a positive
experience in their dealings with us is central to
everything we do. It is therefore critical that we
employ, develop and retain the people who are best
placed to help us deliver this goal.

We have identified some of the most critical
competences we think our employees need to have
today and in the future. These include leadership
capabilities, strong execution and agility and not
least the ability to understand and relate to our
customers. Having identified those competences, we
target our recruitment activities to the most slga
candidates. While we are the leading Nordic bank,
we also hire from outside the Nordic region to
ensure we find the best people we can.
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Profit-sharing scheme

Profit sharing aims to stimulate value creation for
the customers and shareholders and is offered to al
employees. The performance criteria reflect
Nordea’s long-term targets. For 2014, each
employee could receive a maximum of EUR 3,200,
of which EUR 2,600 is based on a pre-determined
level of risk adjusted return on capital at risk
(RAROCAR) and EUR 600 is based on the level of
customer satisfaction.

Corporate Social Responsibility, CSR -
performance counts

We want to use our capabilities and competencies
not only to have a financial impact, but to have a
social impact too. The two go hand in hand.
Conscious of our responsibilities, we can openate i
a way that makes a difference to the lives of
individuals and to society at large.

Focused on performance

Our commitment starts with taking a more
structured and integrated approach to sustaingabilit
Over the past year we have developed group-wide
CSR focus areas at the core of our business. These
focus areas are the first step in setting a new CSR
ambition level and measuring our CSR
performance. These are being implemented within
the business areas.

CSR as part of our identity

In 2014, the CSR unit, Group Identity &
Communications and Group Marketing were
brought together into a new unit, Group Marketing
and Communications. This structure enables us to
make sustainability an integral part of Nordea's
brand and to fully use our strong business-driven
CSR activities in our communications. Alongside
this, our new CSR governance model ensures we
are placing these issues at the centre of whatowe d
by driving decision-making into our business areas.

Acting with integrity

Through managing risk and operating with integrity,
we build trust and perform better. Our Operational
Risk and Compliance Awareness Programme
ensures that our employees are fully aware of these
policies and commitments. Our whistle-blowing
system, Raise Your Concern, complements this
programme. It encourages employees to speak up if
they have a serious concern about any misconduct
or irregularities, including any action that
constitutes a violation of laws or regulationspbr
Nordea's internal policies, instructions or guides.
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Understanding our place in society

As a bank, we are a source of finance and a trusted
financial partner, generating financial value dikgc
for our customers, suppliers, business partners,
employees, shareholders, the companies in which
we invest, and other investors. We generate social
value through the benefits our products bring to
people, through our community programmes, and
by paying taxes. Moreover, since we are significant
owners of the companies in which we invest, we can
encourage those companies to operate more
responsibly, both in our own home markets and
globally.

As we further develop our CSR programme in the
years ahead, we are confident we can create a
positive impact through all of our roles in society
and generate more value for all of our stakeholders

For more information about Nordea’s CSR work,
please see Nordea's CSR Report 2014 available on
www.nordea.com/csr.

Legal proceedings

Within the framework of the normal business
operations, NBF faces a number of claims in civil
lawsuits and disputes, most of which involve
relatively limited amounts. Presently, none of thes
disputes is considered likely to have any signiftca
adverse effect on the Group or its financial positi
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Nordea shares

Nordea Bank Finland Plc does not possess its own
shares. The information regarding bought and sold
shares in the parent company Nordea Bank AB
(publ) is presented in Note 48.

Subsequent events

As mentioned in the chapter “Changes in the group
structure” NBF continued the transfer of foreign
branch operations on 1 January 2015 when London
and Franfurt operations were sold to Nordea Bank
AB (publ). Further information is presented in Note
49. No other events have occurred after the balance
sheet date that might affect the assessment of the
annual financial statements

Outlook 2015

For 2015 we are prepared for another year with low
growth and interest rates, and continued changed
customer behaviour. Thus, we will deliver on our
cost and capital efficiency plans to secure oumngfr
financial foundation. We will continue to develop
our services to meet the changing needs from our
customers and invest in our IT platform to secure
that we also long term provide even more
personalised and convenient solutions for our
customers.
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Nordea Bank Finland Group and Nordea Bank Finland P Ic

Income statement

Group Parent company

EURM Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
Operating income
Interest income 3 1,806 1,849 1,551 1,613
Interest expense 3 -617 -666 -615 -665
Net interest income 3 1,189 1,183 936 948
Fee and commission income 4 794 759 757 715
Fee and commission expense 4 -719 -872 -712 -866
Net fee and commission income 4 75 -113 45 -151
Net result from items at fair value 5 970 1,114 975 1,110
Profit from companies accounted for under the gquitthod 20 3 8 - -
Dividends 6 - - 117 128
Other operating income 7 41 32 29 26
Total operating income 2,278 2,224 2,102 2,061
Operating expenses
General administrative expenses:

Staff costs 8 -559 -553 -525 -516

Other expenses 9 -433 -466 -410 -447
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment chardeargible and
intangible assets 10, 21 -92 -40 -88 -33
Total operating expenses -1,084 -1,059 -1,023 -996
Profit before loan losses 1,194 1,165 1,079 1,065
Net loan losses 11 -60 -53 -54 -43
Impairment of securities held as financial non-entrassets - 1 -16 1
Operating profit 1,134 1,113 1,009 1,023
Income tax expense 12 -232 -285 -188 -243
Net profit for the year 902 828 821 780
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Nordea Bank Finland Plc 902 828 821 780
Non-controlling interests - - - -
Total 902 828 821 780
Net profit for the period from transferred Baltic o perations 49 -29 26 -36 28
Net profit for the period from international operations
to be transferred 49 86 80 86 80
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Statement of comprehensive income

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net profit for the year 902 828 821 780
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to tHacome statement
Currency translation differences during the year 0 -3 - -
Available-for-sale investmerits
- Valuation gains/losses during the year 33 3 33 3
- Tax on valuation gains/losses during the year -7 1 -6 1
Cash flow hedges:
- Valuation gains/losses during the year 29 36 29 36
- Tax on valuation gains/losses during the year -6 -9 -6 -9
- Transferred to the income statement during tlee ye -21 - -21 -
- Tax on transfers to the income statement duhiegyear 4 - 4 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to tHacome statement
Defined benefit plans:
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans durinyéae -104 73 -101 68
- Tax on remeasurement of defined benefit planmduhe year 21 -17 20 -16
Other comprehensive income, net of tax -51 84 -48 83
Total comprehensive income 851 912 773 863
Attributable to:
Shareholders of Nordea Bank Finland Plc 851 912 773 863
Non-controlling interests - - - -
Total 851 912 773 863
*Valuation gains/losses related to hedged risks under fair value hedge accounting are accounted for directly in the income statement.
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Balance sheet

Group Parent company
EURmM Note 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 30,904 28,846 30,904
Loans to central banks 13 300 657 300 657
Loans to credit institutions 13 35,051 35,110 40,791 40,563
Loans to the public 13 113,748 113,779 106,639 107,268
Interest-bearing securities 14 34,643 34,246 34,643 34,246
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 15 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
Shares 16 1,918 680 1,917 679
Derivatives 17 105,254 70,234 105,254 70,234
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of
interest rate risk 18 76 58 76 58
Investments in group undertakings 19 - - 308 376
Investments in associated undertakings 20 39 59 28 34
Intangible assets 21 47 100 35 98
Properties and equipment 84 94 71 74
Investment properties 23 2 113 2 8
Deferred tax assets 12 43 5 41 2
Current tax assets 12 0 1 - -
Retirement benefit assets 32 25 133 25 132
Other assets 24 14,624 8,277 14,586 8,233
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 25 440 572 259 386
Total assets 346,198 304,761 344,879 303,691
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions 26 87,368 79,426 87,128 79,315
Deposits and borrowings from the public 27 76,879 80,909 76,873 80,908
Debt securities in issue 28 48,472 47,130 48,472 47,130
Derivatives 17 102,876 67,109 102,876 67,109
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfodidge of
interest rate risk 18 773 369 773 369
Current tax liabilities 12 41 8 39 4
Other liabilities 29 18,577 18,855 18,370 18,687
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 30 804 866 611 668
Deferred tax liabilities 12 57 53 - -
Provisions 31 85 72 82 67
Retirement benefit liabilities 32 28 21 25 20
Subordinated liabilities 33 620 429 620 429
Total liabilities 336,580 295,247 335,869 294,706
Equity
Non-controlling interests - 1 - -
Share capital 2,319 2,319 2,319 2,319
Share premium reserve 599 599 599 599
Other reserves 2,824 2,875 2,826 2,874
Retained earnings 3,876 3,720 3,266 3,193
Total equity 9,618 9,514 9,010 8,985
Total liabilities and equity 346,198 304,761 344,879 303,691
Assets pledged as security for own liabilities 34 43,426 35,061 43,426 35,056
Other assets pledged 35 5,017 4,393 5,017 4,393
Contingent liabilities 36 14,906 15,836 15,102 16,067
Credit commitments 37 16,021 15,882 13,297 13,422
Other commitments 37 769 721 452 326

Other notes

Note 1 Accounting policies

Note 2 Segment reporting

Note 38 Capital adequacy

Note 39 Classification of financial instruments
Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value

Note 41 Financial instruments set off on balancsubject to netting agreements

Note 42 Transferred assets and obtained collateral
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Note 43 Maturity bysés for assets and liabilities

Note 44 Related-party transactions

Note 45 Credit risk disclosures

Note 46 Interests in structured entities
&ld7 Mergers, acquisitions, disposals and dissolsit

Note 48 Nordasesh

Note 49 Transferred operations
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Statement of changes in equity

Group

Attributable to the shareholders of Nordea Bank Firland Plc
Other reserves

Share  Cash Available- Defined Non-
Share  premium flow for-sale Other benefit Retained controlling  Total
EURmM capital reserve hedges investments reserves  plans  earnings  Total interests _equity

Balance at 1 Jan 2014 2,319 599 -8 17 2,848 18 3,720 9,513 1 9514
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 902 902 - 902

Iltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to the income
statement

Currency translation differences
during the year - - - - - - 0 0 - 0

Available-for-sale investments:

- Valuation gains/losses during
the year - - - 33 - - - 33 - 33

- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - - -7 - - - -7 - -7

Cash flow hedges:

- Valuation gains/losses during
the year - - 29 - - - - 29 - 29

- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - -6 - - - - -6 R -6

- Transferred to the income
statement during the year - - -21 - - - - -21 - -21

- Tax on transfers to the income
statement during the year - - 4 - - - - 4 - 4

Items that may not be
reclassified subsequently to
the income statement

Defined benefit plans:

- Remeasurement of defined
benefit plans during the year - - - - - -104 - -104 - -104

- Tax on remeasurement of
defined benefit plans during

the year - - - - - 21 - 21 - 21
Other comprehensive income,

net of tax - - 6 26 0 -83 0 -51 - -51
Total comprehensive income - - 6 26 0 -83 902 851 - 851
Share-based payments - - - - - - 2 2 - 2
Dividend for 2013 - - - - - - -750 -750 - -750
Other changes - - - - 0 - 2 2 -1 1
Balance at 31 Dec 2014 2,319 599 -2 43 2,848 -65 3,876 9,618 0 9,618

* Total shares registered were 1,030.8 million (31 Dec 2013: 1,030.8 million). All the shares in Nordea Bank Finland Plc are held by Nordea Bank AB (publ). The carrying amount of
the shares corresponds to EUR 2.25 per share. Pursuant to the Articles of Association the Bank's minimum share capital is EUR 850m and maximum share capital EUR 3,400m.
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Statement of changes in equity  cont.

Group
Attributable to the shareholders of Nordea Bank Firiand Plc
Other reserves
Share  Cash Available- Defined Non-

Share  premium flow for-sale Other benefit Retained controlling  Total
EURmM capital reserve hedges investments reserves  plans  earnings  Total interests _equity
Balance at 1 Jan 2013 2,319 599 -35 13 2,848 -38 3,507 9,213 4 9,217
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 828 828 - 828
Iltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to the income
statement
Currency translation differences
during the year - - - - 0 - -3 -3 - -3
Available-for-sale investments:
- Valuation gains/losses during
the year - - - 3 - - - 3 - 3

- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - - 1 - - - 1 - 1

Cash flow hedges:
- Valuation gains/losses during

the year - - 36 - - - - 36 - 36
- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - -9 - - - - ) R 9

Iltems that may not be
reclassified subsequently to
the income statement

Defined benefit plans:

- Remeasurement of defined
benefit plans during the year - - - - - 73 - 73 - 73

- Tax on remeasurement of
defined benefit plans during

the year - - - - - -17 - -17 - -17
Other comprehensive income,

net of tax - - 27 4 0 56 -3 84 - 84
Total comprehensive income - - 27 4 0 56 825 912 - 912
Share-based payments - - - - - - 2 2 - 2
Dividend for 2012 - - - - - - -625 -625 - -625
Other changes - - - - - - 11 11 -3 8
Balance at 31 Dec 2013 2,319 599 -8 17 2,848 18 3,720 9,513 1 9514

* Total shares registered were 1,030.8 million (31 Dec 2012: 1,030.8 million). All the shares in Nordea Bank Finland Plc are held by Nordea Bank AB (publ). The carrying amount of
the shares corresponds to EUR 2.25 per share. Pursuant to the Articles of Association the Bank's minimum share capital is EUR 850m and maximum share capital EUR 3,400m.
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Statement of changes in equity  cont.
Parent company
Attributable to the shareholders of Nordea Bank Firtand Plc
Other reserves
Share Cash Available- Defined
Share  premium flow for-sale Other benefit Retained Total
EURmM capitat reserve hedges investments reserves plans earnings equity
Balance at 1 Jan 2014 2,319 599 -8 17 2,848 17 3,193 8,985
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 821 821
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to the income
statement
Currency translation differences
during the year - - - - - - - 0
Available-for-sale investments:
- Valuation gains/losses during
the year - - - 33 - - - 33
- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - - -6 - - - -6
Cash flow hedges: -
- Valuation gains/losses during
the year - - 29 - - - - 29
- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - -6 - - - - -6
- Transferred to the income
statement during the year - - -21 - - - - -21
- Tax on transfers to the income
statement during the year - - 4 - - - - 4
Iltems that may not be
reclassified subsequently to
the income statement
Defined benefit plans:
- Remeasurement of defined
benefit plans during the year - - - - - -101 - -101
- Tax on remeasurement of
defined benefit plans during
the year - - - - - 20 - 20
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax - - 6 27 -81 - -48
Total comprehensive income - - 6 27 -81 821 773
Share-based payments - - - - - - 2 2
Dividend for 2013 - - - - - - -750 -750
Other changes - - - - - - 0 0
Balance at 31 Dec 2014 2,319 599 -2 44 2,848 -64 3,266 9,010

* Total shares registered were 1,030.8 million (31 Dec 2013: 1,030.8 million). All the shares in Nordea Bank Finland Plc are held by Nordea Bank AB (publ). The carrying amount of
the shares corresponds to EUR 2.25 per share. Pursuant to the Articles of Association the Bank's minimum share capital is EUR 850m and maximum share capital EUR 3,400m.
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Statement of changes in equity  cont.

Parent company

Attributable to the shareholders of Nordea Bank Fitland Plc
Other reserves

Share Cash Available- Defined

Share  premium flow for-sale Other benefit Retained Total
EURmM capitat reserve hedges investments reserves plans earnings equity
Balance at 1 Jan 2013 2,319 599 -35 13 2,848 -35 3,037 8,746
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 780 780
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to the income
statement
Currency translation differences
during the year - - - - - - - -
Available-for-sale investments
- Valuation gains/losses during
the year - - - 3 - - - 3

- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - - 1 - R _ 1

Cash flow hedges:
- Valuation gains/losses during

the year - - 36 - - - _ 36
- Tax on valuation gains/losses
during the year - - -9 - - - R -9

Iltems that may not be
reclassified subsequently to
the income statement

Defined benefit plans:

- Remeasurement of defined
benefit plans during the year - - - - - 68 - 68

- Tax on remeasurement of
defined benefit plans during

the year - - - - - -16 - -16
Other comprehensive income,

net of tax - - 27 4 - 52 - 83
Total comprehensive income - - 27 4 - 52 780 863
Share-based payments - - - - - - 2 2
Dividend for 2012 - - - - - - -625 -625
Other changes - - - - - - -1 -1
Balance at 31 Dec 2013 2,319 599 -8 17 2,848 17 3,193 8,985

* Total shares registered were 1,030.8 million (31 Dec 2012: 1,030.8 million). All the shares in Nordea Bank Finland Plc are held by Nordea Bank AB (publ). The carrying amount of
the shares corresponds to EUR 2.25 per share. Pursuant to the Articles of Association the Bank's minimum share capital is EUR 850m and maximum share capital EUR 3,400m.

No decision was made during the financial yeassoi@é equity warrants or convertible bonds entitlimgubscription of shares in the NBF. At the end
of 2014, the NBF held no authorisations given ®y@eneral Meeting for issuance or buybacks of shaguity warrants or convertible bonds.
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Cash flow statement — Total operations

Parent company

EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Operating activities
Operating profit 1,164 1,079 1,046 987
Operating profit for the period from transferredt®aoperations -30 34 -37 36
Adjustments for items not included in cash flow 891 658 837 628
Income taxes paid -218 -282 -179 -239
Cash flow from operating activities before changem operating assets
and liabilities 1,807 1,489 1,666 1,412
Changes in operating assets
Change in loans to central banks 3,378 -40 3,378 -40
Change in loans to credit institutions -3,662 2,784 -3,945 3,662
Change in loans to the public 714 -13,375 1,083 -13,006
Change in interest-bearing securities -5,827 1,634 -5,827 1,634
Change in financial assets pledged as collateral 3191 -1,661 -1,319 -1,661
Change in shares -1,243 184 -1,243 182
Change in derivatives, net 1,136 -2,067 1,136 -2,068
Change in investment properties 8 -9 7 2
Change in other assets -8,009 2,046 -8,008 2,046
Changes in operating liabilities
Change in deposits by credit institutions 6,876 6,635 6,973 4,762
Change in deposits and borrowings from the public 5,042 11,051 -5,037 10,685
Change in debt securities in issue -565 -1,152 -565 -1,868
Change in other liabilities 228 -1,833 188 -1,789
Cash flow from operating activities -11,520 5,686 -11,513 3,953
Investing activities
Acquisition of business operations - 0 -4 -7
Sale ofbusiness operations 9 1 9 4
Dividends from associated companies 17 27 - -
Acquisition of associated undertakings - -2 - -
Sale of associated undertakings 5 2 5 0
Acquisition of property and equipment -53 -59 -55 -58
Sale of properties and equipment 6 13 0 1
Acquisition of intangible assets -21 -11 -10 -9
Sale of intangible assets 1 0 1 0
Net of investments in debt securities, held to mitytu 2,183 114 2,183 208
Purchase/sale of other financial fixed assets 2 - 3 -
Cash flow from investing activities 2,149 85 2,132 139
Financing activities
Issued subordinated liabilities 191 - 191 -
Amortised subordinated liabilities - -27 - -27
Dividend paid -750 -627 -750 -625
Other changes -34 39 -22 30
Cash flow from financing activities -593 -615 -581 -622
Cash flow for the year -9,964 5,156 -9,962 3,470
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 36,324 32,859 36,317 32,847
Translation difference -3,354 1,691 -3,356 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 29,714 36,324 29,711 36,317
Change -9,964 5,156 -9,962 3,470
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Cash flow statement — Total operations  cont.

Comments on the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement shows inflows and outflofwsash and cash equivalents during the year fat tperations. Nordea Bank Finland's cash
flow has been prepared in accordance with theestimethod, whereby operating profit is adjustedeftects of non-cash transactions such as
depreciation and loan losses. The cash flows assified by operating, investing and financing\atiis.

Operating activities

Operating activities are the principal revenue-pridg activities and cash flows are mainly derifredn the operating profit for the year with
adjustment for items not included in cash flow armbme taxes paid. Adjustment for non-cash iternkiges:

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Depreciation 36 39 33 31
Impairment charges 56 1 72 1
Loan losses 88 77 63 50
Unrealised gains/losses 51 476 52 475
Capital gains/losses (net) -10 -8 -9 -1
Change in accruals and provisions 66 312 73 310
Translation differences -10 2 1 1
Other 614 -241 552 -239
Total 891 658 837 628

Changes in operating assets and liabilities con§msssets and liabilities that are part of normadiness activities, such as loans, deposits did de
securities in issue. Changes in derivatives arerteg net.

Cash flow from operating activities includes inttrpayments received and interest expenses pdidhvtfollowing amounts:

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest payments received 2,006 1,880 1,754 1,643
Interest expenses paid -910 -708 -908 -706

Investing activities
Investing activities include acquisitions and disgls of non-current assets, like property and enery, intangible and financial assets.

Financing activities
Financing activities are activities that resultiranges in equity and subordinated liabilitieshsas new issues of shares, dividends and
issued/amortised subordinated liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents
The following items are included in Cash and caghivalents assets:

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 30,904 28,846 30,904
Loans to credit institutions, payable on demand 868 5,420 865 5,413
29,714 36,324 29,711 36,317

Cash comprises legal tender and bank notes irgfoirrencies. Balances with central banks con$idéeposits in accounts with central banks and
postal giro systems under government authority reviiee following conditions are fulfilled;

- the central bank or the postal giro system isidibed in the country where the institution is dsished

- the balance on the account is readily availabletane.

Loans to credit institutions, payable on demantuite liquid assets not represented by bonds or atterest-bearing securities. Loans to central
banks, payable on demand includes instruments vWEngea has the right to resell immediately.
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Accounting policies
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1. Basis for presentation

NBF's financial statements are prepared in accarelan
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations of such standards by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC), as endorsed by the EU
Commission. In addition, certain complementarysule
in the Finnish Accounting Act, the Finnish Credit
Institutions Act, the Financial Supervision Authgis
Regulations and Guidelines and the Decision of the
Ministry of Finance on the financial statements and
consolidated statements of credit institutions relge
been applied.

The disclosures, required in the standards,
recommendations and legislation above, have been
included in the notes, the Risk, Liquidity and Gabi
management section or in other parts of the “Firsnc
statements”.

On 27 February 2015 the Board of Directors approved
the financial statements, subject to final appr@fahe
Annual General Meeting on 9 March 2015.

2. Changed accounting policies and presentation

The accounting policies, basis for calculations and
presentation are, in all material aspects, unchéige
comparison with the 2013 Annual Report. The new
accounting requirements implemented during 2014 and
their effects on NBF's financial statements are
described below.
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20. EQUILY e e
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22. Share-based payment............cccoooiiiicemmmmeriiee e 58
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IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”,

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, IFRS 12

“Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities”, and

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures”

The new standards IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial
Statements”, IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements” and IFRS
12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities'ves|

as amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures” were implemented 1 January 2014
but has not had any significant impact on the faian
statements of Nordea.

IFRS 10 clarifies which entities should be includied
the consolidated accounts and how to perform the
consolidation. IFRS 10 did not change the scope of
consolidation for Nordea in 2014. IFRS 11 describes
the accounting for investments in entities in whiab
or more investors have joint control, typically &@%0
holding. Nordea has currently no such interests and
IFRS 11 has not had any impact on the financial
statements in 2014. IFRS 12 has added disclosures,
mainly regarding unconsolidated structured entities
These disclosures can be found in note 46 “Inteliast
structured entities”. The standard also includes
guidance on disclosures for subsidiaries and a&®%i
but these disclosure requirements are similareo th
previous disclosure requirements in IAS 27 and IAS
28.

The accounting requirements in IAS 28 are unchanged
apart from that the disclosure requirements haea be
moved to IFRS 12.
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Capital Adequacy Disclosure

The information presented in Note 38 has been adapt
to fulfil the disclosure recommendations regarding
capital adequacy published by the FIN-FSA
18.12.2014 — 87/2014. Main changes due to the
implementation of CCR are described in the footsote
of table “Summary of items included in own funds”.

3. Changes in IFRSs not yet applied by Nordea

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IASB has during 2014 completed the new standard for
financial instruments, IFRS 9 “Financial instrune¥nt
IFRS 9 covers classification and measurement,
impairment and general hedging and replaces the
current requirements for these areas in IAS 39SIBR

is effective as from annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018. Earlier application is pewdit

The EU commission has not yet endorsed IFRS 9 and
there is currently no official timetable for thisogess.
Nordea does not currently intend to early adopt the
standard.

The changes in classification and measurementare n
expected to have a significant impact on Nordea’s
income statement or balance sheet as the mixed
measurement model will be maintained. Significant
reclassifications between fair value and amortisest

or impact on the capital adequacy and large expssur
are not expected in the period of initial applioatibut
this is naturally dependent on the financial instemts
on Nordea’s balance sheet at transition. Nordeanbis
yet finalised the impact assessment.

The impairment requirements in IFRS 9 are based on
an expected loss model as opposed to the current
incurred loss model in IAS 39. In general, it is
expected that the new requirements will increaaa lo
loss provisions, decrease equity and have a negativ
impact on capital adequacy, but no impact on large
exposures, in the period of initial application.rblea
has not yet finalised the impact assessment.

The main change to the general hedging requirements
is that the standard aligns hedge accounting more
closely with the risk management activities. As tea
generally uses macro (portfolio) hedge accounting
Nordea’s assessment is that the new requiremehts wi
not have any significant impact on Nordea’s finahci
statements, capital adequacy, or large exposutbe in
period of initial application. Nordea has not yet
finalised the impact assessment.
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IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
The IASB has published the new standard, IFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The new
standard outlines a single comprehensive model of
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes current revenue recagnitio
standards and interpretations within IFRS, suclA&s
18 “Revenue”. The new standard is effective foruain
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with
earlier application permitted. The EU-commission is
expected to endorse the standard during the second
quarter 2015. Nordea does not currently intenchttye
adopt the standard. The standard does not apply to
financial instruments, insurance contracts or lease
contracts. Nordea has not finalised the investgabif
the impact on the financial statements but theezuirr
assessment is that the new standard will not haye a
significant impact on Nordea'’s financial statements
capital adequacy, or large exposures in the perfiod
initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 11 “Accounting for

Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operations”

The IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements”, which add new guidance on how to
account for the acquisition of an interest in afoi
operation that constitutes a business. The amertidmen
are effective for annual periods beginning on teralf
January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. Ehe
commission is expected to endorse the amendment
during the first quarter 2015. Nordea does notenty
intend to early adopt the amendments. As Nordea doe
not have any joint venture the assessment istieat t
amendments will not have any effects on Nordea’s
financial statements, capital adequacy or large
exposures in the period of initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture”

The IASB has amended the requirements in IFRS 10
and IAS 28 regarding sales and contribution oftasse
between an investor and its associate or jointurent
due to inconsistent treatment of gains and loskes o
such transactions in those standards. The amendment
should be applied prospectively to transactions tha
occur in annual periods beginning on or after Judayn
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The EU
commission is expected to endorse the amendments
during the fourth quarter 2015. Nordea does not
currently intend to early adopt the amendments. The
new requirements are not expected to have anyteffec
on Nordea'’s financial statements, capital adequacy,
large exposures in the period of initial applicatas

the new requirements are in line with Nordea’s eunirr
accounting policies.
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IFRIC 21 "Levies”

The IASB has published IFRIC 21 “Levies”. The
interpretation is effective for annual periods loedig
on or after 1 January 2014. The EU commission
endorsed this interpretation during 2014. In casitta
IFRS, the EU commission requires the standard to be
applied for annual periods beginning on or after 17
June 2014. Nordea will apply the interpretatiorram
1 January 2015. IFRIC 21 is an interpretation d® 1A
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Continge
Assets”. IFRIC 21 clarifies that if a levy is trigiged by
operating as a bank at the end the reporting pettied
liability for the levy is not recognised prior toet date.
Nordea’s assessment is that the new interpretatibn
not have any significant impact on Nordea’s finahci
statements, capital adequacy, or large exposuttbe in
period of initial application.

Other changes in IFRS

The IASB has published the following new or amended
standards that are assessed to have no impact on
Nordea’s financial statement, capital adequacyad
exposures in the period of initial application:

* IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

* Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: "Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation”

* Amendments to IAS 19: “Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions”

* “Annual Improvements to IFRSs, 2010-2012
Cycle”

* “Annual Improvements to IFRSs, 2011-2013
Cycle”

* “Annual Improvements to IFRSs, 2012-2014
Cycle”

4. Critical judgements and estimation
uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accozdan
with generally accepted accounting principles respji

in some cases, the use of judgements and estilmates
management. Actual outcome can later, to some gxten
differ from the estimates and the assumptions made.
this section a description is made of:

e the sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant ok
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, and

» the judgements made when applying accounting
policies (apart from those involving estimations)
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014

Critical judgements and estimates are in particular
associated with:

» the fair value measurement of certain financial
instruments

» the impairment testing of:
— goodwill and
— loans to the public/credit institutions

» the effectiveness testing of cash flow hedges

» the actuarial calculations of pension liabilitiesla
plan assets related to employees

» the valuation of investment properties

» the classification of leases

» the classification of Additional Tier 1 instruments

» the translations of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies

» the valuation of deferred tax assets

» claims in civil lawsuits.

Fair value measurement of certain financial
instruments

Nordea’s accounting policy for determining the fair
value of financial instruments is described in igecl0
“Determination of fair value of financial instruntsh
and Note 40 “Assets and liabilities at fair value”.
Critical judgements that have a significant imparct
the recognised amounts for financial instruments is
exercised when determining fair value of OTC
derivatives and other financial instruments thekla
guoted prices or recently observed market prices.
Those judgements relate to the following areas:

e The choice of valuation techniques

e The determination of when quoted prices fail to
represent fair value (including the judgement of
whether markets are active)

e The construction of fair value adjustments in order
to incorporate relevant risk factors such as credit
risk, model risk and liquidity risk

e The judgement of which market parameters that
are observable.

When determining fair value of financial instrument
that lack quoted prices or recently observed market
prices there is also a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. That estimation uncertainty is maialy
result of the judgement management exercises when:

» selecting an appropriate discount rate for the
instrument and

» determining expected timing of future cash flows
from the instruments.
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In all of these instances, decisions are based upon
professional judgement in accordance with Nordea’s
accounting and valuation policies. In order to easu
proper governance, Nordea has a Group Valuation
Committee that on an on-going basis reviews cfitica
judgements that are deemed to have a significant
impact on fair value measurements.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value using a valuation technique,
level 2 and 3 in the fair value hierarchy, was EUR
190,120m (138,488) and EUR 174,016m (132,026)
respectively at the end of the year.

Sensitivity analysis disclosures covering fair e of
financial instruments with significant unobservable
inputs can be found in Note 40 “Assets and ligb#itat
fair value”.

Estimation uncertainty also arises at initial razitign
of financial instruments that are part of largeustural
transactions. Although subsequently not necessarily
held at fair value such instruments are initially
recognised at fair value and as there is normally n
separate transaction price or active market foh suc
individual instruments the fair value has to be
estimated.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Nordea’s accounting policy for goodwill is descidia
section 15 “Intangible assets” and Note 21 “Intaieyi
assets” lists the cash generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The estimation ofrieitu
cash flows and the calculation of the rate used to
discount those cash flows are subject to estimation
uncertainty. The forecast of future cash flows is
sensitive to the cash flow projections for the rfeture
(generally 3-5 years) and to the estimated sector
growth rate for the period beyond 3-5 years. The
growth rates are based on historical data, updated
reflect the current situation, which implies estiiba
uncertainty.

The rates used to discount future expected casls flo
are based on the long-term risk free interestphte a
risk premium (post tax). The risk premium is basad
external information of overall risk premiums in
relevant countries.

Impairment testing of loans to the public/credit
institutions

Nordea’s accounting policy for impairment testirfg o
loans is described in section 13 “Loans to the ipubl
credit institutions”.

Management is required to exercise critical judgeine
and estimates when calculating loan impairment
allowances on both individually assessed and
collectively assessed loans. NBF's total lendinfipize
impairment allowances was EUR 149,734m (150,385)
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at the end of the year. For more information, seteN
13 “Loans and impairment”.

The most judgemental area is the calculation of
collective impairment allowances. When testing a
group of loans collectively for impairment, judgemhe
has to be exercised when identifying the eventgaand
the observable data that indicate that losses beep
incurred in the group of loans. Nordea monitors its
portfolio through rating migrations and a loss evsn
an event resulting in a negative rating migration.
Assessing the net present value of the cash flows
generated by the customers in the group of loasts al
includes estimation uncertainty. This includesube
of historical data on probability of default anddo
given default supplemented by acquired experience
when adjusting the assumptions based on historical
data to reflect the current situation.

Effectiveness testing of cash flow hedges
Nordea’s accounting policies for cash flow hedges a
described in section 9 “Hedge accounting”.

One important judgement in connection to cash flow
hedge accounting is the choice of method used for
effectiveness testing.

Where Nordea applies cash flow hedge accounting the
hedging instruments used are predominantly cross
currency interest rate swaps, which are always aeld
fair value. The currency component is designatea as
cash flow hedge of currency risk and the interest
component as a fair value hedge of interest rake ri
The hypothetical derivative method is used when
measuring the effectiveness of these cash flowdwdg
meaning that the change in a perfect hypothetigaps
is used as proxy for the present value of the catival
change in expected future cash flows on the hedged
transaction (the currency component). Critical
judgement has to be exercised when defining the
characteristics of the perfect hypothetical swap.

Actuarial calculations of pension liabilities and pan
assets related to employees

Nordea’s accounting policy for post-employment
benefits is described in section 19 “Employee
benefits”.

The defined benefit obligation for major pensioand
is calculated by external actuaries using demoggcaph
assumptions based on the current population. As a
basis for these calculations a number of actuaridl
financial parameters are used.

The estimation of the discount rate is subject to
uncertainty around whether corporate bond markets a
deep enough, of high quality and also in connedtion
the extrapolation of yield curves to relevant mitigs.

In Finland the discount rate is determined with
reference to corporate bonds. Other parametees, lik
assumptions about salary increases and inflatien, a
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based on the expected long-term development oéthes
parameters and also subject to estimation uncéytain
The main parameters used at year-end is disclosed i
Note 32 “Retirement benefit obligations” togethethw

a description of the sensitivity to changes in
assumptions. The defined benefit obligation was EUR
948m (788) at the end of the year.

Valuation of investment properties
Nordea’s accounting policies for investment proipsrt
are described in section 17 “Investment properties”

Investment properties are measured at fair valge. A
there normally are no active markets for investment
properties, the fair values are estimated based on
discounted cash flow models. These models are based
on assumptions on future rents, vacancy levels,
operating and maintenance costs, yield requirements
and interest rates.

The carrying amounts of investment properties were
EUR 2m (113) at the end of the year. See Note 23
“Investment properties” for more information on
amounts and parameters used in these models.

Classification of leases
Nordea'’s accounting policies for leases are desdrib
section 14 “Leasing”.

Critical judgement has to be exercised when clgisgjf
lease contracts. A lease is classified as a finbrase
if it transfers substantially all the risks and ezds
related to ownership. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substdntél
the risks and rewards related to ownership.

The central district properties in Finland that tkem
has divested are leased back. The duration okdse|
agreements was initially 3-25 years with renewal
options. The lease agreements include no transfers
ownerships of the assets by the end of the leasg te
nor any economic benefit from appreciation in vadfie
the leased properties. In addition, the lease temot
for the major part of the assets’ economic life.aAs
result, Nordea has classified these leases astojpera
leases. This judgement is a critical judgement lilaata
significant impact on the carrying amounts in the
financial statement.

More information on lease contracts can be found in
Note 22 “Leasing”.

Classification of Additional Tier 1 instruments

NBF has issued a perpetual subordinated instrument
where the interest payments to the holder areeat th
discretion of NBF and non-accumulating. This
instrument also includes a requirement for NBFag p
interest if the instrument is no longer allowed®
included in Tier 1 capital. If there is a requiram

pay interest based on the occurrence or non-oguwere
of an uncertain future event that is beyond therobn
of both the issuer and the holder of the instrumiet
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instrument shall be classified as a financial ligbi
The inclusion of the subordinated loan in Tier fitd
is decided by the regulators and is thus beyond the
control of NBF and the holder of the instrument.FNB
classifies the instrument as financial liability.

Assessing control for consolidation purposes

One decisive variable when assessing if Nordea
controls another entity is whether Nordea is exddee
variability in returns from the investment. For
structured entities where voting rights are not the
dominant factor when determining control, critical
judgement has to be exercised when defining when
Nordea is exposed to significant variability inuets.
Nordea’s critical judgement is that Nordea is ndiyna
exposed to variability in returns when Nordea ree®i
more than 30% of the return produced by the stradtu
entity. This is only relevant for structured erm#i
where Nordea also is the investment manager argd thu
have influence over the return produced by the
structured entity.

Another judgement relating to control is whether
Nordea acts as an agent or as a principal. For unit
linked and other contracts where the
policyholder/depositor decides both the amount and
which assets to invest in, Nordea is considerextt@s
an agent and thus does not have control.

Translation of assets and liabilities denominatechi
foreign currencies

Nordea'’s accounting policies covering the transfati
of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies is described in section 8 “Translatibn o
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies”.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

Nordea’s accounting policy for the recognition of
deferred tax assets is described in section 18é3ax
and Note 12 “Taxes”.

The valuation of deferred tax assets is influertngd
management’s assessment of Nordea’s future
profitability and sufficiency of future taxable pits
and future reversals of existing taxable temporary
differences. These assessments are updated and
reviewed at each balance sheet date, and are, if
necessary, revised to reflect the current situation

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets was EUR
43m (5) at the end of the year.

Claims in civil lawsuits

Within the framework of the normal business
operations, Nordea faces a humber of claims in civi
lawsuits and disputes, most of which involve reklty
limited amounts. Presently, none of the currerputiss
are considered likely to have any significant adeer
effect on Nordea or its financial position. Seeadiote
31 “Provisions” and Note 36 “Contingent liabilities
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5.  Principles of consolidation

Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the parent company Nordea Bank Finland
Plc, and those entities that the parent company
controls. Control exists when NBF is exposed to
variability in returns from its investments in ahet
entity and has the ability to affect those retuhrsugh
its power over the other entity. Control is genlgral
achieved when the parent company owns, directly or
indirectly through group undertakings, more than 50
per cent of the voting rights. For entities wheoting
rights does not decide control, see section “Stnect
entities” below.

All group undertakings are consolidated using the
acquisition method. Under the acquisition methbd, t
acquisition is regarded as a transaction whereby th
parent company indirectly acquires the group
undertaking’s assets and assumes its liabilitiels an
contingent liabilities. The group’s acquisition tas
established in a purchase price allocation analirsis
such analysis, the cost of the business combination
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date dfi@xge,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed an
equity instruments issued by the acquirer, in ergha
for the identifiable net assets acquired. Cosisctly
attributable to the business combination are exgukns

As at the acquisition date Nordea recognises the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilitiesuased
at their acquisition date fair values.

For each business combination Nordea measures the
non-controlling interest in the acquired businatsee

at fair value or at their proportionate share ef th
acquired identifiable net assets.

When the aggregate of the consideration transfénred
a business combination and the amount recognised fo
non-controlling interest exceeds the net fair vaifie

the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, the excess is reported as goodwilth
difference is negative, such difference is recogphis
immediately in the income statement.

Equity and net income attributable to non-contngjli
interests are separately disclosed on the baldrest,s
income statement and statement of comprehensive
income.

Intra-group transactions and balances between the
consolidated group undertakings are eliminated.

The group undertakings are included in the
consolidated accounts as from the date on which
control is transferred to Nordea and are no longer
consolidated as from the date on which control egas
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In the consolidation process the reporting from the
group undertakings is adjusted to ensure consigtenc
with the IFRS principles applied by Nordea.

Note 19 “Investments in group undertakings” lists t
major group undertakings in the NBF Group.

Investments in associated undertakings

The equity method of accounting is used for assedia
undertakings where the share of voting rights is
between 20 and 50 per cent and/or where Nordea has
significant influence. Significant influence is thewer
to participate in the financial and operating decis of
the investee but is not control over those policies
Investments within Nordea’s investment activities,
which are classified as a venture capital orgaioisat
within Nordea, are measured at fair value in
accordance with the rules set out in IAS 28 and 38S
Further information on the equity method is disebbs
in section 6 “Recognition of operating income and
impairment”.

Profits from companies accounted for under thetgqui
method are reported post-taxes in the income
statement. Consequently, the tax expense related to
these profits is not included in the income taxenge
for Nordea.

Nordea does generally not have any sales or
contribution of assets to or from associated
undertakings. Other transactions between Nordea and
its associates are not eliminated.

Note 20 “Investments in associated undertakingss li
the major associated undertakings in the NBF Group.

Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity created to accashph
narrow and well defined objective where voting tgh
are not the dominant factor in determining control.
Often legal arrangements impose strict limits an th
decision making powers of the management over the
on-going activities of a structured entity. The sam
consolidation requirements apply to these entibes,
as voting rights do not decide whether controltexis
other factors are used to determine control.

Power can exist due to agreements or other types of
influence over a structured entity. Nordea normhig
power over entities sponsored or established by
Nordea. Nordea has created a number of structured
entities to allow clients to invest in assets inedsn

by the structured entity. Some structured entitigsst
in tradable financial instruments, such as shamnds a
bonds (mutual funds). Structured entities can also
invest in structured credit products or acquiretsss
from customers of Nordea, although only one such
structured entity currently exists. Nordea is gatgr
the investment manager and has sole discretiontabou
investments and other administrative decisions and
thus has power over these entities.
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Typically, Nordea will receive service and comnigsi
fees in connection with the creation of the strrexdu
entity, or because it acts as investment manager,
custodian or in some other function. Such income is
normally not significant enough to expose Nordea to
variability in returns and will thus not trigger
consolidation. In some structured entities Nordes h
also supplied substantial parts of the fundindin t
form of fund units, loans or credit commitments. In
these structured entities Nordea is exposed to
variability in returns and as the power over these
entities affects the return, these structuredientére
consolidated. Nordea normally considers a share of
more than 30% of the return produced by a strudture
entity to give rise to variability and thus giventiml.
Variability is measured as the sum of fees receavsl
revaluation of assets held. For unit linked andpth
contracts where the policyholder/depositor decioth b
the amount and which assets to invest in, Nordea is
considered to act as an agent and does thus net hav
control.

Further information about consolidated and
unconsolidated structured entities is disclosedaie
46 “Interests in structured entities”.

Currency translation of foreign entities

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
euro (EUR), the presentation currency of the parent
company Nordea Bank Finland Plc. The current
method is used when translating the financial
statements of foreign entities into EUR from their
functional currency. The assets and liabilities of
foreign entities have been translated at the afpsin
rates, while items in the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at
the average exchange rate for the year. Translation
differences are accounted for in other comprehensiv
income and are accumulated in the translation veser
in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising frora th
acquisition of group undertakings are treatedexnst
in the same functional currency as the cash gengrat
unit to which they belong and are also translatdtiea
closing rate.

6. Recognition of operating income and
impairment

Net interest income

Interest income and expense are calculated and
recognised based on the effective interest ratbadet
or, if considered appropriate, based on a methaid th
results in an interest income or interest expenaeis
a reasonable approximation of using the effective
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interest rate method as basis for the calculafibe.
effective interest includes fees considered torbe a
integral part of the effective interest rate ofreahcial
instrument (generally fees received as compensation
for risk). The effective interest rate equals thie ithat
discounts the contractual future cash flows to the
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability.

Interest income and expenses from financial
instruments are, with the exceptions describedvinelo
classified as “Net interest income”.

Interest income and interest expense related to all
balance sheet items held at fair value in Markeds a
classified as “Net result from items at fair value’the
income statement. Also the interest on the netifighd
of the operations in Markets is recognised onlthes

The interest component in FX swaps, and the interes
paid and received in interest rate swaps plus @i
accrued interest, is classified as “Net result fitams

at fair value”, apart for derivatives used for hiedg
including economical hedges of Nordea'’s funding,
where such components are classified as “Net isttere
income”.

Net fee and commission income

Nordea earns commission income from different
services provided to its customers. The recognition
commission income depends on the purpose for which
the fees are received. Fees are either recognésed a
revenue when services are provided or in connetbion
the execution of a significant act. Fees received i
connection to performed services are recognised as
income in the period these services are provided. A
loan syndication fee received as payment for airgng
a loan, as well as other fees received as paynfemts
certain acts, are recognised as revenue when thasc
been completed, i.e. when the syndication has been
finalised.

Commission expenses are normally transaction based
and recognised in the period when the services are
received.

Income from issued financial guarantees and exgense
from bought financial guarantees, including feeis pa

to state guarantees, are amortised over the daratio
the instruments and classified as “Fee and comamissi
income” and “Fee and commission expense”
respectively.

Net result from items at fair value

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on fianci
instruments measured at fair value through profit o
loss are recognised in the item “Net result frosmis

at fair value”.
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Realised and unrealised gains and losses deriue fro

» Shares/participations and other share-related
instruments

* Interest-bearing securities and other interest-
related instruments

» Other financial instruments, including credit
derivatives as well as commodity
instruments/derivatives

» Foreign exchange gains/losses

* Investment properties, which include realised and
unrealised income, for instance revaluation gains
and losses. This line also includes realised result
from disposals as well as the running property
yield stemming from the holding of investment
properties.

Interest income and interest expense related to all
balance sheet items held at fair value in Markeds a
classified as “Net result from items at fair value’the
income statement. Also the interest on the netifighd
of the operations in Markets is recognised onlthes

Also the ineffective portion of cash flow hedgeslan
net investment hedges as well as recycled gains and
losses on financial instruments classified into the
category Available for sale are recognised in “Net
result from items at fair value”.

This item also includes realised gains and logses f
financial instruments measured at amortised cast) s
as interest compensation received and realised
gains/losses on buy-backs of issued own debt.

“Net result from items at fair value” includes also
losses from counterparty risk on instruments cliesksi
into the category Financial assets at fair valuettgh
profit or loss as well as impairment on instruments
classified into the category Available for sale.
Impairment losses from instruments within other
categories are recognised in the items "Net loasds”
or “Impairment of securities held as financial non-
current assets” (see also the sub-sections "Nat loa
losses” and “Impairment of securities held as faiain
non-current assets” below).

Dividends received are recognised in the income
statement as “Net result from items at fair valaat|
classified as “Shares/participations and othereshar
related instruments” in the note. Income is recegahi
in the period in which the right to receive paymisnt
established.

Profit from companies accounted for under the
equity method

The profit from companies accounted for under the
equity method is defined as the post-acquisiticamgie
in NBF's share of net assets in the associated
undertakings. NBF’s share of items accounted for in
other comprehensive income in the associated
undertakings is accounted for in other comprehensiv
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income in NBF. Profits from companies accounted for
under the equity method are, as stated in section 5
“Principles of consolidation”, reported in the imee
statement post-taxes. Consequently the tax expense
related to these profits is excluded from the inedax
expense for NBF.

Fair values are, at acquisition, allocated to the
associated undertaking’s identifiable assets, litads

and contingent liabilities. Any difference between
NBF's share of the fair values of the acquired
identifiable net assets and the purchase price is
goodwill or negative goodwill. Goodwill is included
the carrying amount of the associated undertaking.
Subsequently the investment in the associated
undertaking increases/decreases with NBF’s share of
the post-acquisition change in net assets in the
associated undertaking and decreases through eeceiv
dividends and impairment. An impairment charge can
be reversed in a subsequent period.

The change in Nordea’s share of the net assets is
generally based on monthly reporting from the
associated undertakings. For some associated
undertakings not individually significant the charig
Nordea'’s share of the net assets is based on temak
reporting of the associated undertakings and affiénet
financial statements of Nordea in the period inchhi
the information is available. The reporting frore th
associated undertakings is, if applicable, adjusied
comply with Nordea’s accounting policies.

Other operating income

Net gains from divestments of shares in group
undertakings and associated undertakings and irvet ga
on sale of tangible assets as well as other opgrati
income, not related to any other income line, are
generally recognised when it is probable that the
benefits associated with the transaction will fiw
Nordea and if the significant risks and rewardsehav
been transferred to the buyer (generally when the
transactions are finalised).

Net loan losses

Impairment losses from financial assets classifi¢al
the category Loans and receivables (see section 12
“Financial instruments”), in the items “Loans total
banks”, “Loans to credit institutions” and “Loarsthe
public” on the balance sheet, are reported as ldést
losses” together with losses from financial guazast
Losses are reported net of any collateral and other
credit enhancements. Nordea’s accounting polices f
the calculation of impairment losses on loans @n b
found in section 13 “Loans to the public/credit
institutions”.

Counterparty losses on instruments classifiedtimo
category Financial assets at fair value througffitpso
loss, including credit derivatives but excludinghs
held at fair value as described above, as well as
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impairment on financial assets classified into the
category Available for sale are reported under “Net
result from items at fair value”.

Impairment of securities held as financial non-
current assets

Impairment on investments in interest-bearings
securities, classified into the categories Loars an
receivables or Held to maturity, and on investméants
associated undertakings are classified as “Impaitme
of securities held as financial non-current assetstie
income statement. The policies covering impairnaént
financial assets classified into the categoriesnsaand
receivables and Held to maturity are disclosed in
section 12 “Financial instruments” and section 13
“Loans to the public/credit institutions”.

If observable indicators (loss events) indicaté #m
associated undertaking is impaired, an impairmesit t
is performed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. The carrying amount of the
investment in the associate is compared with the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less cost to sell) and the carrying amount is
written down to the recoverable amount if required.

Impairment losses are reversed if the recoverable
amount increases. The carrying amount is then
increased to the recoverable amount, but cannetseixc
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised.

7. Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments on the balance sheet

Derivative instruments, quoted securities and tprei
exchange spot transactions are recognised on and
derecognised (reclassified to the items “Othertasse
or "Other liabilities” on the balance sheet between
trade date and settlement date) from the balareet sh
on the trade date. Other financial instruments are
recognised on the balance sheet on settlement date.

Financial assets, other than those for which tdade
accounting is applied, are derecognised from the
balance sheet when the contractual rights to thk ca
flows from the financial asset expire or are transd
to another party. The rights to the cash flows ralyn
expire or are transferred when the counterpart has
performed by e.g. repaying a loan to Nordea, ie. o
settlement date.

In some cases, Nordea enters into transactionsewher
transfers assets that are recognised on the balance
sheet, but retains either all or a portion of riaks
rewards from the transferred assets. If all or
substantially all risks and rewards are retaineg, t
transferred assets are not derecognised from the
balance sheet. If Nordea’s counterpart can sell or
repledge the transferred assets, the assets are
reclassified to the item “Financial instrumentsdgled
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as collateral” on the balance sheet. Transferssdéta
with retention of all or substantially all riskscan
rewards include e.g. securities lending agreensamds
repurchase agreements.

Financial liabilities are derecognised from theabak
sheet when the liability is extinguished. Normahis
occurs when Nordea performs, for example when
Nordea repays a deposit to the counterpart, i.e. on
settlement date. Financial liabilities under tradée
accounting are generally reclassified to “Other
liabilities” on the balance sheet on trade date.

For further information, see sections “Securities
borrowing and lending agreements” and “Repurchase
and reverse repurchase agreements” within secflon 1
“Financial instruments”, as well as Note 42
“Transferred assets and obtained collaterals”.

8. Translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies

The functional currency of each entity is decideddd
upon the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates. Foreign currency is defined as any
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity. Foreign currency transactions are recoatdtie
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Moyet
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign awies
are translated at the exchange rate on the basneext
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
transactions at rates different from those at tite df
the transaction, and unrealised translation diffees
on unsettled foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities, are recognised in the income statenietie
item “Net result from items at fair value”.

Translation differences on financial instrumentst th
are designated hedging instruments in a hedgaef a
investment in a group undertaking are recognised in
other comprehensive income, to the extent the hexdge
effective. This is performed in order to offset the
translation differences affecting other comprehensi
income when consolidating the group undertaking int
Nordea. Any ineffectiveness is recognised in the
income statement in the item “Net result from iteahs
fair value”.

9. Hedge accounting

Nordea applies the EU carve out version of IAS@&9 f
portfolio hedges of both assets and liabilitiese HU
carve out macro hedging enables a group of deviegti
(or proportions thereof) to be viewed in combinatio
and be designated as the hedging instrument.dt als
removes some of the limitations in fair value hedge
accounting relating to hedging core deposits artrn
hedging strategies.
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Nordea uses hedge accounting in order to have a
symmetrical accounting treatment of the changdaiin
value of the hedged item and changes in fair vafue
the hedging instruments as well as to hedge the
exposure to variability in future cash flows and th
exposure to net investments in foreign operations.

There are three forms of hedge accounting:

» Fair value hedge accounting
» Cash flow hedge accounting
» Hedges of net investments

NBF currently applies fair value hedge accounting a
cash flow hedge accounting.

Fair value hedge accounting

Fair value hedge accounting is used when derivative
are hedging changes in fair value of a recognissdta
or liability attributable to a specific risk. Thisk of
changes in fair value of assets and liabilities in
Nordea’s financial statements originates mainlyrfro
loans, securities and deposits with a fixed interete,
causing interest rate risk. Changes in fair vatoenf
derivatives as well as changes in fair value of the
hedged item attributable to the risks being hedged
recognised separately in the income statementgin th
item “Net result from items at fair value”. Given a
effective hedge, the two changes in fair value mitire
or less balance, meaning the net result is clogeri.
The changes in fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risks hedged with the derivativ
instrument are reflected in an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the hedged item, which is also
recognised in the income statement. The fair value
change of the hedged items held at amortised o@st i
portfolio hedge of interest rate risks is reported
separately from the portfolio in the item “Fair val
changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedge of
interest rate risk” on the balance sheet.

Fair value hedge accounting in Nordea is performed
mainly on a portfolio basis. Any ineffectiveness is
recognised in the income statement under the iteet
result from items at fair value”.

Hedged items

A hedged item in a fair value hedge can be a
recognised single asset or liability, an unrecagphis
firm commitment, or a portion thereof. The hedged
item can also be a group of assets, liabilitiefror
commitments with similar risk characteristics. Hedg
items in Nordea consist of both individual assets o
liabilities and portfolios of assets and/or liaties.

Hedging instruments

The hedging instruments used in Nordea are
predominantly interest rate swaps and cross cuyrenc
interest rate swaps, which are always held at/ire.
Cash instruments are only used as hedging instrismen
when hedging currency risk.
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Cash flow hedge accounting

Cash flow hedge accounting can be used for the
hedging of exposure to variations in future interes
payments on instruments with variable interestsrate
and for the hedging of currency exposures. Thagort
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument, ithat
determined to be an effective hedge, is recognised
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
cash flow hedge reserve in equity. The ineffective
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instronig
recycled to the item “Net result from items at fair
value” in the income statement.

Gains or losses on hedging instruments recognised i
the cash flow hedge reserve in equity through other
comprehensive income are recycled and recognised in
the income statement in the same period as theededg
item affects profit or loss, normally in the perithcht
interest income or interest expense is recognised.

Hedged items

A hedged item in a cash flow hedge can be highly
probable floating interest rate cash flows from
recognised assets or liabilities or from futurectssr
liabilities. Nordea uses cash flow hedges when imedg
currency risk in future payments of interest and
principal in foreign currency.

Hedging instruments

The hedging instruments used in Nordea are
predominantly cross currency interest rate swaps,
which are always held at fair value, where theenty
component is designated as a cash flow hedge of
currency risk and the interest component as asédire
hedge of interest rate risk.

Hedge effectiveness

The application of hedge accounting requires tligbe
to be highly effective. A hedge is regarded as lgigh
effective if at inception and throughout its litecan be
expected that changes in fair value of the hediged i
as regards the hedged risk can be essentiallyt tffse
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument Th
result should be within a range of 80-125 per cent.
When assessing hedge effectiveness retrospectively
Nordea measures the fair value of the hedging
instruments and compares the change in fair vdlue o
the hedging instrument to the change in fair value
the hedged item. The effectiveness measurement is
made on a cumulative basis. The hypothetical
derivative method is used when measuring the
effectiveness of cash flow hedges, meaning that the
change in a perfect hypothetical swap is used @sypr
for the present value of the cumulative change in
expected future cash flows from the hedged traisact
(the currency component).
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If the hedge relationship does not fulfil the
requirements, hedge accounting is terminated. &or f
value hedges the hedging instrument is reclassified
trading derivative and the change in the fair valtie
the hedged item, up to the point when the hedge
relationship is terminated, is amortised to theine
statement on a straight-line basis over the remgini
maturity of the hedged item.

In cash flow hedges, changes in the unrealisecevafiu
the hedging instrument will prospectively from thet
time it was proven effective be accounted for im th
income statement. The cumulative gain or loss en th
hedging instrument that has been recognised in the
cash flow hedge reserve in equity through other
comprehensive income from the period when the hedge
was effective is reclassified from equity to “Nesult
from items at fair value” in the income statemdnhée
expected transaction no longer is expected to otfcur
the expected transaction no longer is highly prédab
but is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain
loss on the hedging instrument that has been
recognised in other comprehensive income from the
period when the hedge was effective remains inrothe
comprehensive income until the transaction occuis o
no longer expected to occur.

10. Determination of fair value of financial
instruments

Financial assets and liabilities classified inte th
categories Financial assets/liabilities at faitueal
through profit or loss (including derivative
instruments) are recorded at fair value on therfzala
sheet with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement in the item “Net result from iteahs
fair value”.

Fair value is defined as the price that at the
measurement date would be received to sell an asset
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transant
between market participants under current market
conditions in the principal market for the asset or
liability or, in the absence of a principal markietthe
most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The existence of published price quotations in@iva
market is the best evidence of fair value and wheg
exist they are used to measure financial assets and
financial liabilities. An active market for the as®r
liability is a market in which transactions for thsset
or liability occur with sufficient frequency and haone
to provide pricing information on an on-going basis
The absolute level for liquidity and volume reqdire
for a market to be considered active vary with the
instrument classes. For some classes low price
volatility is seen, also for those instruments witthe
class where the trade frequency is high. For
instruments in such a class the liquidity requiratae
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are lower and, correspondingly, the age limit far t
prices used for establishing fair value is higher.

If markets are active or non-active is assessed
regularly. The trade frequency and volume are
monitored daily.

Nordea is predominantly using published price
guotations to establish fair value for items diseld
under the following balance sheet items:

* Interest-bearing securities
» Shares (listed)
» Derivatives (listed)

If quoted prices for a financial instrument fail to
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions or if quoted prices are not availdiale,
value is established by using an appropriate vialat
technique. The adequacy of the valuation technique,
including an assessment of whether to use quoted
prices or theoretical prices, is monitored on ail@g
basis.

Valuation techniques can range from simple discedint
cash flow analysis to complex option pricing models
Valuation models are designed to apply observable
market prices and rates as input whenever possibte,
can also make use of unobservable model parameters.
The adequacy of the valuation model is assessed by
measuring its capability to hit market prices. Tikis
done by comparison of calculated prices to relevant
benchmark data, e.g. quoted prices from exchatiges,
counterparty’s valuations, price data from consgnsu
services etc.

Nordea is predominantly using valuation technicioes
establish fair value for items disclosed under the
following balance sheet items:

» Interest-bearing securities (when quoted prices in
an active market are not available)

» Shares (when quoted prices in an active market are
not available)

» Derivatives (OTC-derivatives)

For financial instruments, where fair value is restied
by a valuation technique, it is investigated whethe
variables used in the valuation model are
predominantly based on data from observable markets
By data from observable markets, Nordea considers
data that can be collected from generally available
external sources and where this data is judged to
represent realistic market prices. If non-observalaita
has a significant impact on the valuation, the
instrument cannot be recognised initially at the fa
value estimated by the valuation technique and any
upfront gains are thereby deferred and amortised
through the income statement over the contracifieal |
of the instrument. The deferred upfront gains are
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subsequently released to income if the non-obs&rvab
data becomes observable.

Note 40 “Assets and liabilities at fair value” pides a
breakdown of fair values of financial instruments
measured on the basis of:

» quoted prices in active markets for the same
instrument (level 1),

» valuation technique using observable data (level 2)
and

» valuation technigue using non-observable data
(level 3).

The valuation models applied by Nordea are consiste
with accepted economic methodologies for pricing
financial instruments and incorporate the facthag t
market participants consider when setting a price.

New valuation models are subject to approval by a
Model Risk Management Committee and all models
are reviewed on a regular basis.

For further information, see Note 40 “Assets and
liabilities at fair value”.

11. Cash and balances with central banks

Cash comprises legal tender and bank notes ingforei
currencies. Balances with central banks consist of
deposits in accounts with central banks, where the
following conditions are fulfilled:

* The central bank is domiciled in the country where
the institutions is established
» The balance is readily available at any time.

12. Financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments
Each financial instrument has been classified amte
of the following categories:

Financial assets:

» Financial assets at fair value through profit @sto
— Held for trading
— Designated at fair value through profit or loss
(fair value option)

* Loans and receivables

* Held to maturity

* Auvailable for sale

Financial liabilities:

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
loss:
— Held for trading
— Designated at fair value through profit or loss
(fair value option)

*  Other financial liabilities
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All financial assets and liabilities are initialtyeasured
at fair value. The classification of financial inghents
into different categories forms the basis for haete
instrument is subsequently measured on the balance
sheet and how changes in its value are recogrii$es.
classification of the financial instruments on Neats
balance sheet into different categories is presente
Note 39 “Classification of financial instruments”.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at faialue
through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fatue
through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
excluding transaction costs. All changes in faiuea
are recognised directly in the income statemettién
item “Net result from items at fair value”.

The category consists of two sub-categories; Haid f
trading and Designated at fair value through piafit
loss (fair value option).

The sub-category Held for trading mainly contains
derivative instruments that are held for trading
purposes, interest-bearing securities and shatésmwi
Markets and Treasury. It also contains trading
liabilities such as short-selling positions anddieg in
reverse repurchase agreements.

The major parts of the financial assets/liabilities
classified into the category Designated at faiugal
through profit or loss are certain other assetsilitees,
interest-bearing securities and shares.

Nordea also applies the fair value option on certai
financial assets and financial liabilities related
Markets. The classification stems from that Markets
managing and measuring its financial assets and
liabilities at fair value. Consequently, the matpof
financial assets and financial liabilities in Matkare
classified into the categories Financial assetafttial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets, with fixed or determinable payments, thet a
not quoted in an active market. These assets a&d th
impairment are further described in the separatgose
13 “Loans to the public/credit institutions”.

Held to maturity

Financial assets that Nordea has chosen to clasgify
the category Held to maturity are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payreent
and fixed maturity that Nordea has the positivernt
and ability to hold to maturity. Financial assets
classified into the category Held to maturity are
initially recognised on the balance sheet at the
acquisition price, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the instruments
within this category are measured at amortised tost
an amortised cost measurement, the difference betwe
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acquisition cost and redemption value is amortised
the income statement over the remaining term usiag
effective interest rate method.

If more than an insignificant amount of the Held to
maturity portfolio is sold or transferred the Hétd
maturity category is tainted, except for if theesat
transfer either occur close to maturity, after
substantially all of the original principal is adicty
collected, or due to an isolated non-recurring éven
beyond the control of Nordea.

Nordea assesses at each reporting date whetherisher
any objective evidence that the asset is impalfed.
there is such evidence, an impairment loss is detbr
The loss is calculated as the difference between th
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows and is recognised as “Impairnoént
securities held as financial non-current assetshién
income statement. See section 13 “Loans to the
public/credit institutions” for more information dghe
identification and measurement of objective evidenc
of impairment, which is applicable also for intdres
bearings securities classified into the categoriy ke
maturity.

Available for sale

Financial instruments classified into the category
Available for sale are measured at fair value. @ean

in fair values, except for interest, foreign exajp@an
effects and impairment losses, are recognisedeiffitin
value reserve in equity through other comprehensive
income. Interest is recognised in the item “Interes
income” and foreign exchange effects and impairment
losses in the item “Net result from items at faitue”

in the income statement.

When an instrument classified into the category
Available for sale is disposed of, the fair valiraeges
that previously have been accumulated in the faline
reserve (related to Available for sale investmeints)
other comprehensive income are removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement in the item
“Net result from items at fair value”.

Financial assets classified into the category Adéd
for sale are assessed in order to determine sty foe
impairment losses. If there is objective evidente o
impairment, the accumulated loss that has been
recognised in other comprehensive income is removed
from equity and recognised as “Net result from geah
fair value” in the income statement. The amourthef
accumulated loss that is recycled from equity és th
difference between the asset’s acquisition cost and
current fair value. For equity investments a prgkeh
or significant decline in the fair value, compatedhe
acquisition cost, is considered to be objectivelence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment dor
debt instrument is rather connected to a loss event
such as an issuer’s financial difficulty.
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Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than those classifieth the
category Financial liabilities at fair value thrdugrofit
or loss, are measured at amortised cost. Intenest o
Other financial liabilities is recognised in therit
“Interest expense” in the income statement.

Hybrid (combined) financial instruments

Hybrid (combined) financial instruments are consac
containing a host contract and an embedded derévati
instrument. Such combinations arise predominantly
from the issuance of structured debt instrumeintsh s
as issued index-linked bonds.

Index-linked bonds issued by Markets as part of the
trading portfolio are classified into the categbigid
for trading, and the entire combined instrumengtho
contract together with the embedded derivative, is
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cjesn
in fair values are recognised in the income staterime
the item “Net result from items at fair value”.

Securities borrowing and lending agreements
Generally, securities borrowing and securities ilegd
transactions are entered into on a collateralisesisb
Unless the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred, the securities are not recognised on o
derecognised from the balance sheet. In the cases
where the counterpart is entitled to resell oredge
the securities, the securities are reclassifieti¢o
balance sheet item “Financial instruments pledged a
collateral”.

Securities in securities lending transactions &e a
disclosed in the item “Assets pledged as secunity f
own liabilities”.

Cash collateral advanced (securities borrowingh¢o
counterparts is recognised on the balance sheet as
“Loans to central banks”, “Loans to credit instious”
or as “Loans to the public”. Cash collateral reeéiv
(securities lending) from the counterparts is reieep
on the balance sheet as “Deposits by credit inistiig”
or as “Deposits and borrowings from the public”.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
Securities delivered under repurchase agreemedts an
securities received under reverse repurchase
agreements are not derecognised from or recogoised
the balance sheet. In the cases where the courtterpa
has the right to resell or repledge the securitfes,
securities are reclassified to the balance sheet li
“Financial instruments pledged as collateral”.

Securities delivered under repurchase agreemests ar
also disclosed in the item “Assets pledged as #gcur
for own liabilities”.

Cash received under repurchase agreements is
recognised on the balance sheet as “Deposits bijt cre
institutions” or as “Deposits and borrowings frome t
public”. Cash delivered under reverse repurchase
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agreements is recognised on the balance sheet as
“Loans to central banks”, “Loans to credit instious”
or as “Loans to the public”.

Additionally, the sale of securities received inaese
repurchase agreements trigger the recognition of a
trading liability (short sale).

Derivatives

All derivatives are recognised on the balance saeét
measured at fair value. Derivatives with total fosi
fair values, including any accrued interest, are
recognised as assets in the item “Derivatives™en t
asset side. Derivatives with total negative falues,
including any accrued interest, are recognised as
liabilities in the item “Derivatives” on the lialiiy side.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses from
derivatives are recognised in the income stateinent
the item “Net result from items at fair value”.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Nordea offsets financial assets and liabilitiegen
balance sheet if there is a legal right to offsethe
ordinary course of business and in case of bankyupt
and if the intent is to settle the items net ofiseahe
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. T$is
generally achieved through the central counterparty
clearing houses that Nordea has agreements with.

Exchanged traded derivatives are generally accdunte
for as settled on a daily basis when cash is paid o
received and the instrument is reset to marketgerm
Derivative assets and liabilities against central
counterparty clearing houses are, as mentionedeabov
generally set off on the balance sheet, but nédt cas
collateral received or paid is generally accourfited
separately as cash collateral paid (asset) orvedei
(liability), which is also the case for cash cadiat

paid or received in bilateral OTC derivative
transactions. Cash collateral paid or received in
bilateral OTC derivative transactions are consetjpen
not offset against the fair value of the derivagive

Issued debt and equity instruments

A financial instrument issued by Nordea is either
classified as a financial liability or equity. &l
financial instruments are classified as a financial
liability if the contractual arrangement results in
Nordea having a present obligation to either delive
cash or another financial asset, or a variable murab
equity instruments to the holder of the instrumént.
this is not the case, the instrument is generally a
equity instrument and classified as equity, net of
transaction costs. Where issued financial instrusmen
contain both liability and equity components, thase
accounted for separately.

13. Loans to the public/credit institutions

Financial instruments classified as “Loans to the
public/credit institutions’lincluding loans to central
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banks) on the balance sheet and into the category
Loans and receivables are measured at amortiséd cos
(see also the separate section 7 “Recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments on the batan
sheet” as well as Note 39 "Classification of finehc
instruments”).

Nordea monitors loans as described in the separate
section on Risk, Liquidity and Capital management.
Loans attached to individual customers or groups of
customers are identified as impaired if the impainm
tests indicate an objective evidence of impairment.

Also interest-bearings securities classified it t
categories Loans and receivables and Held to nyaturi
are held at amortised cost and the descriptiorvbedo
valid also for the identification and measuremdnt o
impairment on these assets. Possible impairmesg$os
on interest-bearing securities classified into the
categories Loans and receivables and Held to nyaturi
are recognised as “Impairment of securities held as
non-current financial assets” in the income statgme

Impairment test of individually assessed loans
Nordea assesses all significant loans for impaitroan
an individual basis. The purpose of the impairment
tests is to find out if the loans have become imgzhi
As a first step in the identification process fmpiired
loans, Nordea monitors whether there are indicaibrs
impairment (loss event) and whether these lossteven
represent objective evidence of impairment. More
information on the identification of loss events dze
found in the Risk, Liquidity and Capital management
section.

Loans that are not individually impaired will be
transferred to a group of loans with similar risk
characteristics for a collective impairment test.

Impairment test of collectively assessed loans
Loans not impaired on an individual basis are
collectively tested for impairment.

These loans are grouped on the basis of similaitcre
risk characteristics that are indicative of thetde®
ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms. Nordea monitors its portfolio
through rating migrations, the credit decision and
annual review process supplemented by quarteity ris
reviews. Through these processes Nordea identifies
loss events indicating incurred losses in a gréulpss
event is an event resulting in a deterioratiorhef t
expected future cash flows. Only loss events irgzlirr
up to the reporting date are included when perfogmi
the assessment of the group.

The objective for the group assessment process is t
evaluate if there is a need to make a provisiontdue
the fact that a loss event has occurred, whicmbas
yet been identified on an individual basis. Thisiq
between the date when the loss event occurredhand t
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date when it is identified on an individual basis i
called “Emergence period”. The impairment remains
related to the group of loans until the losses Hmen
identified on an individual basis. The identificatiof
the loss is made through a default of the engagearen
by other indicators.

For corporate customers and bank counterparts,edord
uses the existing rating system as a basis when
assessing the credit risk. Nordea uses historaial dn
probability of default to estimate the risk for efault

in a rating class. These loans are rated and gdoupe
mostly based on type of industry and/or sensititaty
certain macro parameters, e.g. dependency toio#gr
etc.

Personal customers and small corporate customers ar
monitored through scoring models. These are based
mostly on historical data, as default rates and tages
given a default, and experienced judgement perfdrme
by management. Rating and scoring models are
described in more detail in the separate section on
Risk, Liquidity and Capital management.

The collective assessment is performed through a
netting principle, i.e. when rated engagementsipre
rated due to estimated increases in cash flows, thi
improvement will be netted against losses on ldhat
are down-rated due to estimated decreases in cash-
flows. Netting is only performed within groups with
similar risk characteristics where Nordea assebsds
the customers’ future cash flows are insufficient t
serve the loans in full.

Impairment loss

If the carrying amount of the loans is higher thiz
sum of the net present value of estimated cashsflow
(discounted with the original effective interedieda
including the fair value of the collaterals andesth
credit enhancements, the difference is the impaitme
loss.

For significant loans that have been individually
identified as impaired the measurement of the
impairment loss is made on an individual basis.

For insignificant loans that have been individually
identified as impaired and for loans not identifasd
impaired on an individual basis the measuremettief
impairment loss is measured using a portfolio based
expectation of the future cash flows.

If the impairment loss is not regarded as finad, th
impairment loss is accounted for on an allowance
account representing the accumulated impairment
losses. Changes in the credit risk and accumulated
impairment losses are accounted for as changégin t
allowance account and as "Net loan losses” in the
income statement (see also section 6 “Recognition o
operating income and impairment”).
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If the impairment loss is regarded as final, itaported
as a realised loss and the value of the loan and th
related allowance for impairment loss are
derecognised. An impairment loss is regarded as fin
when the obligor is filed for bankruptcy and the
administrator has declared the economic outcome of
the bankruptcy procedure, or when Nordea forgites i
claims either through a legal based or voluntary
reconstruction or when Nordea, for other reasoasird
it unlikely that the claim will be recovered.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure impairment is the
original effective interest rate for loans attache@n
individual customer or, if applicable, to a group o
loans. If considered appropriate, the discountcate
be based on a method that results in an impairthant
is a reasonable approximation of using the effectiv
interest rate method as basis for the calculation.

Restructured loans

In this context a restructured loan is defined kma
where Nordea has granted concessions to the obligor
due to its deteriorated financial situation and rett@is
concession has resulted in an impairment loss for
Nordea. After a reconstruction the loan is normally
regarded as not impaired if it performs accordmthe
new conditions. Concessions made in reconstructions
are regarded as loan losses unless Nordea retains t
possibility to regain the loan losses incurredthie

event of a recovery the payment is reported as a
recovery of loan losses.

Assets taken over for protection of claims

In a financial reconstruction the creditor may cee
loans to the obligor and in exchange for this cerimn
acquire an asset pledged for the conceded loaaesh
issued by the obligor or other assets. Assets taken
for protection of claims are reported on the same
balance sheet line as similar assets already lyeld b
Nordea. For example a property taken over, not held
for Nordea’s own use, is reported together witheoth
investment properties.

At initial recognition, all assets taken over for
protection of claims are recognised at fair valne the
possible difference between the carrying amouthef
loan and the fair value of the assets taken over is
recognised as “Net loan losses”. The fair valuthef
asset on the date of recognition becomes its ¢ost o
amortised cost value, as applicable. In subsequent
periods, assets taken over for protection of claines
valued in accordance with the valuation princigtas
the appropriate type of asset. Investment proysestie
then measured at fair value. Financial assetsatieat
foreclosed are generally classified into the catiego
Available for sale or Designated at fair value tigb
profit or loss (fair value option) (see section 12
“Financial instruments”) and measured at fair value
Changes in fair values are recognised in other
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comprehensive income for assets classified into the
category Available for sale. For assets classifital
the category Designated at fair value through pofi
loss, changes in fair value are recognised inrtberne
statement under the line “Net result from itemfaat
value”.

Any change in value, after the initial recognitioithe
asset taken over, is presented in the income statem
in line with the Group’s presentation policies fbe
appropriate asset. "Net loan losses” in the income
statement is, after the initial recognition of dsset
taken over, consequently not affected by any
subsequent remeasurement of the asset.

14. Leasing

NBF as lessor

Finance leases

Nordea’s leasing operations mainly comprise finance
leases. A finance lease is reported as a receifrate
the lessee in the balance sheet item “Loans to the
public” at an amount equal to the net investmenhén
lease. The lease payment, excluding cost of sexvise
recorded as repayment of principal and interesirme
The income allocation is based on a pattern refigct
constant periodic return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Operating leases

Assets subject to operating leases on the baldmest s
are reported in accordance with the nature of sisets,
in general as properties and equipment. Leasing
income is recognised as income on a straight-lassb
over the lease term and classified as “Net interest
income”. The depreciation of the leased assets is
calculated on the basis of Nordea’s depreciatidityo
for similar assets and reported as “Depreciation,
amortisation and impairment charges of tangible and
intangible assets” in the income statement.

NBF as lessee

Finance leases

No leases in NBF have been classified as finance
leases.

Operating leases

Operating leases are not recognised on NBF’s balanc
sheet. For operating leases the lease payments are
recognised as expenses in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unlessh&not
systematic way better reflects the time pattern of
Nordea’s benefit. The original lease terms normally
range between 3 to 25 years.

Operating leasing is mainly related to office pressi
contracts and office equipment contracts norm#hé¢o
business.

The central district properties in Finland that tkea
has divested are leased back. The duration ofteel
agreements was initially 3-25 years with renewal
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options. The lease agreements include no transfers
ownerships of the asset by the end of the leasg ter
nor any economic benefits from appreciation in galu
of the leased properties. In addition, the leasa ie

not for the major part of the assets’ economic life
These leases are thus classified as operatingsleEse
rental expense for these premises is recogniseideon
basis of the time-pattern of Nordea’s economic fiene
which differs from the straight-line basis and bett
resembles an ordinary rental arrangement.

Embedded leases

Agreements can contain a right to use an assetunrr
for a payment, or a series of payments, although th
agreement is not in the legal form of a leasing rean.
If applicable, these assets are separated from the
contract and accounted for as leased assets.

15. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable, non-monetasgs
without physical substance. The assets are under
Nordea'’s control, which means that Nordea has the
power and rights to obtain the future economic bene
flowing from the underlying resource. The intangibl
assets in Nordea mainly consist of goodwill, IT-
development/computer software and customer related
intangible assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of Nordea’s shafreet
identifiable assets of the acquired group
undertaking/associated undertaking at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of group
undertakings is included in “Intangible assets”.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is not
recognised as a separate asset, but included in
“Investments in associated undertakings”. Goodill
tested annually for impairment or more frequeritly i
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill cannot be reversed in subsequent periods.
Gooduwill related to associated undertakings is not
tested for impairment separately, but includechan t
total carrying amount of the associated undertaking
The policies covering impairment testing of assecia
undertakings is disclosed in section 6 “Recognitén
operating income and impairment”.

IT-development/Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programs are expensed as incurred. Costs directly
associated with major software development
investments, with the ability to generate future
economic benefits, are recognised as intangibletass
These costs include software development stafécost
and overhead expenditures directly attributable to
preparing the asset for use. Computer softwareded
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also acquired software licenses not related to the
function of a tangible asset.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basier
the useful life of the software, generally a perid@
to 10 years.

Customer related intangible assets

In business combinations a portion of the purchase
price is normally allocated to a customer related
intangible asset, if the asset is identifiable ander
Nordea’s control. An intangible asset is identifelf it
arises from contractual or legal rights, or coutd b
separated from the entity and sold, transferred,
licenced, rented or exchanged. The asset is amadrtis
over its useful life, generally over 10 years.

Impairment

Goodwill is not amortised but tested for impairment
annually irrespective of any indications of impagmh
Impairment testing is also performed more frequeiftl
required due to any indication of impairment. The
impairment charge is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount.

At each balance sheet date, all intangible asséts w
definite useful lives are reviewed for indicatiarfs
impairment. If such indications exist, an analysis
performed to assess whether the carrying amouthieof
intangible asset is fully recoverable.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair védiss
costs to sell and the value in use of the assgteor
cash-generating unit, which is defined as the ssall
identifiable group of assets that generates largely
independent cash flows in relation to other as$ets.
goodwill, the cash generating units are definethas
operating segments. The value in use is the present
value of the cash flows expected to be realisewh fitee
asset or the cash-generating unit. The cash floavs a
assessed based on the asset or cash-generatiing unit
its current condition and discounted at a rate thase
the long-term risk free interest rate plus a risknpium
(post tax). If the recoverable amount is less than
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

16. Property and equipment

Properties and equipment includes own-used
properties, leasehold improvements, IT equipment,
furniture and other equipment. ltems of propersied
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
cost of an item of properties and equipment corapris
its purchase price, as well as any directly atteble
costs of bringing the asset to the working condifior
its intended use. When parts of an item of propanty
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items.
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Properties and equipment is depreciated on a btraig
line basis over the estimated useful life of theets
The estimates of the useful life of different assee
reassessed on a yearly basis. Below follows thecur
estimates:

* Buildings: 30-75 years

* Equipment: 3-5 years

» Leasehold improvements: Changes within
buildings the shorter of 10 years and the remaining
leasing term. New construction the shorter of the
principles used for owned buildings and the
remaining leasing term. Fixtures installed in lehse
properties are depreciated over the shorter of 10—
20 years and the remaining leasing term.

At each balance sheet date, Nordea assesses whether
there is any indication that an item of propertg an
equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset imattd

and any impairment loss is recognised.

Impairment losses are reversed if the recoverable
amount increases. The carrying amount is then
increased to the recoverable amount, but cannetseixc
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised.

17. Investment properties

Investment properties are primarily properties held
earn rent and/or capital appreciation. The majarfty
the properties in Nordea are attributable to Noidéa
& Pensions. Nordea applies the fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment properties. Th
best evidence of a fair value is normally given by
guoted prices in an active market for similar pirtips
in the same location and condition. As these priges
rarely available discounted cash flow projection
models based on reliable estimates of future dastsf
are also used.

Net rental income, gains and losses as well ayédire
adjustments are recognised directly in the income
statement as “Net result from items at fair value”.

18. Taxes

The item “Income tax expense” in the income
statement comprises current- and deferred incore ta
The income tax expense is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent the tax effecteglm
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is
recognised in other comprehensive income or intgqui
respectively.
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Current tax is the expected tax expense on thélkaxa
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, ayd an
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previoasse

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognigsihg
the balance sheet method, for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and ligsilit
for financial reporting purposes and the amounésius
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for the carry forward of unused taxdess
and unused tax credits. Deferred tax is not resaghi
for temporary differences arising on initial recdgm
of assets or liabilities in a transaction thatas a
business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit, nor for differences
relating to investments in group undertakings and
associated undertakings to the extent that itobgiole
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable faitln
addition, deferred tax is not recognised for tagabl
temporary differences arising on the initial recitign
of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reportg d
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not distedinA
deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extentt
is probable that future taxable profits will be #afale
against which the temporary differences, tax losses
carry forward and unused tax credits can be utilise
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repatéitey
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be e

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitiescifget
when the legal right to offset exists. Deferred dazets
and deferred tax liabilities are generally off§ehere
is a legally enforceable right to offset current é&ssets
and current tax liabilities.

19. Employee benefits

All forms of consideration given by Nordea to its
employees as compensation for services performed ar
employee benefits. Short-term benefits are to bkede
within twelve months after the reporting period whe
the services have been performed. Post-employment
benefits are benefits payable after the termination

the employment. Post-employment benefits in Nordea
consist only of pensions. Termination benefits
normally arise if an employment is terminated befor
the normal retirement date, or if an employee aiscep
an offer of voluntary redundancy.
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Short-term benefits

Short term benefits consist mainly of fixed andiaale
salary. Both fixed and variable salaries are expemns
the period when the employees have performed
services to Nordea. Nordea has also issued shaegtba
payment programmes, which are further described in
section 22 “Share-based payment”.

More information can be found in Note 8 “Staff st

Post-employment benefits

Pension plans

The companies within Nordea have various pension
plans, consisting of both defined benefit pensiampg
and defined contribution pension plans, reflecting
national practices and conditions in the countwasre
Nordea operates. The major defined benefit pension
plans are funded schemes covered by assets iropensi
funds/foundations. If the fair value of plan assets
associated with a specific pension plan, is lowant
the gross present value of the defined benefigakitn
determined using the projected unit credit methioel,
net amount is recognised as a liability (“Retireten
benefit liabilities”). If not, the net amount iscegnised
as an asset (“Retirement benefit assets”). Nonddnd
pension plans are recognised as “Retirement benefit
liabilities “.

Most pensions are based on defined contribution
arrangements that hold no pension liability for dé&a.
All defined benefit pension plans are closed fowne
employees.

Pension costs

Obligations for defined contribution pension plams
recognised as an expense as the employee renders
services to the entity and the contribution payatle
exchange for that service becomes due. Nordea’s net
obligation for defined benefit pension plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimatieg t
amount of future benefit that employees have earned
for their service in the current and prior periotisat
benefit is discounted to determine its presente/alu
Actuarial calculations including the projected unit
credit method are applied to assess the presare vél
defined benefit obligations and related costs, thase
several actuarial and financial assumptions (as
disclosed in Note 32 “Retirement benefit obligatign

When establishing the present value of the oblbgati

and the fair value of any plan assets, remeasurtemen
effects may arise as a result of changes in aetuari
assumptions and experience effects (actual outcome
compared to assumptions). The remeasurement effects
are recognised immediately in equity through other
comprehensive income.
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When the calculation results in a benefit the recsen
asset is limited to the present value of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Social security contribution is calculated and aerted
for based on the net recognised surplus or déficit
plan and is included on the balance sheet as
“Retirement benefit liabilities” or “Retirement beit
assets”.

Discount rate in defined benefit pension plans

The discount rate is determined by reference tb hig
quality corporate bonds, where a deep enough market
for such bonds exists. Covered bonds are in this
context considered to be corporate bonds. In c@antr
where no such market exists the discount rate is
determined by reference to government bond yiétds.
Finland the discount rate is determined with with
reference to corporate bonds.

Termination benefits

As mentioned above termination benefits normally

arise if an employment is terminated before themadr
retirement date, or if an employee accepts an offer

voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits do not

arise if the employees have to continue performing

services and the termination benefits can be cersidi
to be normal compensation for those services.

Termination benefits are expensed when Nordearas a
obligation to make the payment. An obligation agise
when there is a formal plan committed to on the
appropriate organisational level and when Nordea is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, which
normally occurs when the plan has been communicated
to the group affected or to their representatives.

Termination benefits can include both short-term
benefits, for instance a number of months’ salang
post-employment benefits, normally in the form of
early retirement. Short-term benefits are classifie
“Salaries and remuneration” and post-employment
benefits as “Pension costs” in Note 8 “Staff costs”

20. Equity

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the portion ef n
assets of group undertakings not owned directly or
indirectly by Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

For each business combination, NBF measures the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree eithefiaat
value or at their proportionate share of the aems
identifiable net assets.
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Share premium reserve

The share premium reserve consists of the differenc
between the subscription price and the quota vaflue
the shares in Nordea’s rights issue. Transactistsdn
connection to the rights issue have been deducted.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise income and expenses,taet af
tax effects, which are reported in equity througjeo
comprehensive income. These reserves include fair
value reserves for cash flow hedges, financialtasse
classified into the category Available for sale and
accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit
pension plans, as well as a reserve for translation
differences.

Retained earnings

Apart from undistributed profits from previous ysar
retained earnings include the equity portion obxat
reserves. Untaxed reserves according to natioted ru
are accounted for as equity net of deferred tax at
prevailing tax rates in the respective country.

In addition, NBF’s share of the earnings in asdeda
undertakings, after the acquisition date, that hate
been distributed is included in retained earnings.

21. Financial guarantee contracts and credit
commitments

Upon initial recognition, premiums received in isdu
financial guarantee contracts and credit commitsient
are recognised as prepaid income on the balaneg. she
The guarantees and irrevocable credit commitments a
subsequently measured, and recognised as a piovisio
on the balance sheet, at the higher of eitherabeived
fee less amortisation, or an amount calculatetias t
discounted best estimate of the expenditure redudae
settle the present obligation. Changes in proviseme
recognised in the income statement in the item "Net
loan losses”.

Premiums received for financial guarantees are, as
stated in section 6 “Recognition of operating ineom
and impairment”, amortised over the guarantee gderio
and recognised as "Fee and commission income”an th
income statement. Premiums received on credit
commitments are generally amortised over the loan
commitment period. The contractual amounts are
recognised off-balance sheet, financial guararitees
the item “Contingent liabilities” and irrevocabledit
commitments in the item “Credit commitments”.

22. Share-based payment

Equity-settled programmes

Nordea has annually issued Long Term Incentive
Programmes from 2007 through 2012. Employees
participating in these programmes were grantedeshar
based equity-settled rights, i.e. rights to recsivares
for free or to acquire shares in Nordea at a dicpanit
discount compared to the share price at grant dae.
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value of such rights is expensed. The expensesiscba
on the estimated fair value of each right at goate.
The total fair value of these rights is determibaded
on the group’s estimate of the number of rights$ tha
will eventually vest, which is reassessed at each
reporting date. The fair value is expensed onaggit-
line basis over the vesting period. The vestingogeis
the period that the employees have to remain wiceer
in Nordea in order for their rights to vest. Market
performance conditions in Performance Share Il are
reflected as a probability adjustment to the ihitia
estimate of fair value at grant date. There is no
adjustment (true-up) for differences between esticha
and actual vesting due to market conditions.

Social security costs are also allocated over #stinvg
period. The provision for social security costs is
reassessed on each reporting date to ensure ¢hat th
provision is based on the rights’ fair value at the
reporting date.

For more information see Note 8 “Staff costs”.

Cash-settled programmes

Nordea has to defer payment of variable salarieeun
Nordic FSA’s regulations and general guidelinessas
also the case with the Executive Incentive Programm
(EIP). The deferred amounts are to some extent
indexed using Nordea’s TSR (Total Shareholders’
Return) and these “programmes” are cash-settlagsha
based programmes. These programmes are fully vested
when the payments of variable salaries are injtiall
deferred and the fair value of the obligation is
remeasured on a continuous basis. The remeasuiement
are, together with the related social charges,grised

in the income statement in the item “Net resultrfro

items at fair value”.

For more information see Note 8 “Staff costs”.

23. Related party transactions
Nordea defines related parties as:

» Shareholders with significant influence
e Group undertakings

e Associated undertakings

« Key management personnel

e Other related parties.
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All transactions with related parties are madeon a
arm’s length basis.

Shareholders with significant influence
Shareholders with significant influence are
shareholders that have the power to participatiedn
financial and operating decisions of NBF but do not
control those policies. Nordea and its group corgsn
are considered as having such a power.

Group undertakings

For the definition of group undertakings see sechio
“Principles of consolidation”. Further informatiam

the undertakings included in the NBF Group is found
in Note 19 “Investments in group undertakings”.

Group internal transactions between legal entéres
performed according to arm’s length principles in
conformity with OECD requirements on transfer
pricing. These transactions are eliminated in the
consolidated accounts.

Associated undertakings
For the definition of Associated undertakings see
section 5 “Principles of consolidation”.

Further information on the associated undertakings
included in the NBF Group is found in Note 20
“Investments in associated undertakings”.

Key management personnel
Key management personnel include the following

positions:
* The Board of Directors of NBF and Nordea Bank
AB (publ)

e The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
e The Group Executive Management (GEM).

For information about compensation, pensions and
other transactions with key management personeel, s
Note 8 “Staff costs”.

Other related parties

Other related parties comprise close family memteers
individuals in key management personnel. Other
related parties also include companies signifigantl
influenced by key management personnel in Nordea
Group as well as companies significantly influenbgd
close family members to these key management
personnel. Other related parties also include Nasde
pension foundations.

Information concerning transactions between Nordea
and other related parties is found in Note 44 “Rala
party transactions”.

59



Note 2 Segment reporting

Operating segments
Group

Measurement of Operating segments' performance
The measurement principles and allocation betwgenating segments follow the information reportethie Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM), as required by IFRS 8. In NBF the CODM basgn defined as Group Executive Management.

Basis of segmentation

Financial results are presented for the two masgirtass areas Retail Banking and Wholesale Bantiitly further breakdown on operating
segments, and for the operating segment Group @gpGentre. Other operating segments below thetitia/e thresholds in IFRS 8 are

included in Other operating segments. Group funsti&nd eliminations as well as the result thabidully allocated to any of the operating
segments, are shown separately as reconciling.items

Reportable Operating segments

Retail Banking conducts a full service banking agien and offers a wide range of products. It isdéa’s largest customer area and serves
household customers and corporate customers iNdhgic markets (Retail Banking Nordic) as well s Baltic countries (Retail Banking
Baltic). Wholesale Banking provides banking anceotinancial solutions to large Nordic and interoaal corporate, institutional and public
companies. The division Corporate & InstitutionalnRing is a customer oriented organisation serthiedargest globally operating corporates.
This division is also responsible for Nordea's eomrs within the financial sector, and offers stngloducts such as funds and equity products
as well as consulting services within asset allooand fund sales. The division Shipping, Oil $&8 & International is responsible for
Nordea's customers within the shipping, offshom @ihservices industries and provides tailormaslat®ons and syndicated loan transactions.
Capital Markets unallocated includes the resu@apital Markets which is not allocated to the naisiness areas. Group Corporate Centre's
main objective is to manage the Group's fundingtarglipport the management and control of the NB¥u@ The main income in Group
Corporate Centre originates from Group Treasury.

Retail Banking Wholesale Banking Group Corporatatze
Income statement, EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 849 811 289 294 53 85
Net fee and commission income 642 622 -180 -186 -8 -5
Net result from items at fair value 134 91 822 101 29 -9
Profit from companies accounted for under the gquit
method 3 7 - - - -
Other income 15 27 2 0 7 8
Total operating income 1,643 1,558 933 1,119 81 79
Staff costs -333 -351 -150 -146 -46 -41
Other expenses -412 -485 -39 -36 4 9
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges
of tangible and intangible assets -22 -22 -5 -8 -6 -7
Total operating expenses -767 -858 -194 -190 -48 -39
Profit before loan losses 876 700 739 929 33 40
Net loan losses -118 -100 -9 -52 2 17
Impairment of securities held as financial non-entr
assets - - - - - -
Operating profit 758 600 730 877 35 57
Income tax expense - - - - - -
Net profit for the year 758 600 730 877 35 57
Balance sheet, EURmM
Loans to the public 53,754 59,101 59,719 55,081 0 -83
Deposits and borrowings from the public 33,452 39,3 37,046 43,056 5,955 496
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Note 2 Segment reporting, cont.

Operating segments

Group

Total operating

segments Reconciliation Total Group
Income statement, EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 1,191 1,190 -2 -7 1,189 1,183
Net fee and commission income 454 431 -379 -544 75 -113
Net result from items at fair value 985 1,093 -15 21 970 1,114
Profit from companies accounted for
under the equity method 3 7 0 1 3 8
Other income 24 35 17 -3 41 32
Total operating income 2,657 2,756 -379 -532 2,278 2,224
Staff costs -529 -538 -30 -15 -559 -553
Other expenses -447 -512 14 46 -433 -466
Depreciation of tangible and intangible
assets -33 -37 -59 -3 -92 -40
Total operating expenses -1,009 -1,087 -75 28 -1,084 -1,059
Profit before loan losses 1,648 1,669 -454 -504 1,194 1,165
Net loan losses -125 -135 65 82 -60 -53
Impairment of securities held as
financial non-current asset - - 1 - 1
Operating profit 1,523 1,534 -389 -421 1,134 1,113
Income tax expense - - -232 -285 -232 -285
Net profit for the year 1,523 1,534 -621 -706 09 828
Balance sheet, EURm
Loans to the public 113,473 114,099 275 -320 3,248 113,779
Deposits and borrowings from the
public 76,453 80,911 427 -2 76,879 80,909
Break-down of Retail Banking
Retail Banking Retail Banking Total
Nordic* Retail Banking Baltit Othef Retail Banking
Income statement, EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 770 674 70 162 9 -26 849 811
Net fee and commission income 657 580 -11 46 -3 -4 642 622
Net result from items at fair value 117 95 15 -3 2 0 134 91
Profit from companies accounted for
under the equity method - - - - 2 7 3 7
Other income 19 35 4 3 -8 -11 15 27
Total operating income 1,563 1,384 78 208 2 -34 1,643 1,558
Staff costs -255 -254 -14 -29 -64 -68 -333 -351
Other expenses -482 -495 -4 -62 74 72 -412 -485
Depreciation of tangible and intangible
assets -10 -6 -1 -2 -12 -14 -22 -22
Total operating expenses -747 -755 -19 -93 -2 -10 -767 588
Profit before loan losses 816 629 59 115 0 -44 876 700
Net loan losses -72 -57 -39 -42 -7 -1 -118 -100
Operating profit 744 572 20 73 -7 -45 758 600
Income tax expense - - - - - - - -
Net profit for the year 744 572 20 73 -7 -45 758 600
Balance sheet, EURmM
Loans to the public 46,693 45,479 1,403 8,195 5,658 5,428 53,754 59,101
Deposits and borrowings from the
public 33,437 33,714 12 3,641 3 4 33,452 37,359
® Retail Banking Nordic includes banking operations in Finland.
2 Retail Banking Baltic includes banking operations in Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania.
®Retail Banking Other includes the support areas Development & Projects, Distribution, Segments, Products and IT.
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Note 2 Segment reporting, cont.

Break-down of Wholesale Banking

Corporate & Institutional

Shipping, Offshore &

Banking Oil Services
Income statement, EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 164 161 117 113
Net fee and commission income 154 156 29 20
Net result from items at fair value 58 66 11 12
Profit from companies accounted for under the
equity method - - - -
Other income 0 0 0 -
Total operating income 376 383 157 145
Staff costs -13 -6 -6 -9
Other expenses -100 -105 -20 -14
Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets 0 0 0 0
Total operating expenses -113 -111 -26 -23
Profit before loan losses 263 272 131 122
Net loan losses -27 -20 19 -36
Operating profit 236 252 150 86
Income tax expense - - - -
Net profit for the year 236 252 150 86
Balance sheet, EURm
Loans to the public 9,856 9,161 4,835 4,423
Deposits and borrowings from the public 10,556 7,319 2,202 1,853
Capital Markets Wholesale Banking Total
unallocated Othef Wholesale Banking
Income statement, EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 2 4 5 16 289 294
Net fee and commission income -381 -389 18 27 -180 -186
Net result from items at fair value 722 890 31 42 228 1,011
Profit from companies accounted for under the
equity method - - - - - -
Other income 2 0 0 0 2 0
Total operating income 345 505 54 85 933 1,119
Staff costs -75 -73 -56 -57 -150 -146
Other expenses 42 51 39 33 -39 -36
Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets -3 4 - -2 -4 -5 -8
Total operating expenses -36 -26 -19 -28 -194 -190
Profit before loan losses 309 479 35 57 739 929
Net loan losses - - -1 3 -9 -52
Operating profit 309 479 34 60 730 877
Income tax expense - - - - - -
Net profit for the year 309 479 34 60 730 877
Balance sheet, EURm
Loans to the public 44,777 40,176 251 1,321 59,719 55,081
Deposits and borrowings from the public 24,285 28,9 3 6,961 37,046 43,056
“Wholesale Banking Other includes the area International Units and the support areas Transaction Products, Segment CIB and IT.
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Note 2 Segment reporting, cont.

Reconciliation between total operating segments arfthancial statements

Deposits and

Total operating borrowings from
income Operating profit Loans to the public the public
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total Operating segments 2,657 2,756 1,523 1,534 3,413 114,099 76,453 80,911
Group function’ -379 -526 -389 -421 283 -2 429 10
Eliminations 0 -6 - - -8 -318 -3 -12
Total 2,278 2,224 1,134 1,113 113,748 113,779 7%,87 80,909

* Consists of Group Risk Management, Group Internal Audit, Group Identity & Communications, Group Human Resources, Board of Directors and Group Executive
Management.

Group

Total operating income split on product groups

EURmM 2014 2013
Banking products 1,725 1,539
Capital Markets products 542 675
Savings Products & Asset Management - -
Life & Pensions 11 10
Other - -
Total 2,278 2,224

Banking products consists of three different pradyges. Account products include account-basedymis such as lending, deposits, cards and
Netbank services. Transaction products consisasi ecnanagement as well as trade and project firsgreEes. Financings products include
asset-based financing through leasing, hire puecaad factoring as well as sales to finance pastsigch as dealers, vendors and retailers.
Capital Markets products contains financial instents, or arrangement for financial instrunsetfiat are available in the financial marketplace,
including currencies, commodities, stocks and bo8dsings products & Asset Management includesstmvent Funds, Discretionary
Management, Portfolio Advice, Equity Trading anah$len Accounts. Investment Funds is a bundled mioghere the fund company invest in
stocks, bonds, derivatives or other standardisedyats on behalf of the fund's shareholders. Dicrary Management is a service providing
the management of an investment portfolio on beffalfie customer and Portfolio Advise is a seryirevided to support the customers’
investment decision.

Group
Geographical information
Total

operating income Assets
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Sweden 69 100 21,087 15,886
Finland 1,484 1,177 115,625 97,083
Norway 44 113 9,427 6,431
Denmark 278 361 145,439 111,258
Baltic countries 82 176 1,415 9,721
Poland 3 9 - 123
Other 318 288 53,205 64,259
Total 2,278 2,224 346,198 304,761

NBF's main geographical market comprises the Notdiantries and the Baltic countries. Revenues agets are distributed to geographical
areas based on the location of customer operati@mzdwill is allocated to different countries basedthe location of the business activities of
the acquired entities.
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Note 3 Net interest income

Group Parent company

EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest income

Loans to credit institutions 128 65 156 97
Loans to the public 1,460 1,571 1,171 1,295
Interest-bearing securities 146 142 146 142
Other interest income 72 71 78 79
Interest incomé* 1,806 1,849 1,551 1,613

* Of which contingent leasing income amounts to EUR 32m (15). Contingent leasing income in Nordea consists of variable interest rates, excluding the fixed margin. If the
contingent leasing income decreases there will be an offsetting impact from lower funding expenses.

Interest expense

Deposits by credit institutions -250 -289 -248 -287
Deposits and borrowings from the public -151 -191 -151 -192
Debt securities in issue -408 -419 -408 -419
Subordinated liabilities -23 -25 -23 -25
Other interest expense 215 258 215 258
Interest expense -617 -666 -615 -665
Net interest income 1,189 1,183 936 948

2 The net interest income from derivatives, measured at fair value and related to Nordea's funding can have both a positive and negative impact on other interest expense, for
further information see Note 1.

Interest income from financial instruments not nueed at fair value through profit and loss amototS8UR 1,664m (1,724) for the Group and
EUR 1,409m (1,488) for the parent company. Inteegpense from financial instruments not measurédaimavalue through profit and loss
amounts to EUR -834m (-924) for the Group and EBB3m (-923) for the parent company.

Interest on impaired loans amounted to an insicguifi portion of interest income.

Note 4 Net fee and commission income

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Asset Management commissions 69 59 69 59
Life insurance 9 9 10 9
Brokerage, securities issues and corporate finance 75 46 75 46
Custody and issuer services 28 23 28 24
Deposits 5 7 5 7
Total savings and investments 186 144 187 145
Payments 198 200 200 202
Cards 128 129 92 93
Total payments and cards 326 329 292 295
Lending 129 122 126 112
Guarantees and documentary payments 120 132 120 132
Total lending related to commissions 249 254 246 244
Other commission income 33 32 32 31
Fee and commission income 794 759 757 715
Savings and investments -360 -332 -360 -332
Payments -11 -10 -9 -7
Cards -58 -63 -56 -62
Other commission expenses -290 -467 -287 -465
Fee and commission expenses -719 -872 -712 -866
Net fee and commission income 75 -113 45 -151

: Mainly consists of Finnish bank tax and guarantee commission fee paid to Nordea Bank AB (publ)

Fee income, not included in determining the effecitnterest rate, from financial assets and liaégdinot measured at fair value through profit
or loss amounted to EUR 134m (129) for the GroupEEdR 131m (119) for the parent company.

Fee income, not included in determining the effectnterest rate, from fiduciary activities thagué in the holding or investing of assets on
behalf of customers amounted to EUR 153m (114)HeiGroup and EUR 153m (114) for the parent company
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Note 5 Net result from items at fair value

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Shares/participations and other share-relatecuimsnts 342 93 342 92
Interest-bearing securities and other interestedlamstruments 734 -2 733 -2
Other financial instruments 406 90 406 90
Foreign exchange gains/losses -499 939 -502 934
Investment properties -13 -6 -4 -4
Total 970 1,114 975 1,110
Net result from categories of financial instruments

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Available for sale assets, realised 21 -16 21 -16
Financial instruments designated at fair valueuloprofit or loss 159 163 158 164
Financial instruments held for tradihg 1,313 22 1,313 20
Financial instruments under fair value hedge actiogn 4 7 4 7
- of which net result on hedging instruments 179 -157 179 -157
- of which net result on hedged items -174 164 -174 164
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 6 1 6 1
Foreign exchange gains/losses excl currency hedges -518 941 -521 938
Other -15 -4 -6 -4
Total 970 1,114 975 1,110
* Of which amortised deferred day one profits amounted to EUR -3m for 2014 (2) both for the Group and the parent company.
2 of which EUR 6m (1) related to instruments classified into the category "Loans and receivables".
Note 6 Dividends

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Investments in group undertakings - - 100 101
Investments in associated undertakings - - 17 27
Total - - 117 128
Note 7 Other operating income

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Divestment of shares 9 1 9 -
Income from real estate 6 2 1
Disposals of tangible and intangible assets 2 4 0
Other 24 25 19 24
Total 41 32 29 26
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Note 8 Staff costs

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Salaries and remuneration -420 -426 -394 -397
Pension costs (specification below) -62 -60 -58 -56
Social security contributions -35 -30 -33 -27
Allocation to profit-sharing foundatidn -19 -11 -18 -11
Other staff costs -23 -26 -22 -25
Total -559 -553 -525 -516

* Allocation to profit-sharing foundation 2014 EUR 19m (11) in the Group and EUR 18m (11) in the parent company consists of a new allocation of EUR 18m (12) in the Group
and EUR 17m (11) in the parent company and expenses related to prior years of EUR 1m (-1) in the Group and EUR 1m (-1) in the parent company.

Group Parent company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Pension costs:
Defined benefit plans (Note 33) 1 0 1 1
Defined contribution plans -63 -60 -60 -57
Total -62 -60 -59 -56

Additional disclosures on remuneration under NordicFSAs' regulation and general guidelines (includingeU Commission Regulation

604/2014)
The qualitative disclosures under these regulatiamsbe found in the separate section on remuperatithe Board of Director's Report, while

the quantitative disclosures will be published Beaarate report on Nordea's homepage (www.noaagaane week before the Annual
General Meeting on 19 March 2015.

Compensation etc. to the Board of Directors, Presiht and his deputy

The members of the Board of Directors of Nordeal®&nland Plc and the President, are all membetseoNordea Bank AB (publ) Group
Executive Management except for the one externailnee Carl-Johan Granvik. The monthly fee for theemal Board member was 1,250
euros, totalling 15,000 euros in 2014 (15,000). iftoathly fee for committee work for Carl-Johan Gritrwas 500 euros, totalling 6,000 euros
in 2014. In 2014 Nordea Bank AB (publ) has paidsalkries, fees, pension- and other staff-relatpéreses to the above mentioned other
members of the Board and the President. Nordea BBnfpubl) has allocated these salary expenseotded Bank Finland Plc as part of the
Head Office Allocation expenses.

Information on salaries, loans and pension liaegibf the above mentioned other members of thedBarad the President is presented in the
Annual Report of Nordea Bank AB (publ).

Remuneration to the President of Nordea Bank Finlad Plc and Deputy to the President of Nordea Bank Rland Plc

GEM
Excutive Long Term
Incentive Incentive
Fixed salary Programme Programme Benefits Total

EUR 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc
(employed by Nordea Bank AB (publ)):
Ari Kaperi 641,204 416,300 184,767 16,016 1,258,287
Deputy to the President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc:
Topi Manner 367,646 132,600 81,342 15,916 597,504

Defined benefit pension obligation for the Prestd®Nordea Bank Finland Plc amounted to EUR 1 998 and for Carl-Johan Granvik to
EUR 4 161 101. Both amounts are included in thesipanobligations of Nordea Bank AB (publ). Therais/earend no defined benefit plan for
the Deputy of the President.

Defined benefit pension obligation for the formeestdents and Deputies of the President of Norde&k Binland Plc amounted to EUR 5 427
979 of which EUR 1 738 049 is included in the pensibligations of Nordea Bank AB (publ).
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Loans to key management personnel

Loans granted Loans granted

by NBF Paid interest by NBF Paid interest
EUR 2014 2014 2013 2013
President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc
(employed by Nordea Bank AB (publ)):
Ari Kaperi - - - -
Deputy to the President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc:
Topi Manner 603,633 5,286 636,630 2,581
To members and deputy members of the Board of Direof NBF 397,884 8,932 422,892 8,962
Total 1,001,517 14,218 1,059,522 11,543

Loans granted Loans granted
by NBF by NBF
Group Paid interest Group Paid interest

EUR 2014 2014 2013 2013
President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc
(employed by Nordea Bank AB (publ)):
Ari Kaperi 759 0 0 0
Deputy to the President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc:
Topi Manner 604,318 5,286 636,630 2,581
To members and deputy members of the Board of Direof NBF 400,943 8,932 422,892 8,962
Total 1,006,020 14,218 1,059,522 11,543

Loans to key management personnel as defined i@ Neection 23 amounted to EUR 615,720 (636, 78)erGroup and EUR 578,094
(619,287) in the parent company. Interest incomthese loans amounted to EUR 21,986 (9,851) ittioep and EUR 21,984 (9,613) in the
parent company.

Terms and conditions regarding loans for key mamege personnel employed by Nordea are decidedciordance with instructions issued by
the Board of Directors of NBF. Loans to family nieens of key management personnel are granted omahararket terms, as well as loans to
key management who are not employees of Nordd@nland the employee interest rate for loans grhhtfore 1 September 2014
corresponds to Nordea's funding cost with a maw§itD basis points up to EUR 400,000, and 30 hzsigts on the part that exceeds EUR
400,000. Interest rate for loans granted as frddedtember 2014 corresponds to Nordea's fundingaétisa margin of 40 basis points up to
EUR 400,000, and 60 basis points on the part ttetezls EUR 400,000.

The Group has not pledged any assets or otheterallaor committed to contingent liabilities on b#tof any key management personnel.

Guarantees and other off-balance-sheet commitments
No guarantees or other off-balance-sheet commitrente been granted to members of administratieemrolling boards or to auditors.

The members of the administrative and controllingrds have no holdings of shares, equity warrantemvertible bonds issued by Nordea
Bank Finland Plc.
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Long Term Incentive Programmes

Group 2014 2013

Matching  Performance Performance Matching  Performance Performance
Conditional Rights LTIP 2012 Share Share | Share Il Share Share | Share I
Outstanding at the beginning of yea 211,263 508,636 211,263 207,861 497,861 207,861
Granted 8,991 21,580 8,991 7,816 19,603 7,816
Transfer during the year -9,377 -26,344 -9,377 - - -
Forfeited -5,757 -11,514 -5,757 -4,414 -8,828 -4,414
Outstanding at end of year 205,120 492,358 205,120 211,263 508,636 211,263
- of which currently exercisable - - - - - -
Parent company 2014 2013

Matching  Performance Performance Matching  Performance Performance
Conditional Rights LTIP 2012 Share Share | Share Il Share Share | Share I
Outstanding at the beginning of yea 205,991 494,835 205,991 202,784 484,654 202,784
Granted 8,749 20,947 8,749 7,621 19,008 7,621
Transfer during the year -9,377 -26,344 -9,377 - - -
Forfeited -5,757 -11,514 -5,757 -4,414 -8,828 -4,414
Outstanding at end of year 199,606 477,925 199,606 205,991 494,835 205,991
- of which currently exercisable - - - - - -
Group 2014 2013

Matching Performance  Performance Matching Performance  Performance
Rights LTIP 2011 Share Share | Share Il Share Share | Share |l
Outstanding at the beginning of year 147,709 295,41 147,709 149,531 299,062 149,531
Granted 6,161 12,323 6,161 5,465 10,930 5,465
Transfer during the year -6,121 -12,242 -6,121 - - -
Forfeited -2,251 -52,398 -82,275 -7,287 -14,574 287,
Allotted -118,675 -198,282 -53,404 - - -
Outstanding at end of year 26,823 44,818 12,070 1409 295,418 147,709
- of which currently exercisable - - - - - -
Parent company 2014 2013

Matching Performance  Performance Matching Performance  Performance
Rights LTIP 2011 Share Share | Share Il Share Share | Share I
Outstanding at the beginning of year 144,054 288,10 144,054 146,011 292,022 146,011
Granted 6,000 12,000 6,000 5,330 10,660 5,330
Transfer during the year -6,121 -12,242 -6,121 - - -
Forfeited -2,246 -51,134 -80,174 -7,287 -14,574 287,
Allotted -116,317 -194,343 -52,343 - - -
Outstanding at end of year 25,370 42,388 11,416 1084 288,107 144,054
- of which currently exercisable - - - - - -
Group 2014 2013

Matching Performance  Performance Matching Performance  Performance
Rights LTIP 2010 Share Share | Share Il Share Share | Share I
Outstanding at the beginning of year 23,955 25,310 10,780 153,128 306,256 153,128
Transfer during the year -2,959 -3,126 -1,332 - - -
Forfeited - - -2,543 -5,032 -149,790 -86,481
Allotted -5,651 -5,971 - -124,141 -131,156 -55,867
Outstanding at end of year 15,345 16,213 6,905 229 25,310 10,780
- of which currently exercisable - - - -
* Granted rights are compensation for dividend on the underlying Nordea share during the year.
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.
Parent company

2014 2013

Matching Performance  Performance Matching Performance  Performance
Rights LTIP 2010 Share Share | Share I Share Share | Share I
Outstanding at the beginning of year 23,955 25,310 10,780 150,708 301,416 150,708
Transfer during the year -2,959 -3,126 -1,332 - - -
Forfeited - - - -5,032 -147,507 -85,150
Allotted -5,651 -5,971 -2,543 -121,721 -128,599 798
Outstanding at end of year 15,345 16,213 6,905 229 25,310 10,780

- of which currently exercisable - - - . R

Participation in the Long-Term Incentive ProgramrtieBlPs) requires that the participants take dimghership by investing in Nordea shares.

LTIP 2012 LTIP 2011
Matching Performance  Performance Matching Performance  Performance
Share Share | Share Il Share Share | Share Il
Ordinary share per right 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Exercise price, EUR - - - - - -
Grant date 13 May 2012 13 May 2012 13 May 2012 13 May 2011 13 May 2011 13 May 2011
Vesting period, months 36 36 36 36 36 36
Contractual life, months 36 36 36 36 36 36
April/May April/May April/'May April/May April/May April/May
Allotment 2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Fair value at grant date, EUR 6.06' 6.06' 2.19 7.33 7.33 2.65

* The fair value has been recalculated due to dividend during the vesting period which the participants are compensated for through additional Matching and Performance
Shares.

LTIP 2010
Matching Performance  Performance
Share Share | Share Il
Ordinary share per right 1.00 1.00 1.00
Exercise price, EUR - - -
Grant date 13 May 2010 13 May 2010 13 May 2010
Vesting period, months 36 36 36
Contractual life, months 36 36 36
April/May April/May April/May
Allotment 2013 2013 2013
Fair value at grant date, EUR 6.75 6.75 2.45

Conditions and requirements

For each ordinary share the participants lock ithéoL TIPS, they are granted a conditional Matctihgre to receive ordinary shares based on
continued employment, with certain exemptions, tiedconditional Performance Share | and |l to reeeidditional ordinary shares also based
on fulfilment of certain performance conditions.€Terformance conditions for Performance Sharenixise a target growth in risk adjusted
profit per share (RAPPS) or a target in risk-adjdseturn on capital at risk (RAROCAR). Should teported earnings per share (EPS) be
lower than a predetermined level the participaresat entitled to exercise any Performance Sharkd performance conditions for
Performance Share Il are market related and compgrswth in total shareholder return (TSR) in corrgmm with a peer group's TSR or a
target in RAROCAR and in P/B-ranking compared ftear group. Furthermore the profit for each rightapped.

When the performance conditions are not fulfilledtuill, the rights that are no longer exercisalikeshown as forfeited in the previous tables,
together with shares forfeited due to participdessing the Nordea Group.
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

LTIP 2012

LTIP 2011

LTIP 2010

Employed, with certain

exemptions, within the Nordeg

Group during the three year
vesting period.

Service condition,
Matching Share / Performance
Share | and Il

Employed, with certain

exemptions, within the Nordeg

Group during the three year
vesting period.

Employed, with certain

exemptions, within the Norded

Group during the three year
vesting period.

Average RAROCAR during the
period 2012 up to and includin
2014. Full allotment will be
obtained if the RAROCAR
amounts to 17%.

Performance condition,
Performance Share |

y in RAPPS from year 2010 (bas

Compound Annual Growth Rat
e i
year) to and including year
2013. Full allotment will be
obtained if the Compound
Annual Growth Rate amounts {|
or exceeds 10%.

e Compound Annual Growth Rat

0 Annual Growth Rate amounteq

[¢]

n RAPPS from year 2009 (bas

year) to and including year
2012. Full allotment was
obtained if the Compound

to or exceeded 9%.

EPS knock out, Performance
Share |

Average reported EPS for 2011
2013 lower than EUR 0.26.

l- Average reported EPS for 201(

2012 lower than EUR 0.26.

RAROCAR during the period
2012 up to and including 2014
and P/B-ranking year-end 201
compared to a peer group. Fu
allotment will be obtained if the
RAROCAR amounts to 14%
and if Nordea's P/B-ranking is
1-5.

Performance condition,
Performance Share Il

TSR during 2011-2013 in
comparison with a peer group
4 Full allotment will be obtained if
| Nordea is ranked number 1-5

TSR during 2010-2012 in
comparison with a peer group
Full allotment was obtained if
Nordea is ranked number 1-5

The market value of the allotte
shares is capped to the

participants' annual salary for

year-end 2011.

Cap

i The market value of the allotte
shares is capped to the
participants' annual salary for

year-end 2010.

I The market value of the allotte

)
shares is capped to the
participants' annual salary for
year-end 2009.

Dividend compensation

adjusted for dividends on the
underlying Nordea share durin
the vesting period, as if
assuming that each dividend w.
used to immediately invest in
additional Nordea shares.

The number of Matching Share
and Performance Shares will by

s The number of Matching Share
e and Performance Shares will b
adjusted for dividends on the
j underlying Nordea share durin
the vesting period, as if
asassuming that each dividend wi
used to immediately invest in
additional Nordea shares.

D n

as

Fair value calculations

The fair value is measured through the use of gdlgexccepted valuation models with the followingut factors:

LTIP 2012 LTIP 2011 LTIP 2010
Weighted average share price, EUR 6.70 8.39 6.88
Right life, years 3.0 3.0 3.0
Deduction of expected dividends No No No
Risk free rate, % Not applicable Not applicable  Not applicable
Expected volatility, % Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Expected volatility is based on historical valus.the exercise price (zero for LTIP 2012, LTIP 2@&hd LTIP 2010) is significantly below the
share price at grant date, the value has a lirskeditivity to expected volatility and risk-fregerest.

The value of the Performance Share Il are basedarket related conditions and fulfilment of the TRRAROCAR and P/B targets have been
taken into consideration when calculating the t&gfatir value at grant. When calculating the imgeatn the market conditions it has been
assumed that all possible outcomes have equalgild&s. Also the caps in each programme have lialeen into consideration when
calculating the rights’ fair value at grant. Théustiment to fair value is approximately 2-3% of theighted average share price.

Expenses for equity-settled share-based payment mriammes-

Group

EURM LTIP 2012 LTIP 2011 LTIP 2010
Expected expense for the whole programme -4.7 -3.1 -2.4
Maximum expense for the whole programme -4.8 -3.1 -2.4
Total expense during 2014 -2.2 -0.3 0.0
Total expense during 2013 -1.0 -1.1 -0.5

Parent company

EURM LTIP 2012 LTIP 2011 LTIP 2010
Expected expense for the whole programme -4.6 0 -3. -2.4
Maximum expense for the whole programme -4.7 -3.0 -2.4
Total expense during 2014 2.1 -0.3 -0.0
Total expense during 2013 -1.0 -1.1 -0.5

 All amounts excluding social security contribution.

When calculating the expected expense an expentethbemployee turnover of 5% has been used. Tineceed expense is recognised over
the vesting period of 36 months

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

Nordea operates share-linked deferrals on pasaridble compensation for certain employee categpmdexed with Nordea Total
Shareholder Returns (TSR) and either vesting #ftee years or vesting in equal instalments ovbree to five year period. Since 2011
Nordea also operates TSR-linked retention on garaigable compensation for certain employee categoDue to that the allocation of
variable compensation is not finally decided durting current year, the deferred amount during #z& in the table below relates to variable
compensation earned the previous year.

In addition Nordea introduced in 2013 the Executhaentive Programme (“EIP”) which aims to strerggtiNordea’s capability to retain and
recruit the best talents. The aim is further tmatate the managers and key employees whose dffawvtsdirect impact on Nordea's result,
profitability and long term value growth. EIP rewgrerformance meeting agreed predetermined tange®roup, business unit and individual
level. The effect on the long term result is tacbasidered when determining the targets. The Edift sbt exceed the fixed salary. EIP shall be
paid in the form of cash and be subject to TSR3atlen, deferral, forfeiture clauses and retenisiper relevant remuneration regulations. The
main part of EIP 2014 is paid no earlier than aut@®18. Participation in the programme is offer@dp to 400 managers and key employees,
except GEM who are instead offered a GEM EIP (frthformation about the GEM EIP can be found @ Amnual Report of Nordea Bank

AB (publ)), within the Nordea Group. EIP is offeriedtead of Nordea's LTIP and VSP for the invitedpdoyees. The allocation of the EIP

2014 is decided during spring 2015, and a resenvati EUR7m excl. social costs was made in 2014 bothe Group and parent company.
80% of the allocated amount will be subject to TiB&exation.

The below table only includes deferred amountsxadavith Nordea TSR. EIP has been included as 204, when deferred. Further
information regarding all deferred amounts candumél in the separate report on remuneration pudglisim Nordea’s homepage
(www.nordea.com

Share linked deferrals

Group &arcompany
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Opening balance 4 3 4 3
Deferred/earned during the year 2 2 2 2
TSR indexation during the year 1 1 1 1
Payments during the yéar -3 -2 -3 -2
Translation differences 0 0 0 0
Closing balance 4 4 4 4

* There have been no adjustments due to forfeitures in 2014.
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Note 8 Staff costs, cont.

Average number of employees

Group Parent company
2014 2013 2014 2013

Full-time employees 7,258 8,252 6,712 7,697
Part-time employees 544 623 505 584
Total 7,802 9,269 7,217 8,452
Total number of employees (FTEs), end of period 6,653 7,981 6,130 7,440
Note 9 Other expenses

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Information technology -196 -180 -190 -186
Marketing and representation -22 -28 -20 -26
Postage, transportation, telephone and office esgeen -38 -43 -33 -36
Rents, premises and real estate -89 -88 -82 -90
Other -88 -127 -85 -109
Total -433 -466 -410 -447
Auditors' fees

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
KPMG
Auditing assignments -1 -1 -1 -1
Audit-related services
Tax advisory services 0 0 0 0
Other assignments 0 0 0 0
Total -1 -1 -1 -1
Note 10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges of tangible and intangible assets

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Depreciation/amortisation
Properties and equipment -21 -21 -19 -15
Intangible assets (Note 21) -15 -17 -13 -16
Total -36 -38 -32 -31
Impairment charges / Reversed impairment charges
Property and equipment - - - -
Intangible assets (Note 21) -56 -2 -56 -2
Total -56 -2 -56 -2
Total -92 -40 -88 -33
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Note 11 Net loan losses

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Loan losses divided by class
Realised loan losses -2 - -2 -
Allowances to cover realised loan losses 2 - 2 -
Recoveries on previous realised loan losses 0 - 0 -
Provisions 0 0 0 0
Reversals of previous provisions 22 0 22 0
Loans to credit institutions 22 0 22 0
Realised loan losses -114 -71 =77 -40
Allowances to cover realised loan losses 127 104 120 96
Recoveries on previous realised loan losses 28 24 9 8
Provisions -223 -216 -213 -203
Reversals of previous provisions 101 103 86 93
Loans to the public -81 -56 -75 -46
Realised loan losses - - - -
Allowances to cover realised loan losses - - - -
Recoveries on previous realised loan losses - - - -
Provisions -14 -8 -14 -8
Reversals of previous provisions 13 11 13 11
Off-balance sheet item% -1 3 -1 3
Net loan losses -60 -53 -54 -43

*see Note 13 Loans and impairment
2Included in Note 31 Provisions as "Transfer risk, off-balance" and "Individually assessed guarantees and other commitments".

Key ratios
Group Parent company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Loan loss ratio, basis poifts 5 5 5 5
- of which individual 4 6 3 6
- of which collective 2 -1 2 -1

% Net loan losses (annualised) divided by opening balance of loans to the public (lending).

Nordea Bank AB (publ) has guaranteed part of NEBBiporate exposures and based on the agreemens NBiR losses decreased EUR 66m
in 2014 and EUR 83m in 2013.

Note 12 Taxes

Income tax expense

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current tax -253 -285 -214 -239
Deferred tax 21 0 26 -4
Bank tax in Finlant
Total -232 -285 -188 -243

*The Finnish bank tax was introduced in 2013 and is based on risk weighted assets rather than income. This tax is not included in the current- and deferred tax disclosures in
this Note.

For current and deferred tax recognised in Othemprehensive income, see Statement of compreheinsiome.
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Note 12 Taxes, cont.

The tax on the Group’s operating profit differsrfréhe theoretical amount that would arise usingaleate of Finland as follows:

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Profit before tax 1,134 1,113 1,009 1,023
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 20% (24,5) -227 -273 -202 -251
Income from associated undertakings - - - -
Other direct taxes 0 - -
Tax-exempt income 10 3 24 31
Non-deductible expenses -20 -14 -15 -13
Adjustments relating to prior years 5 6 5 6
Change of tax rate - 8 - -1
Not creditable foreign taxes - -15 - -15
Tax charge -232 -285 -188 -243
Average effective tax rate 20% 26% 19% 24%
Group Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Deferred tax related to:
Tax losses carry-forward - 0 - -
Loans to the public 20 18 57 53
Financial instruments - -2 11 -
Intangible assets - - - -
Properties and equipment 2 2 - -
Investment property - - - -
Retirement benefit assets/obligations 21 -27 - 0
Hedge of net investments in foreign operations - - - -
Liabilities/provisions 11 14 - 0
Netting between deferred tax assets and liabilities -11 - -11
Total 43 5 57 53
Parent company Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Deferred tax related to:
Tax losses carry-forward - - - -
Loans to the public 18 16 - -
Financial instruments 1 -2 11 -
Intangible assets - - - -
Properties and equipment 2 2 - -
Investment property - - - -
Retirement benefit assets/obligations 21 -27 - -
Liabilities/provisions 10 13 - -
Netting between deferred tax assets and liabilities -11 - -11 -
Total 41 2 0 -

There were no unrecognised deferred tax assete iGtoup nor in the parent company in 2014 or 2013.

There was no deferred tax relating to temporarfeihces associated with investments in group tizkiags, associated undertakings and joint

ventures.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areetffghen there is a legally enforceable right teetficurrent tax assets against current tax

liabilities, when the deferred tax income relatethie same fiscal authority.
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Note 13 Loans and impairment

Total
Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Loans, not impaired 148,254 148,377 147,107 147,523
Impaired loans 1,480 2,008 1,188 1,716
- performing 823 1,034 653 839
- non-performing 657 974 535 877
Loans before allowances 149,734 150,385 148,295 149,239
Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans -516 -714 -464 -644
- performing -323 -421 -274 -355
- non-performing -193 -293 -190 -289
Allowances for collectively assessed impaired loans -119 -125 -101 -107
Allowances -635 -839 -565 -751
Loans, carrying amount 149,099 149,546 147,730 148,488

Central banks and credit institutions

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Loans, not impaired 35,351 35,768 41,091 41,221
Impaired loans 0 24 0 24
- performing - - - -
- non-performing 0 24 0 24
Loans before allowances 35,351 35,792 41,091 41,245
Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans - -25 - -25
- performing - - - -
- non-performing - -25 - -25
Allowances for collectively assessed impaired loans 0 0 0 0
Allowances 0 -25 0 -25
Loans, carrying amount 35,351 35,767 41,091 41,220

The publi¢
Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Loans, not impaired 112,903 112,609 106,016 106,302
Impaired loans 1,480 1,984 1,188 1,692
- Performing 823 1,034 653 839
- Non-performing 657 950 535 853
Loans before allowances 114,383 114,593 107,204 107,994
Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans -516 -689 -464 -619
- Performing -323 -421 -274 -355
- Non-performing -193 -268 -190 -264
Allowances for collectively assessed impaired loans -119 -125 -101 -107
Allowances -635 -814 -565 -726
Loans, carrying amount 113,748 113,779 106,639 107,268

* Finance leases, where the Nordea Group is a lessor, are included in Loans to the public, see Note 22 Leasing.
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Note 13 Loans and impairment, cont.

Movements of allowance accounts for impaired loaRs

Total
Group Parent company
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
EURmM assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2014 -714 -125 -839 -644 107 -751
Provisions -170 -53 -223 -163 -50 -213
Reversals 89 34 123 78 31 109
Changes through the income statement -81 -19 -100 85 -19 -104
Allowances used to cover write-offs 129 - 129 122 - 122
Translation differences 150 25 175 143 25 168
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2014 -516 -119 -635 -464 -101 -565
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2013 -657 -178 -835 -579 161 -740
Provisions -177 -39 -216 -167 -36 -203
Reversals 55 49 104 46 47 93
Changes through the income statement -122 10 -112 124 11 -110
Allowances used to cover write-offs 104 - 104 96 - 96
Translation differences -39 43 4 -40 43 3
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2013 -714 -125 -839 -644 -107 -751
Central banks and credit institutions
Group Parent company
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
EURmM assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2014 -25 0 -25 -25 0 -25
Provisions - 0 0 - 0 0
Reversals 23 0 23 23 0 23
Changes through the income statement 23 0 23 23 0 32
Allowances used to cover write-offs 2 - 2 2 - 2
Translation differences - - - - - -
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2013 -25 0 -25 -25 0 -25
Provisions - 0 0 - 0 0
Reversals - 0 0 - 0 0
Changes through the income statement - 0 0 - 0 0
Allowances used to cover write-offs - - - - - -
Translation differences - - - - - -
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2013 -25 0 -25 -25 0 -25
The public
Group Parent company
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
EURmM assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2014 -689 -125 -814 -619 107 -726
Provisions -170 -53 -223 -163 -50 -213
Reversals 66 34 100 55 31 86
Changes through the income statement -104 -19 -123 -108 -19 -127
Allowances used to cover write-offs 127 - 127 120 - 120
Translation differences 150 25 175 143 25 168
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2014 -516 -119 -635 -464 -101 -565
Opening balance at 1 Jan 2013 -632 -178 -810 -554 161 -715
Provisions -177 -39 -216 -167 -36 -203
Reversals 55 49 104 46 47 93
Changes through the income statement -122 10 -112 121 11 -110
Allowances used to cover write-offs 104 - 104 96 - 96
Translation differences -39 43 4 -40 43 3
Closing balance at 31 Dec 2013 -689 -125 -814 -619 -107 -726
2See Note 11 Net loan losses
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 76



Note 13 Loans and impairment, cont.

Allowances and provisions

Total
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Allowances for items in the balance sheet -635 -839 -565 -751
Provisions for off balance sheet items -31 -30 -31 -30
Total allowances and provisions -666 -869 -596 -781

Central banks and credit institutions

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Allowances for items in the balance sheet 0 -25 0 -25
Provisions for off balance sheet items -7 -7 -7 -7
Total allowances and provisions -7 -32 -7 -32
The public
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2012
Allowances for items in the balance sheet -635 -814 -565 -726
Provisions for off balance sheet items -24 -23 -24 -23
Total allowances and provisions -659 -837 -589 -749
Key ratios
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2014 2013 2014 2013
Impairment rate, grodshasis points 99 133 80 115
Impairment rate, nétbasis points 64 86 49 72
Total allowance rafebasis points 42 56 38 50
Allowances in relation to impaired lo&n&b 35 36 39 38
Total allowances in relation to impaired lo4ri% 43 42 48 44
Non-performing loans, not impaiffdEURmM 28 66 20 61
® Individually assessed impaired loans before allowances divided by total loans before allowances.
4 Individually assessed impaired loans after allowances divided by total loans before allowances.
° Total allowances divided by total loans before allowances.
© Allowances for individually assessed impaired loans divided by individually assessed impaired loans before allowances.
7 Total allowances divided by total impaired loans before allowances.
® past due loans, not impaired due to future cash flows (included in Loans, not impaired).
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Note 14 Interest-bearing securities

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
State and sovereigns 13,991 8,672 13,991 8,672
Municipalities and other public bodies 165 146 165 146
Mortgage institutions 8,455 12,353 8,455 12,353
Other credit institutions 9,924 10,766 9,924 10,766
Corporates 1,388 1,881 1,388 1,881
Corporates, sub-investment grade 720 428 720 428
Other - 0 - 0
Total 34,643 34,246 34,643 34,246

Note 15 Financial instruments pledged as collatera |

Financial instruments pledged as collateral

In repurchase transactions and in securities |lgnamsactions, non-cash assets are transferregllateral. When the counterpart receiving the
collateral has the right to sell or repledge theetss the assets are reclassified on the balaeee tshthe item Financial instruments pledged as

collateral.
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest-bearing securities 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
Total 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
For information on transferred assets and reveses; see Note 42.
Note 16 Shares
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Shares 1,215 56 1,215 56
Shares taken over for protection of claims - - - -
Fund units, equity related 688 592 687 591
Fund units, interest related 15 32 15 32
Total 1,918 680 1,917 679
- of which Financial instruments pledged as cotkdtéNote 15) - - - -
Total 1,918 680 1,917 679
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Note 17 Derivatives and hedge accounting

Group Parent company

Fair value Total nom. Fair value Total nom.
31 Dec 2014, EURm Positive Negative amount Positive Negati amount
Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 64,490 61,858 4,157,905 64,490 61,858 4,157,905
Futures and forwards 296 305 1,284,608 296 305 41628
Options 15,532 13,691 478,828 15,532 13,691 478,828
Other 1 2 2,006 1 2 2,006
Total 80,319 75,856 5,923,347 80,319 75,856 5,923,347
Equity derivatives
Equity swaps 294 307 14,444 294 307 14,444
Futures and forwards 16 9 956 16 9 956
Options 624 924 19,422 624 924 19,422
Total 934 1,240 34,822 934 1,240 34,822
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency and interest rate swaps 17,719 21,376 7734, 17,719 21,376 784,772
Currency forwards 2,026 891 74,720 2,026 891 74,720
Options 349 292 27,047 349 292 27,047
Total 20,094 22,559 886,539 20,094 22,559 886,539
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps (CDS) 2,864 2,860 92,083 2,864 2,860 92,083
Total rate of return swaps - - - - - -
Total 2,864 2,860 92,083 2,864 2,860 92,083
Commodity derivatives
Swaps 62 38 253 62 38 253
Futures and forwards - 169 - - 169
Options 9 -19 369 9 -19 369
Other - - - - - -
Total 71 19 791 71 19 791
Other derivatives
Options 18 17 564 18 17 564
Other 12 13 24 12 13 24
Total 30 30 588 30 30 588
Total derivatives held for trading 104,312 102,564 6,938,170 104,312 102,564 6,938,170
Derivatives used for hedge accounting
Interest rate derivatives 883 311 34,936 883 311 93
Equity derivatives - - - - - -
Foreign exchange derivatives 59 1 250 59 1 250
Credit derivatives - - - - - -
Other derivatives - - - - - -
Total derivatives used for hedge accounting 942 312 35,186 942 312 35,186
- of which cash flow hedges 65 3 12,702 65 3 12,702
- of which fair value hedges 877 309 22,484 877 309 22,484
Total derivatives 105,254 102,876 6,973,356 105,254 102,876 6,973,356
' Some cross currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps are used both as fair value hedges and cash flow hedges and the nominal amounts are then reported on
both lines.
Periods when hedged cashflows are expected to ocand when they are expected to affect the incomeas¢ment
Group

Over

31 Dec 2014, EURm <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5-10 years 10 years
Cash inflows (assets) - - - - -
Cash outflows (liabilities) -2,000 -3,758 -4,500 -2,366 69
Net cash flows -2,000 -3,758 -4,500 -2,366 69
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Note 17 Derivatives and hedge accounting, cont.

Group Parent company

Fair value Total nom. Fair value Total nom.
31 Dec 2013, EURm Positive Negative amount Positive Negati amount
Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 48,067 44,566 3,950,077 48,067 44,566 3,950,077
Futures and forwards 203 211 1,156,307 203 211 61303
Options 8,406 8,261 583,111 8,406 8,261 583,111
Total 56,676 53,038 5,689,495 56,676 53,038 5,689,495
Equity derivatives
Equity swaps 425 232 10,887 425 232 10,887
Futures and forwards 7 5 912 7 5 912
Options 546 695 15,871 546 695 15,871
Total 978 932 27,670 978 932 27,670
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency and interest rate swaps 9,804 10,670 167,9 9,804 10,670 797,916
Currency forwards 473 515 91,719 473 515 91,719
Options 185 150 21,228 185 150 21,228
Total 10,462 11,335 910,863 10,462 11,335 910,863
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps 1,337 1,361 60,889 1,337 1,361 60,889
Total rate of return swaps - - - - - -
Total 1,337 1,361 60,889 1,337 1,361 60,889
Commodity derivatives
Swaps 105 92 2,125 105 92 2,125
Futures and forwards 11 10 762 11 10 762
Options 28 11 1,048 28 11 1,048
Other - - - - - -
Total 144 113 3,935 144 113 3,935
Other derivatives
Options 13 14 431 13 14 431
Other 15 13 32 15 13 32
Total 28 27 463 28 27 463
Total derivatives held for trading 69,625 66,806 693,315 69,625 66,806 6,693,315
Derivatives used for hedge accounting
Interest rate derivatives 565 144 62,386 565 144 ,382
Foreign exchange derivatives 44 159 1,026 44 159 0261,
Total derivatives used for hedge accounting 609 303 63,412 609 303 63,412
- of which cash flow hedges 39 219 13,957 39 219 13,957
- of which fair value hedges 570 84 62,212 570 84 62,212
Total derivatives 70,234 67,109 6,756,727 70,234 7,199 6,756,727

* Some cross currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps are used both as fair value hedges and cash flow hedges and the nominal amounts are then reported on

both lines.

Periods when hedged cashflows are expected to oceurd when they are expected to affect the incomeas¢ment

Group

Over
31 Dec 2013, EURmM <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5-10 years 10 years
Cash inflows (assets) - - - - -
Cash outflows (liabilities) 2,569 3,663 3,724 3,829 69
Net cash flows 2,569 3,663 3,724 3,829 69
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Note 18 Fair value changes of the hedged items in

portfolio hedge of interest rate risk

Assets
Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 58 124 58 124
Changes during the year
- Revaluation of hedged items 18 -66 18 -66
Carrying amount at end of year 76 58 76 58
Liabilities Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 369 637 369 637
Changes during the year
- Revaluation of hedged items 404 -268 404 -268
Carrying amount at end of year 773 369 773 369

The carrying amount at end of year represents agleted changes in the fair value for those repgi¢ime periods in which the hedged item is
an asset respectively a liability. When the hedted is an asset, the change in the fair valub®hiedged item is presented within assets and

when the hedged item is a liability, the changerésented as a liability.

Note 19 Investments in group undertakings

Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013
Acquisition value at beginning of year 376 373
Acquisitions during the year 4 7
Sales during the year -55 -4
Translation differences -1 0
Acquisition value at end of year 324 376
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year - -
Impairment charges during the year -16 -
Translation differences - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year -16 -
Total 308 376
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Note 19 Investments in group undertakings, cont.

Specification

This specification includes all directly owned gpoundertakings and major group undertakings talitestly owned companies.

Group
Carrying Carrying
amount amount Voting
Number of 2014 2013 power of
31 Dec 2014 shares EURmM EURm holding, % Domicile Business ID
Domestic
Credit institutions
Nordea Finance Finland Ltd 1,000,000 306 306 (L00.Helsinki 0112305-3
Financial institutions
Tukirahoitus OY 672 7 7 100.0 Espoo 0677131-6
Real estate companies
Kiinteistd Oy Tampereen Kirkkokatd 7 280 50 50 100.0 Tampere 0819781-3
Kiinteistd Oy Levytie 6 67 100.0  Helsinki 2557073-9
Kiinteisté Oy Tulppatie 7 80 100.0  Helsinki 2557075-5
International
Financial institutions
Nordea Finance Polska $.A - - 0 100.0 Warsaw PL5861944082
Nordea Finance Estonia Ltd 60,000 6 6 100.0 Tallinn EE100212426
Nordea Finance Latvia Ltd 1,100 4 4 100.0 Riga LV40003348054
Nordea Finance Lithuania Ltd 6,540 4 4 100.0 Vilnius LT111667277
Nordea Securities Holding (U.K.) Ltd 49,010,000 2 2 100.0 London 01803666
Real estate companies
Promano Est Ot - - 10 100.0 Tallinn 11681888
Promano Lit UAB - - 10 100.0 Vilnius 302423219
SIA Promano L&t - - 30 100.0 Riga 40103235197
SIA Realmd - - 10 100.0 Riga 50103278681
Carrying
Other subsidiaries included in the consolidated amount of
financial statements; total assets of less than shares Total assets
EUR 10m Number of companies EURmM EURmM
Real estate companies 7 11 19
Other companies 5 0 76

*Indirect holding through Nordea Finance Finland Ltd, a subsidiary of Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

2 Sold in April 2014

The parent company of Nordea Bank Finland Plc islsa Bank AB (publ) domiciled in Stockholm, regigiton number 516406-0120. The
Annual Report 2014 of Nordea Bank AB (publ) maydiogvn-loaded on the Internet at www.nordea.com arabailable from Nordea Group
Investor Relations, SE 105 71 Stockholm, Sweder.Afmual Report 2014 of the Nordea Group is alsilabie at branches of Nordea Bank

Finland Plc.

Group

Special Purpose Entities (SPEs) — Consolidated

After the sale of the Baltic operations there areonsolidated SPEs in NBF. The consolidated vial@2913 was EUR 2m.
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Note 20 Investments in associated undertakings

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Acquisition value at beginning of year 61 80 43 43
Acquisitions during the year 0 1 - -
Sales during the year -6 - -6 -
Share in earnings 3 8 - -
Dividend received -17 -27 - -
Reclassifications - -1 - -
Translation differences - - - -
Acquisition value at end of year 41 61 37 43
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year -2 -2 -9 -9
Reversed impairment charges during the year - - - -
Impairment charges during the year - - - -
Reclassifications - - - -
Translation differences 0 0 - -
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year -2 -2 -9 -9
Total 39 59 28 34

Nordea Bank Finland Plc's and Nordea Bank Finlar@i@s associated undertakings' aggregated batfyeets and income statements can be

summarised as follows:

31 Dec 31 Dec

EURM 2014 2013
Total assets 173 242
Net profit 2 2
Other comprehensive income 0 0
2 2

Total comprehensive income

Nordea Bank Finland Plc's and Nordea Bank Finlar@l@ s share of contingent liabilities and comneits in favour of associated
undertakings of Nordea Bank Finland Group amown&UR 32m (83), of which the unused portion of appd overdraft facilities is EUR

32m (63).
Group
Carrying Carrying

amount 2014, amount 2013, Voting power
31 Dec 2014 Business ID Domicile EURmM EURmM of holding %
Automatia Pankkiautomaatit Oy 0974651-1 Helsinki 7 8 333
Fenestra Oy 0177676-7 Vantaa 0 0 9.9
NF Fleet Oy 2006935-5 Espoo 5 3 20.0
UAB ALD Automotive, Lithuania 300156575 Vilnius 2 1 25.0
ALD Automotive Eesti AS, Estonia 11094435 Tallin 1 1 25.0
ALD Automotive SIA, Latvia 50003825931 Riga 1 1 @5.
Oy Realinvest Ab 0680035-9 Helsinki 0 49.3
Realia Holding Oy 2106796-8 Helsinki 20 20 25.0
Securus Oy 0742429-5 Helsinki 0 0 35.2
Suomen Luotto-osuuskunta 0201646-0 Helsinki 3 25 327
Total 39 59

* Nordea Bank Finland Plc holds currently convertible bonds which, if converted, would give Nordea Bank Finland significant influence over the entity.

Parent company

Carrying Carrying

amount 2014, amount 2013, Voting power
31 Dec 2014 Business ID Domicile EURmM EURmM of holding %
Automatia Pankkiautomaatit Oy 0974651-1 Helsinki 5 5 333
Fenestra Oy 0177676-7 Vantaa 0 0 9.9
Realia Holding Oy 2106796-8 Helsinki 20 20 25.0
Oy Realinvest Ab 0680035-9 Helsinki 0 0 49.3
Securus Oy 0742429-5 Helsinki 0 0 35.2
Suomen Luotto-osuuskunta 0201646-0 Helsinki 3 9 327.
Total 28 34
* Nordea Bank Finland Plc holds currently convertible bonds which, if converted, would give Nordea Bank Finland significant influence over the entity.
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Note 21 Intangible assets

Group Parent Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Computer software 42 94 35 97
Other intangible assets, total 5 6 0 1
Total intangible assets 47 100 35 98

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2014 2013 2014 2013

Movements in computer software
Acquisition value at beginning of year 166 156 171 163
Acquisitions during the year 20 11 10 9
Sales/disposals during the year 0 - -2 -
Reclassifications 0 -1 3 -1
Translation differences 0 0 0 -
Acquisition value at end of year 186 166 182 171
Accumulated amortisation at beginning of year -64 -50 -66 -52
Amortisation according to plan for the year -14 -15 -13 -15
Accumulated amortisation on sales/disposals duflirg/ear - - 1 -
Reclassifications -1 1 -4 1
Translation differences - 0 0 -
Accumulated amortisation at end of year -79 -64 -82 -66
Accumulated impairment charges at beginning of year -8 -6 -8 -6
Impairment charges during the year -57 -2 -57 -2
Accumulated impairment charges at end of year -65 8 -65 -8
Total 42 94 35 97

Note 22 Leasing

NBF as a lessor

Finance leases
Nordea Bank Finland Group owns assets leased torness under finance lease agreements. Finaneeadgasements are reported as
receivables from the lessee included in "Loan&¢opublic” (see Note 13) at an amount equal tméténvestment in the lease. The leased

assets mainly comprise vehicles, machinery and etipgipment.

Reconciliation of gross investments and presentevaf future minimum lease payments:

Group

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013
Gross investments 2,509 2,596
Less unearned finance income -124 -139
Net investments in finance leases 2,385 2,457
Less unguaranteed residual values accruing toahefih of the lessor -22 -73
Present value of future minimum lease payments resable 2,363 2,384
Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimumdegayments receivable 8 10
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Note 22 Leasing, cont.

As of 31 December 2014 the gross investment andehivestment by remaining maturity was distréolias follows:

Group
31 Dec 31 Dec

2014 2014
EURmM Gross investment  Net investment
2015 951 890
2016 584 553
2017 486 468
2018 280 271
2019 153 150
Later years 54 53
Total 2,508 2,385

Operating leases
Assets subject to operating leases mainly compgkeles and other equipment. On the balance shegtare reported as tangible assets.

Under non-cancellable operating leases, the futunémum lease payments receivables are distribasedllows:

Group
EURmM 31 Dec 2014
2015 1
2016 1
2017 0
2018 0
2019 0
Later years 0
Total 2

NBF as a lessee

Finance leases

Nordea Bank Finland Group has only to a minor eb@@tered into finance lease agreements. The ograynount of assets subject to finance
leases amounts to EUR Om (0).

Operating leases
Nordea Bank Finland Group has entered into opeydginse agreements for premises and office equipmen

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
Leasing expenses during the year, EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013
Leasing expenses during the year -65 -66 -63 -69
- of which minimum lease payments -62 -65 -63 -69
- of which contingent rents -1 -1 - -

Leasing income during the year regarding subleagmpnts - - - -

Future minimum lease payments under non-canceligi#eating leases amounted to and are distribtéollaws:

Group Parent company
EURM 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014
2015 55 51
2016 40 37
2017 27 27
2018 23 23
2019 18 18
Later years 93 93
Total 256 249
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Note 23 Investment properties

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 113 104 8 10
Acquisitions during the year 1 29 0 2
Sales/disposals during the year -112 -20 -6 -4
Net result from fair value adjustments 0 0 - -
Carrying amount at end of year 2 113 2 8
Amounts recognised in the income statemeht
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rental income 1 1 1 1
Direct operating expenses that generate rentahiaco -4 -3 -4 -3
Together with fair value adjustments included in Net result from items at fair value.
Market value 2 113 2 8
For further information regarding investment prajesy; see Note 40.
Note 24 Other assets
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Claims on securities settlement proceeds 980 906 980 905
Cash/ margin receivables 12,978 6,607 12,978 6,607
Other 666 764 628 721
Total 14,624 8,277 14,586 8,233
Note 25 Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Accrued interest income 113 313 105 308
Other accrued income 319 248 146 69
Prepaid expenses 8 11 8 9
Total 440 572 259 386
Note 26 Deposits by credit institutions
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Central banks 10,139 5,780 10,139 5,780
Banks 68,212 60,908 67,970 60,796
Other credit institutions 9,017 12,738 9,020 12,739
Total 87,368 79,426 87,128 79,315
86
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Note 27 Deposits and borrowings from the public

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Deposits 52,593 53,983 52,587 53,992
Repurchase agreements 24,286 26,926 24,286 26,916
Total 76,879 80,909 76,873 80,908
Note 28 Debt securities in issue
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Certificates of deposit 22,871 16,408 22,871 16,408
Commercial papers 887 7,122 887 7,122
Covered bonds 16,212 15,473 16,212 15,473
Other bonds 8,502 8,127 8,502 8,127
Total 48,472 47,130 48,472 47,130
Note 29 Other liabilities
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Liabilities on securities settlement proceeds 631 665 631 665
Sold, not held, securities 6,273 10,405 6,273 10,405
Accounts payable 37 60 31 40
Cash/margin payables 10,061 5,872 10,061 5,872
Other 1,575 1,853 1,374 1,705
Total 18,577 18,855 18,370 18,687
Note 30 Accrued expenses and prepaid income
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Accrued interest 10 303 10 303
Other accrued expenses 611 413 502 302
Prepaid income 183 150 99 63
Total 804 866 611 668
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Note 31 Provisions

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Reserve for restructuring costs 45 26 44 26
Transfer risks, off-balance 8 9 8 9
Individually assessed guarantees and other commigme 23 21 23 21
Tax 0 1 - -
Other 9 15 7 11
Total 85 72 82 67
Group

Guarantees/

EURmM Restructuring  Transfer risks commitments Tax Other Total
At the beginning of year 26 9 21 1 15 72
New provisions made 39 3 11 - 0 53
Provisions utilised -18 - - - -1 -19
Reversals -2 -4 -9 -1 -4 -20
Reclassifications - - - - - -
Translation differences - - - - -1 -1
At the end of year 45 8 23 0 9 85

Provisions for restructuring costs amounts to EBRi4ind covers termination benefits (EUR 43m) ahémprovisions mainly related to
redundant premises (EUR2m). The restructuring gietivhave mainly been launched to reach the aatied cost efficiency and profitability,
and as a part of this Nordea plans to reduce theauof employees, partly through close down ohbn@s. The majority of the provision is
expected to be used during 2015-2016. As with a@hgrgrovision there is an uncertainty around tgramd amount, which is expected to be

decreased as the plan is being executed.

Provision for Transfer risk of EUR 8m is relatedbfébalance sheet items. Transfer risk relatingptms is included in the item Allowances for
collectively assessed impaired loans in Note 18viBion for Transfer risk is depending on the voduafi business with different countries.

Loan loss provisions for individually assessed gaotges and other commitments amounted to EUR 23m.

Other provisions (EUR 9m) refer to the followingpisions: Legal Disputes of EUR 4m, provision favigonmental and property-related

obligations of EUR 3m and other provisions amountm EUR 2m (EUR 9m expected to be settled in 2015)

Parent company

Transfer  Guarantees/
EURmM Restructuring risks commitments Other Total
At beginning of year 26 9 21 11 67
New provisions made 38 3 11 - 52
Provisions utilised -18 - - - -18
Reversals -2 -4 -9 -4 -19
Translation differences - - - - -
At the end of year 44 8 23 7 82

Provisions for restructuring costs amounts to EURi4nd covers termination benefits (EUR 42m) ahérgprovisions mainly related to
redundant premises (EUR 2m). The restructuringities have mainly been launched to reach the ipatied cost efficiency and profitability,
and as a part of this Nordea plans to reduce théauof employees, partly through close down ohbn@s. The majority of the provision is
expected to be used during 2015-2016. As with ahgrgrovision there is an uncertainty around tgramd amount, which is expected to be

decreased as the plan is being executed.

Provision for Transfer risk of EUR 8m is relatedbfé-balance sheet items. Transfer risk relatintptms is included in the item Allowances for
collectively assessed impaired loans in Note 18viBion for Transfer risk is depending on the votuaf business with different countries.

Loan loss provisions for individually assessed gotges and other commitments amounted to EUR 23m.

Other provisions refer (EUR 7m) to the followingpisions: Legal Disputes of EUR 4m and provisiondovironmental and property-related
obligations of EUR 3m (EUR 7m expected to be siitie2015).
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Note 32 Retirement benefit obligations

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Defined benefit plans, net -2 -112 0 -111
Total -2 -112 0 -111

NBF has various pension plans, which are classift as defined benefit plans as well as defimedribution plans. IAS 19 secures that the
pension obligations net of plan assets backingetbbsigations is reflected on the Group's balahees The defined benefit plans in Finland
are closed to new employees and instead, pensiongf employees are based on defined contrib@f@P) arrangements. The plans for the
foreign branches are also mainly defined contrisufilans. The existing defined benefit plans indamand New York are closed to new
employees. Defined contribution plans are not céflé on the balance sheet except when earned peitgtits have not yet been paid for.

The pension plans are structured in accordancelegti regulations, legislations and local practielan assets are generally held in a separate
pension fund or foundation. Minimum funding requient differ between plans but generally the pensldigation measured using local
requirements shall be covered in full or with ad@termined surplus.

Characteristics of the Nordea Pension Foundation

The most significant of the Finnish plans is thedéa Pension Foundation. Nordea Pension Foundaitionis a final salary and service based
pension plan providing pension benefits on tophefdtatutory systems. The employer has promisedtaire level of benefit after retirement to

a certain group of employees within the plan. Rlageration is managed by the Board of Membersbblaed consists of both employers’ and
employee’s representatives. The Board of Membesshened a managing director to take care of regplarations in the foundation.

The plan exposes the employer to certain riskbelfreturn of foundation’s assets is not enougtot@r the increment of liability and benefit
payments over the financial year then the emplayeds the deficit with contributions. The presealue of the defined benefit liability is
calculated using a discount rate determined byeafe to high quality bond yields. A decrease endbrporate bond yields increases the
liabilities along with increment of plan’s benefibligation calculated according to IAS 19. Howegit of increment of obligation is offset by
asset increment along with the increment of plaisd holdings. Asset volatility may also impact N&Ehough basically the distribution of
assets to different asset classes is strictly @idthy authorities so significant concentratiok dannot be borne. The plan’s benefits in payment
are tied to TyEL-index which depends on inflatiB80 @) and common salary index (20 %). Higher ifdlaincreases the TyEL-index which
leads to an increase in liabilities. Higher infteticauses extra challenges to investment actiities which the employer in the last resort is
responsible. The present value of the defined litgriah liability is calculated by reference to thest estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employmémt increase in life expectancy of the plan pgstiats will increase the plan’s liability.

After having the necessary approval from the FimfSA, Nordea Pension Foundation will return theess cover capital to the members of
the Pension Foundation. The estimated amountayt@UR 21m, of which the major part belongs tomMBroup companies. The amount has
been taken into account when preparing the actuaieulations for the year 2014.

IAS 19 pension calculations and assumptions
Calculations on major plans are performed by eztdiability calculators and are based on the a@bassumptions.

Assumption$ Finland
2014

Discount raté 2.0%
Salary increase 2.0%
Inflation 1.5%
Mortality Compertz
Increase in income base amount 1,9%
2013

Discount raté 3.5%
Salary increase 2.5%
Inflation 1.5%
Mortality Compertz
Increase in income base amount 1.9%

The assumptions disclosed for 2014 have an impact on the liability calculation by year-end 2014, while the assumptions disclosed for 2013 are used for calculating the
pension expense in 2014.
2 More information on the discount rate can be found in Note 1, section 19. The sensitivities to changes in the discount rate can be found below.
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Note 32 Retirement benefit obligation, cont.

Group Parent company

Sensitivities - Impact on Defined Benefit Obligatio

(DBO) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate - Increase 50bps -7.2% -6.3% -7.1% -6.3%
Discount rate - Decrease 50bps 8.1% 7.1% 8.1% 7.1%
Salary increase - Increase 50bps 0.4% 0.3% 0.4% 0.3%
Salary increase - Decrease 50bps -0.4% -0.3% -0.4% -0.3%
Inflation - Increase 50bps 4.7% 4.3% 4.6% 4.2%
Inflation - Decrease 50bps -4.3% -4.0% -4.3% -3.9%
Mortality - Increase 1 year 3.7% 2.9% 3.7% 2.9%
Mortality - Decrease 1 year -3.6% - -3.6% -

The sensitivity analyses are prepared by changirgastuarial assumption while keeping the otharraptions unchanged. This is a simplified
approach since the actuarial assumptions usualg@related. However, it enables the reader tatsone effect from another. The method
used for calculating the impact on the obligat®thie same as when calculating the obligation atteduor in the financial statements.

Compared with the 2013 Annual Report there have beechanges in the methods used when preparirgetisitivity analyses.

Net retirement benefit liabilities/assets

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Obligations 948 788 934 776
Plan assets 946 900 934 887
Net liability(-)/asset (+) -2 112 0 111
- of which retirement benefit liabilities 28 21 25 20
- of which retirement benefit assets 25 133 25 132
Movements in the obligation
Group Parent company

EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Opening balance 788 863 776 839
Current service cost 2 3 2 2
Interest cost 27 29 27 29
Pensions paid -42 -41 -42 -41
Past service cost 0 1 0 1
Settlements 0 -4 0 -4
Business combinations - - - 12
Remeasurement from changes in demographic assurap 28 -1 28 -1
Remeasurement from changes in financial assumptions 145 -46 142 -45
Remeasurement from experience adjustments -8 -14 -7 -14
Translation differences 8 -2 8 -2
Closing balance 948 788 934 776

The average duration of the obligation is 14 yéath in the Group and the parent company. The iduré& based on discounted cash flows.
The fact that the main part of the defined berpéihs are closed for new entrants leads to a |dweation.
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Note 32 Retirement benefit obligations, cont.

Movements in the fair value of plan assets

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Opening balance 900 893 887 873
Interest income (calculated using the discounf rate 31 30 31 30
Pensions paid -42 -41 -42 -41
Settlements 0 -1 0 -1
Business combinations - - - 8
Contributions by employer -14 10 -13 10
Remeasurement (actual return less interest income) 63 11 63 10
Administrative expenses 0 0 0 0
Translation differences 8 -2 8 -2
Closing balance 946 900 934 887

Asset composition

The combined return on assets in 2014 was 1099 &) asset return was driven particularly by stnaigrn on long dated sovereign bonds.
Other assets including equity investments, reatestnd credit investments also contributed p@djtivAt the end of the year, the equity

exposure in pension foundation represented 28%cftyal assets.

Asset composition in funded schemes 2014 2013
Bonds 59% 57%
- sovereign 75% 36%
- covered bonds - 5%
- corporate bonds 23% 16%
- issued by Nordea entities - 0%
- with quoted market price in an active market 100% 57%
Equity 28% 27%
- domestic 33% 9%
- European 27% 8%
-Us 26% 6%
- emerging 14% 4%
- with quoted market price in an active market 100% 27%
Real Estate 10% 13%
- occupied by Nordea 28% 4%

3% 3%

Cash and cash equivalents

1 The geographical location of the real estate follows the geographical location of the relevant pension plan.

Both the Group and the parent company is expeotedritribute EUR 7m to its defined benefit plan2@15.

Defined benefit pension cost

The total net pension cost related to defined bieplains recognised in the Group's income staterfeenstaff costs) for the year 2014 is EUR
1m positive (Om). In the parent company's incoragestent the respective cost was EUR 1m positiven(2014.

Total pension costs comprise defined benefit pensists as well as costs related to defined carioib plans. (See specification in Note 8.)

Group Parent company
Recognised in the income statement, EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current service cost 3 2 2 2
Net interest -4 -1 -3 -1
Past service cost 0 1 0 1
Settlements 0 -3 0 -3
Administrative expenses 0 0 0 0
Pension cost on defined benefit plans -1 0 -1 -1
The pension cost is in line with what was expeeitietthe start of the year.
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Note 32 Retirement benefit obligations, cont.

Group Parent company
Recognised in other comprehensive income, EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Remeasurement from changes in demographic assumaptio 28 -1 28 -1
Remeasurement from changes in financial assumptions 145 -46 142 -45
Remeasurement from experience adjustments -8 -14 -7 -14
Remeasurement of plan assets (actual return lEsgshincome) -63 -11 -63 -10
Pension cost on defined benefit plans (expense+came-) 102 -72 100 -70

Group Parent company
Net retirement benefit asset/liability 2014 2013 2014 2013
Opening balance -112 -30 -111 -34
Pension cost in the income statement -1 0 -1 -1
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income 102 -72 100 -70
Business combinations - - - 4
Pensions paid 0 0 0 0
Contributions by employer 13 -10 13 -10
Translation differences 0 0
Closing balance -112 -111

Key management personnel

The members of the Board of Directors of Nordeal&&inland Plc and the President, are members dfithdea Bank AB (publ) Group
Executive Management, except for the one extermahber Carl-Johan Granvik. In 2013 Nordea Bank Alb{phas paid all salaries, fees,
pensions and other staff-related expenses to thweahentioned other members of the Board and thsid@nt. Nordea Bank AB (publ) has

allocated these salary expenses to Nordea BanarfeiiIc as part of the Head Office Allocation exgen

Information on salaries, loans and pension liaéditegarding the above mentioned other membetedBoard and the President is presented

in the Annual Report of Nordea Bank AB (publ).

Note 33 Subordinated liabilities

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Dated subordinated debenture loans - - - -
Undated subordinated debenture loans 70 429 70 429
Hybrid capital loans 550 - 550 -
Total 620 429 620 429

These debenture loans are subordinated to othdities. Dated debenture loans entitle the leriddgrayment before undated subordinated
loans and hybrid capital loans. Within each respecategory, the loans entitle lenders to equgireant rights.

Group and parent company

On 31 December 2014 loans - with terms specifiéovbe exceeded 10% of the total outstanding volume.

Year of issue Nominal Carrying amount Interest rate
Issued by / maturity value EURmM (coupon)
Nordea Bank Finland Pfc 1999/undated MJPY 10,000 70 4,21 %

Floating 3-month EURIBOR

Nordea Bank Finland Pfc 2014/30 Sep 2019  MEUR 550 550 +4.34 %
* Call date 26 February 2029
2 Call date 30 February 2019
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Note 34 Assets pledged as security for own liabili  ties

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets pledged for own liabilities
Securities etc. 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
Loans to the public 19,800 18,803 19,800 18,803
Other pledged assets 12,568 6,519 12,568 6,514
Total 43,426 35,061 43,426 35,056
The above pledges pertain to the following liabilies
Deposits by credit institutions 6,399 3,210 6,399 3,209
Deposits and borrowings from the public 4,659 6,530 4,659 6,530
Derivatives 12,314 6,307 12,314 6,307
Debt securities in issue 16,212 15,473 16,212 15,473
Other liabilities and commitments 0 195 0 195
Total 39,584 31,715 39,584 31,714

! Relates only to securities recognised on the balance sheet. Securities borrowed or bought under repurchase agreements are not recognised in the balance sheet and thus not
included in the amount. Such transactions are disclosed in Note 42 Transferred assets and obtained collaterals.

Assets pledged for own liabilities contain secastpledged as security in repurchase agreemerin aedurities lending. The transactions are
conducted under standard agreements employed dnycied markets participants. Counterparts in thi@gsactions are credit institutions and
the public. The transactions are typically shamntevith maturity within three months.

Loans to the public amounting to EUR 19,800m (18)8Gave been registered as collateral for issuedisti covered bonds amounting to EUR
16,212m (15,473). In the event of the company'shiesicy, the holders of these bonds have priooitthe assets registered as collateral.
Collaterals are valuated up to the first 70% ofrttegket value of the property. Nordea Bank has &&lia Oy, Newsec Oy, Huoneistokeskus
Oy, Kiinteistomaailma Oy and Catella Oy to valuedenmercial real estate collaterals.

Note 35 Other assets pledged

Other assets pledged are mainly related to seesisithich includes interest-bearing securities pddgs securities for payment settlements
within the central banks and clearing instituti&@$R 5,000m (2,876). The terms and conditions requity to day securities and relate to
liquidity intraday/overnight. Collateral pledged behalf of other items other than the company’s labilities, e.g. on behalf of a third party
or on behalf of the company’s own contingent lieib8 are also accounted for under this item.

Note 36 Contingent liabilities

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Guarantees
Loan guarantees 1,350 1,686 1,538 1,917
Other guarantees 11,933 12,637 11,941 12,637
Documentary credits 1,603 1,493 1,603 1,493
Other contingent liabilities 20 20 20 20
Total 14,906 15,836 15,102 16,067

In the normal business of Nordea Bank Finland pirek issues various forms of guarantees in favbhaik's customers. Loan guarantees are
given for customers to guarantee obligations irotnedit- and pension institutions. Other guamsitonsist mainly of commercial guarantees
such as bid guarantees, advance payment guarantgesnty guarantees and export related guarar@eggingent liabilities also include
unutilised irrevocable import documentary creditd aonfirmed export documentary credits. Thesestretions are part of the bank services
and support the bank's customers. Guarantees andhéatary credits are off-balance sheet itemssartfeere is a need for a provision to cover
a probable loan loss that arises from the judgeheireimbursement will not be received.
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Note 37 Commitments

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Unutilised overdraft facilities 7,760 8,301 7,784 8,302
Loan commitments 8,261 7,581 5,513 5,120
Future payment obligations 3 7 3 7
Other commitments 766 714 449 319
Total 16,790 16,603 13,749 13,748

Reverse repurchase agreements are recognised oe@ugnised from the balance sheet on settledatet Nordea has as per 31 December
2014 signed reverse repurchase agreements of EI3R26 (11,335) that have not yet been settled andeguently are not recognised on the
balance sheet. On settlement date these reversehage agreements will, to the utmost extentaoepéxisting reverse repurchase agreements
not yet derecognised as per 31 December 2014. Tingtsements have not been disclosed as commitments

Note 38 Capital adequacy

Capital adequacy is a measure of the financiahgtheof a bank, usually expressed as a ratio dfalap assets. There is now a worldwide
capital adequacy standard (Basel 11l) drawn upheyBasel Committee on Banking Supervision. Withm EU, the capital adequacy
requirements are outlined in the CRD.

Common Equity Tier 1 capital and Tier 1 capital

Common Equity Tier (CET) 1 capital is defined dgible capital including eligible reserves, netrefulatory required deductions made
directly to CET1 capital. The capital recognisedC& 1 capital holds the ultimate characteristarddss absorbance defined from a going
concern perspective and represents the most saltediclaim in the event of liquidation.

The Tier 1 capital is defined as the sum of CETditeahand Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital where ATapital is the total of instruments
(hybrids) issued by the bank that meet the trasifi regulatory criteria and not included in theTQ et after AT1 deductions. All AT1 capital
instruments are undated subordinated capital loans.

Eligible capital and eligible reserves

Paid up capital is the share capital contributedhmreholders, including the share premium paiditii# reserves consist primarily of retained
earnings, other reserves and income from curreart Yetained earnings are earnings from previoassyeported via the income statement.
Other reserves are related to revaluation andl&ims reserves referred to acquisitions and aasegticompanies under the equity method. The
equity interests of minority shareholdings in comipa that are fully consolidated in the financiadup are not included. Positive income from
current year is included as eligible capital aftenification by the external auditors, however niegaincome must be deducted.

Additional Tier 1 instruments

The inclusion of undated subordinated loans intaufdil Tier 1 capital is restricted and repurcheese normally not take place until five years
after original issuance of the instrument. Undateolordinated loans may be repaid only upon declsjyaihe Board of Directors in NBF and
with the permission of the Supervisory Authorityrfhermore, there are restrictions related to sfependitions, order of priority, and interest
payments under constraint conditions. AdditionarTli instruments issued that fulfil the CRD IV regments are fully included whereas
remaining instruments are phased out accordin@tsitional rules.

For the additional Tier 1 instruments, conditiopedfy appropriation in order to avoid being obtige enter into liquidation. To the extent that
may be required to avoid liquidation, the principadounts of additional Tier 1 instruments (togethigh accrued interest) would be written
down and converting such amount into a conditieagital contribution.

Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital must be subordinated to depositotsgeneral creditors of the bank. It cannot be rgetar covered by a guarantee of the issuer
or related entity or include any other arrangentieait legally or economically enhances the seniaftthe claim vis-a-vis depositors and other
bank creditors.

Tier 2 instruments

Tier 2 instruments consists mainly of subordinateft. Tier 2 instruments includes two differenteyf subordinated loan capital; undated
loans and dated loans. Tier 2 instruments issuadulfil the CRD IV requirements are fully includevhereas remaining instruments are
phased out according to transitional rules.

The basic principle for subordinated debt in owndfiis the order of priority in case of a defaulbankruptcy situation. Under such conditions,

the holder of the subordinated loan would be repétiel other creditors, but before shareholders. Sftare of outstanding loan amount possible
to include in the Tier 2 capital related to dateakis is reduced if the remaining maturity is lésstfive years.
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Note 38 Capital adequacy, cont.

table A2 Transitional own funds

Group

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and resgrEURmM

(C) amounts subject
to pre-regulation (EU)
no 575/2013
treatment or
prescribed residual
(A) amount at amount of regulation
disclosure date (EU) no 575/2013

1 Capital instruments and the related share preracounts 2,918
of which: Share capital 2,319
Retained earnings 5,831
3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and otfgarves, to include unrealised
gains and losses under the applicable accounémglatds) -33
5 Minority Interests (amount allowed in consolidh@ET1) 0 0
5a Independently reviewed interim profits net of &areseeable charge or dividend 452
6 Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital before regulatay adjustments 9,168
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital: regulatory adjustments
7 Additional value adjustments (negative amount) -210
8 Intangible assets (net of related tax liabil{tyggative amount) -47
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitap#ixcluding those arising from
10 temporary differences (net of related tax liabilithiere the conditions in Article 38 (3)
are met) (negative amount) 0
11 Fair value reserves related to gains or lossessh flow hedges 2
12 Negative amounts resulting from the calculatbexpected loss amounts -237 0
14 Gains or losses on liabilities valued at fair valesulting from changes in own credit
standing 6
15 Defined-benefit pension fund assets (negativeusi) -16 0
25b Foreseeable tax charges relating to CET1 ifepgative amount) 0
26a  Regulatory adjustments relating to unrealised gaimblosses pursuant to Articles 467
and 468 -213
Of which: .. filter for unrealised loss 1 0 1
Of which: .. filter for unrealised gain 1 -213
28 Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tierl (CET1) -714
29 Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital 8,454
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital: instruments
30 Capital instruments and the related share preraiccounts 550
36 Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital before regulatory adjustments 550
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital: regulatory adjustm ents
43 Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital 0
44 Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital 550
45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) 9,004
Tier 2 (T2) capital: instruments and provisions
46 Capital instruments and the related share praraitcounts 0
47 Amount of qualifying items referred to in Articlé4 (5) and the related share premium
accounts subject to phase out from T2 69
51 Tier 2 (T2) capital before regulatory adjustments 69
Tier 2 (T2) capital: regulatory adjustments
57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 (T2) capital 0
58 Tier 2 (T2) capital 69
59 Total capital (TC =T1 + T2) 9,073
60 Total risk weighted assets 50,499
Capital ratios and buffers
61 Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of rigfosure amount) 16.7%
62 Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) 17.8%
63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk expoaareunt) 18.0%
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Note 38 Capital adequacy, cont.

Institution specific buffer requirement (CET1 regument in accordance with article 92
64 (1) (a) plus capital conservation and countercgtiwffer requirements, plus systemic
risk buffer, plus the systemically important instibn buffer (G-SlI or O-SlI buffer),

expressed as a percentage of risk exposure amount) 0.0%
65 of which: capital conservation buffer requiremen 0.0%
66 of which: countercyclical buffer requirement 0.0%
67 of which: systemic risk buffer requirement 0.0%
67a of which: Global Systemically Important Instituti¢@-Sll) or Other Systemically

Important Institution (O-SlI) buffer 0.0%
68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffersggeercentage of risk exposure

amount) 10.0%
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (beforeisk weighting)

Direct and indirect holdings of the capital of firtgal sector entities where the
72 institution does not have a significant investmarnhose entities (amount below 10%

threshold and net of eligible short positions) 192

Direct and indirect holdings by the institutiontbé CET 1 instruments of financial
73 sector entities where the institution has a sigaift investment in those entities

(amount below 10% threshold and net of eligiblerspositions) 5
75 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary diffeesn(amount below 10% threshold,

net of related tax liability where the conditionsArticle 38 (3) are met) 41
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in iEr 2

Credit risk adjustments included in T2 in respda@osures subject to internal

ratings-based approach (prior to the applicatiothefcap) 27,495
79 Cap for inclusion of credit risk adjustment§under internal ratings-based approach 165
Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangemets (only applicable between 1 Jan
2013 and 1 Jan 2022)
84 Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phasarmangements 364
85 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess overategp redemptions and

maturities) 0

Parent company

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and resgrEURmM

(C) amounts subject
to pre-regulation (EU)
no 575/2013
treatment or
prescribed residual
(A) amount at amount of regulation
disclosure date (EU) no 575/2013

1 Capital instruments and the related share preraicounts 2,918

of which: Share capital 2,319
2 Retained earnings 5,293
3 Ac_cumulated other comprehens@ve income (an‘d ottmErves, to include unrealised

gains and losses under the applicable accounémglatds) -22
5 Minority Interests (amount allowed in consolidh@ET1) 0
5a Independently reviewed interim profits net of foreseeable charge or dividend 371
6 Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital before regulatay adjustments 8,560
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital: regulatory adjustments
7 Additional value adjustments (negative amount) -210
8 Intangible assets (net of related tax liabil{tyggative amount) -35

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitgp#ixcluding those arising from
10 temporary differences (net of related tax liabilithiere the conditions in Article 38 (3)

are met) (negative amount) 0
11 Fair value reserves related to gains or lossesseh flow hedges 2
12 Negative amounts resulting from the calculatibexpected loss amounts -188
14 Gains or losses on liabilities valued at fair vaiesulting from changes in own credit

standing 6
15 Defined-benefit pension fund assets (negativeusi) -16
25b Foreseeable tax charges relating to CET1 ifepgative amount) 0
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Note 38 Capital adequacy, cont.

Regulatory adjustments relating to unrealised gaimslosses pursuant to Articles 467

263 and 468 -213

Of which: .. filter for unrealised loss 1 0

Of which: .. filter for unrealised gain 1 -213
28 Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tierl (CET1) -654
29 Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital 7,906
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital: instruments
30 Capital instruments and the related share preraiccounts 550
36 Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital before regulatory adjustments 550
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital: regulatory adjustm ents
43 Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital 0
44 Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital 550
45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) 8,456
Tier 2 (T2) capital: instruments and provisions
46 Capital instruments and the related share preraiccounts 0
47 Amount of qualifying items referred to in Articl&4 (5) and the related share premium

accounts subject to phase out from T2 69
51 Tier 2 (T2) capital before regulatory adjustments 69
Tier 2 (T2) capital: regulatory adjustments
57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 (T2) capital 0
58 Tier 2 (T2) capital 69
59 Total capital (TC =T1 + T2) 8,525
60 Total risk weighted assets 45,955
Capital ratios and buffers
61 Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of rigjosure amount) 17.2%
62 Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) 18.4%
63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk expoaareunt) 18.6%

Institution specific buffer requirement (CET1 regument in accordance with article 92
64 (1) (a) plus capital conservation and countercgtluffer requirements, plus systemic

risk buffer, plus the systemically important instibn buffer (G-SlI or O-SlI buffer),

expressed as a percentage of risk exposure amount) 0.0%
65 of which: capital conservation buffer requiremen 0.0%
66 of which: countercyclical buffer requirement 0.0%
67 of which: systemic risk buffer requirement 0.0%
67a of which: Global Systemically Important Instituti¢@-Sll) or Other Systemically

Important Institution (O-SlI) buffer 0.0%
68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffersdgsercentage of risk exposure

amount) 10.6%
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (beforeisk weighting)

Direct and indirect holdings of the capital of firtgal sector entities where the
72 institution does not have a significant investmarthose entities (amount below 10%

threshold and net of eligible short positions) 192
75 Deferred tax assets a}r_ising from temporary diﬁeqsr(amount below 10% threshold,

net of related tax liability where the conditionsArticle 38 (3) are met) 41
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in ier 2

Credit risk adjustments included in T2 in respéaposures subject to internal

ratings-based approach (prior to the applicatiothefcap) 24,486
79 Cap for inclusion of credit risk adjustment§under internal ratings-based approach 147
Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangemets (only applicable between
1 Jan 2013 and 1 Jan 2022)
84 Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phasarmangements 364
85 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess overadtp redemptions and

maturities) 0
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Note 38 Capital adequacy, cont.

Minimun capital requirement and REA

Group
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Minimun Minimun
capital capital

EURmM requirement REA requirement REA
Credit risk 3,059 38,231 3,163 39,543
- of which counterparty credit risk 663 8,285 362 4,520
IRB 2,200 27,496 1,827 22,837
- of which corporate 1,358 16,976 1,217 15,217

- of which advanced 488 6,103

- of which foundation 870 10,873 1,217 15,217
- of which institutions 358 4,465 279 3,490
- of which retail 465 5,816 313 3,910

- of which secured by immovable property collateral 184 2,300 222 2,769

- of which other retail 281 3,516 91 1,140
- of which other 19 239 18 220
Standardised 859 10,735 1,336 16,706
- of which central governments or central banks 17 208 8 103
- of which regional governments or local authositie 14 170 10 122
- of which public sector entities 2 20 3 32
- of which multilateral development banks
- of which international organisations
- of which institutions 692 8,663 848 10,596
- of which corporate 79 995 92 1,153
- of which retail 32 395 244 3,045
- of which secured by mortgages on immovable ptyper 74 931
- of which in default 1 13 27 333
- of which associated with particularly high risk
- of which covered bonds 12 145 17 211
- of which institutions and corporates with a skerm credit assessment
- of which collective investments undertakings (T1U
- of which equity 4 54 6 72
- of which other items 6 72 9 108
Credit Value Adjustment Risk 172 2,153
Market risk 443 5,536 644 8,048
- of which trading book, Internal Approach 298 3,720 421 5,262
- of which trading book, Standardised Approach 135 1,690 208 2,595
- of which banking book, Standardised Approach 10 126 15 191
Operational risk 366 4,579 405 5,060
Standardised 366 4,579 405 5,060
Sub total 4,040 50,499 4,212 52,652
Adjustment for Basel | floor
Additional capital requirement according to Baskbor 862 10,776 274 3,425
Total 4,902 61,275 4,486 56,077
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Note 38 Capital adequacy, cont.

Minimun capital requirement and REA

Parent company

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Minimun Minimun
capital capital

EURmM requirement REA requirement REA
Credit risk 2,737 34,223 2,805 35,064
- of which counterparty credit risk 663 8,285 362 4,520
IRB 1,959 24,486 1,717 21,463
- of which corporate 1,248 15,599 1,112 13,897

- of which advanced 489 6,115

- of which foundation 759 9,484 1,112 13,897
- of which institutions 356 4,457 279 3,488
- of which retail 337 4,215 313 3,910

- of which secured by immovable property collateral 184 2,300 222 2,769

- of which other retail 153 1,916 91 1,140
- of which other 17 215 13 168
Standardised 779 9,736 1,088 13,600
- of which central governments or central banks 16 205 8 103
- of which regional governments or local authositie 14 170 10 121
- of which public sector entities 2 20 3 32
- of which multilateral development banks
- of which international organisations
- of which institutions 700 8,742 849 10,608
- of which corporate 1 8 27 335
- of which retail 4 56 52 646
- of which secured by mortgages on immovable ptyper 74 931
- of which in default 0 1 15 191
- of which associated with particularly high risk
- of which covered bonds 10 122 17 211
- of which institutions and corporates with a skertn credit assessmer
- of which collective investments undertakings (T1U
- of which equity 27 343 34 424
- of which other items 5 69
Credit Value Adjustment Risk 172 2,153
Market risk 443 5,534 644 8,048
- of which trading book, Internal Approach 298 3,720 421 5,262
- of which trading book, Standardised Approach 135 1,691 208 2,595
- of which banking book, Standardised Approach 10 123 15 191
Operational risk 324 4,045 365 4,557
Standardised 324 4,045 365 4,557
Sub total 3,676 45,955 3,814 47,669
Adjustment for Basel | floor
Additional capital requirement according to Baskbor 704 8,807 222 2,781
Total 4,380 54,762 4,036 50,451

Nordea Bank AB (publ) has in December 2012 issugdasantee in favour of Nordea Bank Finland Plcretidordea Bank AB (publ)
guarantees part of the exposures in the exposass tRRB corporate in Nordea Bank Finland Plc. Téteeffect of the guarantee in REA in
Nordea Bank Finland Plc was EUR -3,7bn as end &4 267.6).
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Note 38 Capital adequacy, cont.

Leverage ratio'

Parent
Group company
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014
Tier 1 capital, transitional definition, EURm 9,004 8,456
Leverage ratio exposure, EURm 269,431 268,340
Leverage ratio, percentage 3.3 3.2
: Leverage ratio and volumes presented is based on three month average according to Supervisory Authority reporting process.
2 Including profit of the period
Capital requirements for market risk, 31 December P14
Group and parent company
Trading Trading Banking
book, IM book, SA book, S Total
Capital Capital Capital Capital
REA requirement REA requirement REA requirement REA requirement
Interest rate risk 949 76 1,387 111 2,336 187
Equity risk 267 21 201 23 558 45
Foreign exchange risk 325 26 126 10 451 36
Commodity risk 12 12 1
Settlement risk 0 0 0 0 0 0
Diversification effect -630 -50 -630 -50
Stressed Value-at-Risk 1,702 136 1,702 136
Incremental Risk Measure 638 51 638 51
Comprehensive Risk Measure 468 37 468 37
Total 3,720 298 1,690 135 126 10 5,536 443

! Interest rate risk column Trading book IA includes both general and specific interest rate risk which is elsewhere referred to as interest rate VaR and credit spread VaR.

2 of which the parent company EUR 123m in respect of Foreign exchange risk

The main features of the capital instruments issyedBF are presented on the internet www.nordealiceestor relations.

Specification over group undertakings consolidateih the Nordea Bank Finland Group

Carrying Voting
Number of amount power of Consolidation
31 Dec 2014 shares EURmM holding, % Domicile method
Group undertakings included in the NBF Group
Nordea Finance Finland Ltd 1,000,000 306 100 Hekeisin purchase method
Other companies 2
Total included in the capital base 308
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Note 39 Classification of financial instruments

Group Financial assets at fair

value through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Non-
Loans and Heldto  Held for profit or used for Available financial

31 Dec 2014, EURm receivables maturity trading loss hedging for sale assets Total

Assets

Cash and balances with central

banks 28,846 - - - - - - 28,846

Loans to central banks 18 - 282 - - - - 300

Loans to credit institutions 29,565 - 5,486 - - - - 35,051

Loans to the public 68,971 - 44777 - - - - 113,748

Interest-bearing securities - 66 22,772 - 11,805 - 34,643

Financial instruments pledged as

collateral - - 11,058 - - - - 11,058
Shares - - 1,911 7 - - - 1,918
Derivatives - - 104,312 - 942 - - 105,254
Fair value changes of the hedged

items in portfolio hedge of

interest rate risk 76 - - - - - - 76
Investments in associated

undertakings - - - - - - 39 39
Intangible assets - - - - - - 47 47
Property and equipment - - - - - - 84 84
Investment property - - - - - - 2 2
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 43 43
Current tax assets - - - - - - 0 0
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - 25 25
Other assets 1,337 - - 12,977 - - 310 14,624
Prepaid expenses and accrued

income 121 - - - - - 319 440
Total 128,934 66 190,598 12,984 942 11,805 869 IS,

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial financial

31 Dec 2014, EURm trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities

Deposits by credit institutions 26,194 - - 61,174 - 87,368
Deposits and borrowings from

the public 24,286 - - 52,593 - 76,879
Debt securities in issue 8,502 - - 39,970 - 48,472
Derivatives 102,564 - 312 - - 102,876
Fair value changes of the hedged

items in portfolio hedge of

interest rate risk - - - 773 - 773
Current tax liabilities - - - - 41 41
Other liabilities 6,273 10,061 - 2,034 209 18,577
Accrued expenses and prepaid
income - - - 193 611 804
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 57 57
Provisions - - - - 85 85
Retirement benefit liabilities - - - - 28 28
Subordinated liabilities - - - 620 - 620
Total 167,819 10,061 312 157,357 1,031 336,580
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Note 39 Classification of financial instruments, cont.

Group

Financial assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair
value
through  Derivatives Non-
Loans and Heldto  Held for profit or used for Available financial
31 Dec 2013, EURm receivables  maturity trading loss hedging for sale assets Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central
banks 30,904 - - - - - - 30,904
Loans to central banks 94 - 563 - - - - 657
Loans to credit institutions 28,542 - 6,568 - - - - 35,110
Loans to the public 73,603 - 40,176 - - - - 113,779
Interest-bearing securities - 2,166 21,322 - - 38,7 - 34,246
Financial instruments pledged as
collateral - - 9,739 - - - - 9,739
Shares - - 665 15 - - - 680
Derivatives - - 69,625 - 609 - - 70,234
Fair value changes of the hedged
items in portfolio hedge of interest
rate risk 58 - - - - - - 58
Investments in associated
undertakings - - - - - - 59 59
Intangible assets - - - - - - 100 100
Property and equipment - - - - - - 94 94
Investment property - - - - - - 113 113
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 5 5
Current tax assets - - - - - - 1 1
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - 133 133
Other assets 1,410 - - 6,606 - 261 8,277
Prepaid expenses and accrued
income 324 - - - - - 248 572
Total 134,935 2,166 148,658 6,621 609 10,758 1,01304,761
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial  financial
31 Dec 2013, EURm trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities
Deposits by credit institutions 22,333 - - 57,093 - 79,426
Deposits and borrowings from the
public 26,924 - - 53,985 - 80,909
Debt securities in issue 8,119 - - 39,011 - 47,130
Derivatives 66,806 - 303 - - 67,109
Fair value changes of the hedged
items in portfolio hedge of interest
rate risk - - - 369 - 369
Current tax liabilities - - - - 8 8
Other liabilities 10,405 5,871 - 2,240 339 18,855
Accrued expenses and prepaid
income - - - 453 413 866
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 53 53
Provisions - - - - 72 72
Retirement benefit liabilities - - - - 21 21
Subordinated liabilities - - - 429 - 429
Total 134,587 5,871 303 153,580 906 295,247
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Note 39 Classification of financial instruments, cont.

Parent company

Financial assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Non-
Loans and Held to Held for profit or used for Available financial

31 Dec 2014, EURm receivables  maturity trading loss hedging for sale assets Total

Assets

Cash and balances with central

banks 28,846 - - - - - - 28,846

Loans to central banks 18 - 282 - - - - 300

Loans to credit institutions 35,305 - 5,486 - - - - 40,791

Loans to the public 61,862 - 44777 - - - - 106,639

Interest-bearing securities - 66 22,772 - - 11,805 - 34,643

Financial instruments pledged as

collateral - - 11,058 - - - - 11,058

Shares - - 1,910 7 - - - 1,917

Derivatives - - 104,312 - 942 - - 105,254

Fair value changes of the hedged

items in portfolio hedge of

interest rate risk 76 - - - - - - 76
Investments in group

undertakings - - - - - - 308 308
Investments in associated

undertakings - - - - - - 28 28
Intangible assets - - - - - - 35 35
Property and equipment - - - - - - 71 71
Investment property - - - - - - 2 2
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 41 41
Current tax assets - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - - 25 25
Other assets 1,308 - - 12,977 - - 301 14,586
Prepaid expenses and accrued

income 112 - - - - - 147 259
Total 127,527 66 190,597 12,984 942 11,805 958 &7,

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial financial

31 Dec 2014, EURm trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities

Deposits by credit institutions 26,194 - - 60,934 - 87,128
Deposits and borrowings from

the public 24,286 - - 52,587 - 76,873
Debt securities in issue 8,502 - - 39,970 - 48,472
Derivatives 102,564 - 312 - - 102,876
Fair value changes of the hedged

items in portfolio hedge of

interest rate risk - - - 773 - 773
Current tax liabilities - - - - 39 39
Other liabilities 6,273 10,061 - 1,908 128 18,370
Accrued expenses and prepaid
income - - - 110 501 611
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - -
Provisions - - - - 82 82
Retirement benefit liabilities - - - - 25 25
Subordinated liabilities - - - 620 - 620
Total 167,819 10,061 312 156,902 775 335,869
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Note 39 Classification of financial instruments, cont.

Parent company

Financial assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Non-
Loans and Heldto  Held for profit or used for Available financial

31 Dec 2013, EURm receivables  maturity trading loss hedging for sale assets Total

Assets

Cash and balances with central

banks 30,904 - - - - - - 30,904

Loans to central banks 94 - 563 - - - - 657

Loans to credit institutions 33,995 - 6,568 - - - - 40,563

Loans to the public 67,092 - 40,176 - - - - 107,268

Interest-bearing securities - 2,166 21,322 - - 48,7 - 34,246

Financial instruments pledged as

collateral - - 9,739 - - - - 9,739

Shares - - 665 14 - - - 679

Derivatives - - 69,625 - 609 - - 70,234

Fair value changes of the hedged

items in portfolio hedge of

interest rate risk 58 - - - - - - 58
Investments in group

undertakings - - - - - - 376 376
Investments in associated

undertakings - - - - - - 34 34
Intangible assets - - - - - - 98 98
Property and equipment - - - - - 74 74
Investment property - - - - - - 8 8
Deferred tax assets - - - - - 2 2
Current tax assets - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit assets - - - - - 132 132
Other assets 1,377 - - 6,606 - - 250 8,233
Prepaid expenses and accrued

income 317 - - - - - 69 386
Total 133,837 2,166 148,658 6,620 609 10,758 1,04303,691

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Designated
at fair value
through  Derivatives Other Non-
Held for profit or used for financial financial

31 Dec 2013, EURm trading loss hedging liabilities liabilities Total
Liabilities

Deposits by credit institutions 22,333 - - 56,982 - 79,315
Deposits and borrowings from
the public 26,924 - - 53,984 - 80,908
Debt securities in issue 8,119 - - 39,011 - 47,130
Derivatives 66,806 - 303 - - 67,109
Fair value changes of the hedged
items in portfolio hedge of
interest rate risk - - - 369 - 369
Current tax liabilities - - - - 4 4
Other liabilities 10,405 5,871 - 2,139 272 18,687
Accrued expenses and prepaid
income - - - 366 302 668
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - -
Provisions - - - - 67 67
Retirement benefit liabilities - - - - 20 20
Subordinated liabilities - - - 429 - 429
Total 134,587 5,871 303 153,280 665 294,706
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Group

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
EURM Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Faiueal
Financial assets
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 28,846 30,904 30,904
Loans 149,099 147,874 149,546 149,607
Interest-bearing securities 34,643 34,647 34,246 34,252
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 11,058 11,058 9,739 9,739
Shares 1,918 1,918 680 680
Derivatives 105,254 105,254 70,234 70,234
Other assets 14,940 14,938 8,840 8,840
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 440 440 572 572
Total financial assets 346,198 344,975 304,761 304,828
Financial liabilities
Deposits and debt instruments 212,719 212,954 207,465 208,094
Derivatives 102,876 102,876 67,109 67,109
Other liabilities 19,561 19,560 19,378 19,378
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 804 804 866 866
Subordinated liabilities 620 620 429 429
Total financial liabilities 336,580 336,814 295,247 295,876
Parent company

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
EURM Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Faiueal
Financial assets
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 28,846 30,904 30,904
Loans 147,730 146,602 148,489 148,547
Interest-bearing securities 34,643 34,647 34,246 34,252
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 11,058 11,058 9,739 9,739
Shares 1,917 1,917 679 679
Derivatives 105,254 105,254 70,234 70,234
Other assets 15,172 15,171 9,014 9,014
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 259 259 386 386
Total financial assets 344,879 343,754 303,691 303,755
Financial liabilities
Deposits and debt instruments 212,473 212,707 207,353 207,982
Derivatives 102,876 102,876 67,109 67,109
Other liabilities 19,289 19,289 19,147 19,147
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 611 611 668 668
Subordinated liabilities 620 620 429 429
Total financial liabilities 335,869 336,103 294,706 295,335

For information about valuation of items measurefdia value on the balance sheet, see Note 1agetf “Determination of fair value of
financial instruments” and the section "Determioatdf fair values for items measured at fair valneghe balance sheet" in this note. For
information about valuation of items not measurefaia value on the balance sheet, see the setffioancial assets and liabilities not held at

fair value on the balance sheet" in this note.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Assets and liabilities at fair value on the balancsheet
Group

Categorisation into the fair value hierarchy

Quoted prices in
active markets

Valuation

Valuation
technique using

for same technique using non-observable
instrument  observable date data
31 Dec 2014, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets at fair value on the balance shéet
Loans to central banks - 282 - 282
Loans to credit institutions - 5,486 - 5,486
Loans to the public - 44,777 - 44,777
Interest-bearing securities 18,905 15,595 77 34,577
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 5,789 ,26% - 11,058
Shares 1,465 - 453 1,918
Derivatives 52 103,755 1,447 105,254
Investment properties - 2 - 2
Other assets - 12,977 - 12,977
Total 26,211 188,143 1,977 216,331
Liabilities at fair value on the balance sheét
Deposits by credit institutions - 26,194 - 26,194
Deposits and borrowings from the public - 24,286 - 24,286
Debt securities in issue - 8,502 - 8,502
Derivatives 39 101,199 1,638 102,876
Other liabilities 4,137 12,197 - 16,334
Total 4,176 172,378 1,638 178,192
* All items are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at the end of each reporting period.
Quoted prices in Valuation
active markets Valuation  technique using
for same technique using non-observable
instrument  observable date data
31 Dec 2013, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets at fair value on the balance shéet
Loans to central banks - 563 - 563
Loans to credit institutions - 6,568 - 6,568
Loans to the public - 40,176 - 40,176
Interest-bearing securities 21,985 9,880 215 32,080
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 5,998 748 - 9,739
Shares 236 - 444 680
Derivatives 52 68,553 1,629 70,234
Investment properties - 9 104 113
Other assets - 6,606 - 6,606
Total 28,271 136,096 2,392 166,759
Liabilities at fair value on the balance sheét
Deposits by credit institutions - 22,333 - 22,333
Deposits and borrowings from the public - 26,924 - 26,924
Debt securities in issue - 8,119 - 8,119
Derivatives 55 65,625 1,429 67,109
Other liabilities 8,680 7,595 1 16,276
Total 8,735 130,596 1,430 140,761
* All items are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at the end of each reporting period.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Parent company

Categorisation into the fair value hierarchy

Quoted prices in
active markets

Valuation

Valuation
technique using

for same technique using non-observable
instrument  observable date data
31 Dec 2014, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets at fair value on the balance shéet
Loans to central banks - 282 - 282
Loans to credit institutions - 5,486 - 5,486
Loans to the public - 44777 - 44777
Interest-bearing securities 18,905 15,595 77 34,577
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 5,789 ,26% - 11,058
Shares 1,465 - 452 1,917
Derivatives 52 103,755 1,447 105,254
Investment properties - 2 - 2
Other assets - 12,977 - 12,977
Total 26,211 188,143 1,976 216,330
Liabilities at fair value on the balance sheét
Deposits by credit institutions - 26,194 - 26,194
Deposits and borrowings from the public - 24,286 - 24,286
Debt securities in issue - 8,502 - 8,502
Derivatives 39 101,199 1,638 102,876
Other liabilities 4,137 12,197 - 16,334
Total 4,176 172,378 1,638 178,192
* All items are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at the end of each reporting period.
Quoted prices in Valuation
active markets Valuation  technique using
for same technique using non-observable
instrument  observable date data
31 Dec 2013, EURm (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets at fair value on the balance shéet
Loans to central banks - 563 - 563
Loans to credit institutions - 6,568 - 6,568
Loans to the public - 40,176 - 40,176
Interest-bearing securities 21,985 9,880 215 32,080
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 5,998 748 - 9,739
Shares 235 - 444 679
Derivatives 52 68,553 1,629 70,234
Investment properties - 4 4 8
Other assets - 6,606 - 6,606
Total 28,270 136,091 2,292 166,653
Liabilities at fair value on the balance sheét
Deposits by credit institutions - 22,333 - 22,333
Deposits and borrowings from the public - 26,924 - 26,924
Debt securities in issue - 8,119 - 8,119
Derivatives 55 65,625 1,429 67,109
Other liabilities 8,680 7,595 1 16,276
Total 8,735 130,596 1,430 140,761
* All items are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at the end of each reporting period.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Determination of fair values for items measured afair value on the balance sheet

Fair value measurements of assets and liabilitesed at fair value have been categorised unagethttee levels of the IFRS fair value
hierarchy. The fair active markets for identicadets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest pipitio unobservable inputs (Level 3). The
categorisation of these instruments is based olothest level input that is significant to the faalue measurement value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices (unadjustediiits entirety.

Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy consists ofetssind liabilities valued using unadjusted quetécks in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market for the asset or llap is a market in which transactions for theetsar liability occur with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an on-gpisasis. This category includes listed derivatilisted equities, government bonds in
developed countries, and most liquid mortgage bandscorporate bonds where direct tradable priotegiexist.

Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy consists ofeaissnd liabilities that do not have directly qulotearket prices available from active markets.
The fair values are estimated using valuation tegles or valuation models based on market priceates prevailing at the balance sheet date
and any unobservable inputs have had an insigntficapact on the fair values. This is the casdtiermajority of Nordea’s OTC derivatives,
securities purchased/sold under resale/repurchymseraents, securities borrowed/lent and otherinmsnts where active markets supply the
input to the valuation techniques or models.

Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy consists ofsadypes of assets and liabilities which fair valoannot be obtained directly from quoted
market prices or indirectly using valuation techurgg or models supported by observable market poicestes. This is generally the case for
investments in unlisted securities, private egfuityds and hedge funds and investment propertids.iigenerally also the case for more
complex OTC derivatives, including OTC derivativdsere less active markets supply input to the Yednaechniques or models, certain
complex or structured financial instruments suclEBNs and CDOs, and illiquid interest bearing sims. Complex valuation models are
generally characterised by the use of unobsenaitlenodel specific parameters.

All valuation models, both complex and simple msdeiake use of market parameters. These parametaggise interest rates, volatilities,
correlations etc. Some of these parameters arewvaiide while others are not. For non-exotic curiesithe interest rates are all observable, and
the volatilities and the correlations of the ingnates and FX rates are observable up to amcenaturity. Volatilities and correlations are also
observable for the most liquid equity instrumentghie short end. For less liquid equity instruménésoption market is fairly illiquid, and

hence the volatilities and correlations are unolzge. For each instrument the sensitivity towandsbservable parameters is measured. If the
impact from unobservable parameters on the valuaisignificant the instrument is categorised @gdl 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

For interest-bearing securities the categorisatitmthe three levels are based on the internalnq@rimethodology. These instruments can either
be directly quoted in active markets (Level 1) @asured using a methodology giving a quote basetservable inputs (Level 2). Level 3
bonds are characterised by illiquidity.

For OTC derivatives valuation models are used $tatgishing fair value. For collateralised contsa©iS interest rates are used for discounting.
These rates are observable in the market. Theti@iua in addition based on several other markeameters, depending on the nature of the
contract. Complex valuation models are used foreneswotic OTC derivatives. The models are usuallyanse developed, and based on
assumptions about the behaviour of the underlyssgteand statistical scenario analysis. As mertdiabeve OTC derivatives are generally
categorised as Level 2 in the fair value hieramhg all significant model parameters are thus efasde in active markets. For vanilla
derivatives standard models like e.g. Black-Schatesused for valuation.

Valuations of Private Equity Funds (PEF) and ualistquity instruments are by nature more uncetitain valuations of more actively traded
equity instruments. Emphasis is put on using aisterd approach across all assets and over timemithods used are consistent with the
guideline “International Private Equity and Vent@apital Valuation Guidelines” issued by EVCA (Epean Venture Capital Association).
The EVCA guidelines are considered as best prautittee PEF industry. For US based funds, similathods are applied.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities gemerally calculated as the theoretical net presoe of the individual instruments, based on
independently sourced market parameters as ded@afime, and assuming no risks and uncertaintfés.chlculation is supplemented by a
portfolio adjustment.

An important part of the portfolio adjustment relto counterparty risk in OTC-derivatives. Theuatipent is based on the current exposure
towards each counterpart, the estimated potentiatd exposure as well as an estimate of the ¢dstdging the counterparty risk. This cost of
hedging is either based directly on market priedsete available) or on a theoretical calculatiosdoton the internal credit rating of the
counterpart. Nordea also takes into account Nosde&dit spread in the valuation of derivatives £V

Another important part of the portfolio adjustmestves to adjust the net open market risk expostmesmid-prices to ask or bid prices
(depending on the net position). For different iskegories, exposures are aggregated and nettedieng to internal guidelines and
aggregated market price information on bid-askagsere applied in the calculation. Spreads aratagdn a regular basis.

The fair value measurement of the investment ptigsetakes into account a market participant'staltd generate economic benefits by using
the investment properties in its highest and bgst iue. taking into account the use of the investrproperties that is physically possible,
legally permissible and financially feasible. Therent use of the investment properties in Nordea accordance with the highest and best
use. The valuation of the investment propertiesisied out taking into account the purpose and#tere of the property by using the most
appropriate valuation methods. The primary valuséipproach is a discounted cash flow model usingenticash flows, market interest rates
and the current yield requirements.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Transfers between level 1 and 2

During the year, Nordea Bank Finland transferreat decurities of EUR 134m (1,032m) from level 2eteel 1 of the fair value hierarchy for
financial assets and 55m (Om) for financial lidke8 which are recorded at fair value. The reasotihfe transfer from level 2 to level 1 was that
the instruments have been actively traded durieg/éar and reliable quoted prices are obtaineldemtarket. Transfers between levels are

considered to have occurred at the end of year.
Movements in level 3

Group

Fair value gains/losses
recognised in the income
statement during the year

Purchases/
31 Dec 2014, EURm 1Jan 2014 Reclassification iB=hl  Unrealised Issues Sales
Interest-bearing securities 215 - 3 6 89 -232
Shares 444 - 35 22 26 -74
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) 200 - -521 -391 - -
Investment properties 104 - - - - -104
Other liabilities 1 - - - - -1
Transfers

Transfers into out from Translation 31 Dec
31 Dec 2014, EURm Settlements level 3 level 3 differences 2014
Interest-bearing securities -3 - - - 77
Shares - - - - 453
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) 521 - - - -191

Investment properties
Other liabilities

Unrealised gains and losses relate to those amsettgabilities held at the end of the reporting@e: Fair value gains and losses in the income
statement during the year are included in "Netltdégam items at fair value" (see Note 5). Assetd &abilities related to derivatives are

presented net.

Group

Fair value gains/losses
recognised in the income
statement during the year

31 Dec 2013, EURm 1 Jan 2013 Realised Unrealised Purchases Sales
Interest-bearing securities 277 4 71 96 -227
Shares 527 13 -16 38 -118
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) 269 289 -69 - -
Investment properties 94 0 0 28 -17
Other liabilities - -20 0 - -
Transfers Transfers out  Translation

31 Dec 2013, EURm Settlements Issues into level 3 from level 3 differences 31 Dec 2013
Interest-bearing securities -6 - - - - 215
Shares - - - - - 444
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) -289 - - - - 200
Investment properties - - - - -1 104
Other liabilities -608 608 22 -1 - 1

Unrealised gains and losses relates to those asgetibilities held at the end of the reportimgipd. During the period NBF transferred other
liabilities of EUR 21m from Level 2 to Level 3. @hmeason for the transfer from Level 2 to Level&what observable market data was no
longer available. Transfers between levels areideresd to have occurred at the end of the repopered. Fair value gains and losses in the
income statement during the year are included &t 'tsult from items at fair value" (see Note 5séts and liabilities related to derivatives are

presented net.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Parent company

Fair value gains/losses
recognised in the income
statement during the year

Purchases/

31 Dec 2014, EURm 1Jan 2014  Reclassification iGehl Unrealised Issues Sales
Interest-bearing securities 215 - 3 6 89 -232
Shares 444 - 35 22 26 -74
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) 200 - -521 -391 - -
Investment properties 4 - - - - -4
Other liabilities 1 - - - - -1

Transfers into Transfers out  Translation 31 Dec
31 Dec 2014, EURm Settlements level 3 from level 3 differences 2014
Interest-bearing securities -3 - - - 77
Shares - - - - 452
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) 521 - - - -191

Investment properties
Other liabilities

Unrealised gains and losses relates to those aswbtmbilities held at the end of the reportirgipd- Fair value gains and losses in the income
statement during the year are included in "Netltésam items at fair value" (see Note 5). Assetd &abilities related to derivatives are

presented net.

Parent company

Fair value gains/losses
recognised in the income
statement during the year

31 Dec 2013, EURm 1 Jan 2013 Realised Unrealised Purchases Sales
Interest-bearing securities 277 4 71 96 -227
Shares 527 13 -16 38 -118
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) 269 289 69 - - -
Investment properties 4 - 0 0 0
Other liabilities - -20 0 - -
Transfers into  Transfers out Translation
31 Dec 2013, EURm Settlements Issues level 3 from level 3  differences 31 Dec 2013
Interest-bearing securities -6 - - - - 215
Shares - - - - - 444
Derivatives (net assets and liabilities) -289 - - - - 200
Investment properties - - - - -
Other liabilities -608 608 22 -1 -

Unrealised gains and losses relates to those asgetibilities held at the end of the reportimgipd. During the period NBF transferred other
liabilities of EUR 21m from level 2 to level 3. Thheason for the transfer from level 2 to level 3w@at observable market data was no longer
available. Transfers between levels are considerbdve occurred at the end of the reporting peftaét value gains and losses in the income
statement during the year are included in "Netltdégam items at fair value" (see Note 5). Assetd &abilities related to derivatives are

presented net.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

The valuation processes for fair value measuremenis level 3

Financial instruments
Valuation principles in Nordea are determined id approved by the Group Valuation Committee (GM&YC issues guiding policies to the
business units on how to establish a robust valngiiocess and minimise the valuation uncertaifite. GVC also serves as escalation point.

The valuation process in Nordea consists of segtegk. The first step is the initial end of da@® marking of mid-prices. The mid-prices
are either fixed by front office or received froxternal sources. The second step is the contrblywhich is performed by independent control
units. The cornerstone in the control is the indejeat price verification (IPV). The IPV test congas verification of the correctness of prices
and other parameters used in the net present (fdRi¢) calculation, the adequacy of the valuatiordels, including an assessment of whether
to use quoted prices or valuation models, andali@hility of the assumptions and parameters usele valuation adjustments at portfolio
level covering mainly liquidity (bid/offer spreadjiodel and credit risk adjustments.

The verification of the correctness of prices atitebparameters is carried out daily. Third-pamfipimation, such as broker quotes and pricing
services, is used as benchmark data in the veitfitalhe quality of the benchmark data is asseeseagiregular basis. This quality assessment
is used in the measurement of the valuation uringyta

The valuation adjustments at portfolio level anel dieferrals of day 1 P/L on level 3 trades areutaled and reported on a monthly basis. The
actual assessment of instruments in the fair Viailerarchy is performed on a continuous basis.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair viae measurements in level 3

Group and parent company

31 Dec 2014, EURm Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable input f;?i?\r/]s?die?f

Interest-bearing securities

Municipalities and other public bodies - Discountegh flows Credit spread -

Mortgage and other credit institutions 77 Discodrtash flows Credit spread =717

Corporates - Discounted cash flows Credit spread -

Other - - - -

Total 77

Other liabilities - Discounted cash flows Credit spread -

Total -

Shares

Private equity funds 318 Net asset value

Hedge funds 129 Net asset valtie

Credit Funds - Net asset value/market consertsus

Other funds - Net asset value/Fund prices

Other 6 -

Total? 453

Derivatives

Interest rate derivatives 180 Option model Corietfest -12/9
Volatilities

Equity derivatives -242  Option model Correlations -18/12
Volatilities
Dividend

Foreign exchange derivatives -31  Option model €ations +/-0
Volatilities

Credit derivatives -129  Credit derivat model @tations -10/9
Recovery rates

Other 31 Option model Correlations +/-0
Volatilities

Total -191

* The fair values are based on prices and net assets values delivered by external suppliers/custodians. The prices are fixed by the suppliers/custodians on the basis of the
development in assets behind the investments. For private equity funds the dominant measurement methology used by the suppliers/custodians, is consistent with the
International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation (IPEV) guidelines issued by the EVCA (European Venture Capital Association).

2 Effects of reasonably possible alternative assumptions are EURm -39/39 (EURM -36/36).

3 Range of fair value for derivatives 31 Dec 2013 was EURm -30/25 and for interest-bearing securities EURm -20/20.
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

The tables on previous page show, for each clagssgfts and liabilities categorised in Level 3 fifirevalue, the valuation techniques used to
estimate the fair value, significant unobservabjrits used in the valuation techniques and fonfiie assets and liabilities the fair value
sensitivity to changes in key assumptions.

The column “range of fair value” and the footna?esnd 3 in the tables above shows the sensitiVitigeofair values of Level 3 financial
instruments to changes in key assumptions. Wheresthosure to an unobservable parameter is offsessdifferent instruments then only the
net impact is disclosed in the table. The rangelaed are likely to be greater than the true uat#y in fair value of these instruments, as it is
unlikely in practice that all unobservable paramrgeteould be simultaneously at the extremes of tfagiges of reasonably possible alternatives.
The disclosure is neither predictive nor indicatiféuture movements in fair value.

In order to calculate the sensitivity (range) iim fealue of derivatives a range of different mouhgllapproaches are applied to determine an
uncertainty interval around the reported fair valliee different approaches applied target varispeets of derivatives pricing. Two common
components of derivative valuation models are Vdiadf underlying risk factors and correlationtbeen the relevant risk factors. Each of
these is addressed by applying different assungptmmput and/or the choice of modelling appro&gsides these common factors a number
of asset class specific factors are addressedeThelside equity dividend expectations, recovesuaptions for credit derivatives and inflation
expectations. The fair values of derivatives aesented as the net of assets and liabilities.

In order to calculate the sensitivity (range) iim f@lue of shares and interest-bearing secutitiedair value was increased and decreased
within a total range of 2-10 percentage units ddpenof the valuation uncertainty and underlyinguasptions. Higher ranges are applied to
instruments with more uncertain valuations relativactively traded instruments and underlying utageties in individual assumptions.

Movements in deferred Day 1 profit or loss

The transaction price for financial instrumentsame cases differs from the fair value at initiagnition measured using a valuation model,
mainly due to that the transaction price is natleighed in an active market. If there are sigaificunobservable inputs used in the valuation
technique (Level 3), the financial instrument isagnised at the transaction price and any differdratween the transaction price and fair value
at initial recognition measured using a valuatiardel (Day 1 profit) is deferred. For more infornoatisee, Note 1 "Accounting policies". The
table below shows the aggregate difference yeetebognised in the income statement at the begjranid end of the period and a
reconciliation of changes in how this aggregatéfédince has been changed during the year (movenredeferred Day 1 profit).

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec
Deferred day 1 profit - derivatives EURm 2014 2013 2014 2013
Amount at beginning of year -41 -43 -41 -43
Deferred profit/loss on new transactions -15 -11 5-1 -11
Recognised in the income statement during the year 12 13 12 13
Amount at end of year -44 -41 -44 -41
Financial assets and liabilities not held at fair alue on the balance sheet
Group

Level in fair

31 Dec 2014, EURm Carrying amount Fair value value hierarchy
Assets not held at fair value on the balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 28,846 1
Loans 98,630 97,405 3
Interest bearing-securities 66 70 1,2,3
Other assets and Prepaid expenses and accruedeincom 1,458 1,458 3
Total 129,000 127,779
Liabilities not held at fair value on the balance beet
Deposits and debt instruments 155,130 155,364
Other liabilities and Accrued expenses and prejpaidme 2,227 2,226
Total 157,357 157,590
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Financial assets and liabilities not held at fair &lue on the balance sheet

Group

Level in fair
31 Dec 2013, EURm Carrying amount Fair value value hierarchy
Assets not held at fair value on the balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 30,904 30,904 1
Loans 102,297 102,358 3
Interest bearing-securities 2,166 2,173 1,2,3
Other assets and Prepaid expenses and accruedeincom 1,734 1,734 3
Total 137,101 137,169
Liabilities not held at fair value on the balance beet
Deposits and debt instruments 150,887 151,517
Other liabilities and Accrued expenses and prejpaidme 2,693 2,693
Total 153,580 154,210
Parent company

Level in fair
31 Dec 2014, EURm Carrying amount Fair value value hierarchy
Assets not held at fair value on the balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 28,846 1
Loans 97,261 96,133 3
Interest bearing-securities 66 69 1,2,3
Other assets and Prepaid expenses and accruedeincom 1,420 1,420 3
Total 127,593 126,468
Liabilities not held at fair value on the balance keet
Deposits and debt instruments 154,884 155,118
Other liabilities and Accrued expenses and prejpaidme 2,018 2,017
Total 156,902 157,135

Level in fair
31 Dec 2013, EURm Carrying amount Fair value value hierarchy
Assets not held at fair value on the balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 30,904 30,904 1
Loans 101,239 101,297 3
Interest bearing-securities 2,166 2,173 1,2,3
Other assets and Prepaid expenses and accruedeincom 1,694 1,694 3
Total 136,003 136,068
Liabilities not held at fair value on the balance keet
Deposits and debt instruments 150,775 151,405
Other liabilities and Accrued expenses and prejpaidme 2,505 2,505
Total 153,280 153,910
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Note 40 Assets and liabilities at fair value, cont.

Cash and balances with central banks
The fair value equals the carrying amount. Thevialue is based on quoted prices in active mafket®levant currencies and therefore the fair
value measurement is categorised into Level 1érfdir value hierarchy.

Loans

The fair value of "Loans to central banks", "Loan€redit institutions" and "Loans to the publi@ve been estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows with an assumed custmtezest rate that would have been used on thkendithe loans had been issued at the
time of the measurement. The assumed customeesttette is calculated as the benchmark intertsphas the average margin on new
lending in Retail Banking and Wholesale Bankingeesively. The carrying amount of floating raterieas assumed to equal fair value.

For the comparative figures 2013 the fair valuegehzeen calculated as the carrying amount adjdstddir value changes in interest rate risk.
The fair value changes related to interest rakeisibased on changes in relevant interest ratepared with corresponding nominal interest
rates in the portfolios. No adjustment has beenenfiadchanges in fair value of credit risk.

The fair value measurement is categorised into IL2we the fair value hierarchy.

Interest bearing-securities
The fair value is EUR 69m, of which EUR 27m is gatésed in level 1 and EUR 42m in Level 2 of thie falue hierarchy. The measurement
principles follow those for similar instruments tlz@e held at fair value on the balance sheet.

Other assets and prepaid expenses and accrued inoem
The balance sheet items "Other assets" and "Pregp&hses and accrued income" consist of shoritvedes, mainly accrued interest
receivables. The fair value is therefore considéoeghjual the carrying amount and is categoristglliavel 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Deposits and debt instruments

The fair value of "Deposits by credit institutionéDeposits and borrowings from the public”, “Dedgtcurities in issue” and “Subordinated
liabilities” has been calculated as the carryingant adjusted for fair value changes in interegt risk and in own credit risk. The fair value is
categorised into Level 3 in the fair value hiergrchhe fair value changes related to interestniakeis based on changes in relevant interest
rates compared with corresponding nominal inteastin the portfolios. The fair value changeshia ¢redit risk is calculated as a difference
between the credit spread in the nominal integstcompared with the current spread that is obden/the market. This calculation is
performed on an aggregated level for all long tessmance recognised in the balance sheet items 42ebrities in issue” and “Subordinated
liabilities”. As the contractual maturity is shdor “Deposits by credit institutions” and “Deposéad borrowing from the public” the changes in
Nordea’s own credit risk related to these itenas@imed not to be significant. This is also the fasshort term issuances recognised in the
balance sheet items “Debt securities in issue™&uthordinated liabilities”.

Other liabilities and accrued expenses and prepaithcome

The balance sheet items "Other liabilities" andced expenses and prepaid income" consist of-ghont liabilities, mainly liabilities on
securities settlement. The fair value is theretamesidered to be equal to the carrying amount suwedtegorised into level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy.
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Note 41 Financial instruments set off on balance o r subject to netting agreements

Group Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross liabilities  Net carrying
recognised set off on amount on Financial Cash
financial  the balance the balance Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2014, EURm assets sheet sheet instruments received received Net amount
Assets
Derivatives 246,566 -141,495 105,071 -82,119 - 39,5 13,422
Reverse repurchase agreements 50,545 - 50,545 5019,7 -30,370 - 425
Total 297,111 -141,495 155,616 -101,869 -30,370 539, 13,847
Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross assets set Net carrying
recognised off on the amount on Financial Cash
financial balance the balance Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2014, EURm liabilities" sheet sheet  instruments pledged pledged Net amount
Liabilities
Derivatives 243,463 -14,495 101,968 -82,119 - 94,7 8,053
Repurchase agreements 50,480 - 50,480 -19,750 99,0 - 1,634
Total 293,943 -141,495 152,448 -101,869 -29,096 726 9,687

* All amounts are measured at fair value.

2 Reverse repurchase agreements and Securities borrowing agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Loans to central banks, Loans to credit institutions or Loans to

the public. Repurchase agreements and Securities lending agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Deposits by credit institution or as Deposits and borrowings from
the public.

Group Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross liabilities
recognised set off on Net carrying Financial Cash
financial  the balance amount on the Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2013, EURm assets sheet balance she&t instruments received received Net amount
Assets
Derivatives 128,024 -58,022 70,002 -56,569 - -4,359 9,074
Reverse repurchase agreements 47,307 - 47,307 84,6 -22,201 - 419
Total 175,331 -58,022 117,309 -81,257 -22,201 -8,35 9,493
Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross assets set
recognised off on the Net carrying Financial Cash
financial balance amount on the Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2013, EURm liabilities" sheet balance she&t instruments pledged pledged Net amount
Liabilities
Derivatives 124,005 -58,022 65,983 -56,569 - -4,869 4,545
Repurchase agreements 49,257 - 49,257 -24,688 94€0,8 - 3,675
Total 173,262 -58,022 115,240 -81,257 -20,894 -8,86 8,220

* All amounts are measured at fair value.

2 Reverse repurchase agreements and Securities borrowing agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Loans to central banks, Loans to credit institutions or Loans to

the public. Repurchase agreements and Securities lending agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Deposits by credit institution or as Deposits and borrowings from
the public.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 115



Note 41 Financial instruments set off on balance or subject to netting agreements, cont.

Parent company Amounts not set off but subject to master

netting agreements and similar agreements

Gross
recognised
financial
Gross liabilities Net carrying
recognised set off on amount on Financial Cash
financial the balance the balance Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2014, EURm assets sheet sheet instruments received received Net amount
Assets
Derivatives 246,566 -141,495 105,071 -82,119 - 30,5 13,422
Reverse repurchase agreements 50,545 - 50,545 5019,7 -30,370 - 425
Total 297,111 -141,495 155,616 -101,869 -30,370 530, 13,847
Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross assets set  Net carrying
recognised  off on the amount on Financial Cash
financial balance the balance Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2014, EURm liabilities" sheet sheet instruments pledged pledged  Net amount
Liabilities
Derivatives 243,463 -141,495 101,968 -82,119 - 78, 8,053
Repurchase agreements 50,480 - 50,480 -19,750 9@9,0 - 1,634
Total 293,943 -141,495 152,448 -101,869 -29,096 A28 9,687

* All amounts are measured at fair value.

2Reverse repurchase agreements and Securities borrowing agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Loans to central banks, Loans to credit institutions or Loans to
the public. Repurchase agreements and Securities lending agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Deposits by credit institution or as Deposits and borrowings from
the public.

Parent company Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross liabilities
recognised set off on Net carrying Financial Cash
financial  the balance amount on the Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2013, EURmM assets sheet balance sheét instruments received received Net amount
Assets
Derivatives 128,024 -58,022 70,002 -56,569 - -4,359 9,074
Reverse repurchase agreements 47,307 - 47,307 84,6 -22,201 - 419
Total 175,331 -58,022 117,309 -81,257 -22,201 -9,35 9,493
Amounts not set off but subject to master
netting agreements and similar agreements
Gross
recognised
financial
Gross assets set
recognised off on the Net carrying Financial Cash
financial balance amount on the Financial collateral collateral
31 Dec 2013, EURm liabilities* sheet balance she&t instruments pledged pledged Net amount
Liabilities
Derivatives 124,005 -58,022 65,983 -56,569 - -4,869 4,545
Repurchase agreements 49,257 - 49,257 -24,688 940,8 - 3,675
Total 173,262 -58,022 115,240 -81,257 -20,894 -9,86 8,220

* All amounts are measured at fair value.

2Reverse repurchase agreements and Securities borrowing agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Loans to central banks, Loans to credit institutions or Loans to
the public. Repurchase agreements and Securities lending agreements are on the balance sheet classified as Deposits by credit institution or as Deposits and borrowings from
the public.
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Note 41 Financial instruments set off on balance or subject to netting agreements, cont.

Enforceable master netting arrangements and similangreements

The fact that financial instruments are being anted for on a gross basis on the balance sheetdwotiimply that the financial instruments
are not subject to master netting agreements dlasiarrangements. Generally financial instrumédesivatives, repos and securities lending
transactions), would be subject to master nettgrgements, and as a consequence Nordea wouldlbedlto benefit from netting both in the
ordinary course of business and in the case ofitéfavards its counter parties, in any calculaionolving counterparty credit risk. The
reason why the netted exposures are not reflectéeriassets and liabilities on the balance sheetldan most instances depend on the limited
application of net settlement of financial trangats.

For a description of counterparty risk see sed®ak, Liquidity and Capital management, “Countetparedit risk” in the Board of Directors'
report.

Note 42 Transferred assets and obtained collateral s

Transferred assets that are not derecognised in tiveentirety and associated liabilities
All assets transferred continue to be recognisethemalance sheet if Nordea is still exposed tmghs in the fair value of the assets. This is
the case for repurchase agreements and secueitiding) transactions.

Repurchase agreements are a form of collateratisedwing where Nordea sells securities with areagrent to repurchase them at a later date
at a fixed price. The cash received is recogniseal deposit (liability). Securities delivered undggurchase agreements are not derecognised
from the balance sheet.

Securities lending transactions are transactioreyevNordea lends securities it holds to a countegal receives a fee.

As both repurchase agreements and securities i@dinsactions results in the securities are retuta Nordea, all risks and rewards of the
instruments transferred is retained by Nordeapaljh they are not available for Nordea during theqga during which they are transferred.

The counterpart in the transactions holds the #e&sias collateral, but has no recourse to otkseta in Nordea.

The securities still reported on the balance sheétthe corresponding liabilities are measurediavalue.

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Repurchase agreements
Interest-bearing securities 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
Total 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
Liabilities associated with the assets
Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Repurchase agreements
Deposits by credit institutions 6,399 3,085 6,399 3,085
Deposits and borrowings from the public 4,659 6,654 4,659 6,654
Total 11,058 9,739 11,058 9,739
Net 0 0 0 0

Obtained collaterals which are permitted to be solar repledged

NBF obtains collaterals under reverse repurchadesecurities borrowing agreements which, undetetras of the agreements, can be sold or
repledged. The transactions are conducted undetathagreements employed by financial marketsczants. Generally, the agreements
require additional collateral to be provided if tredue of the securites falls below a predetermieeel. Under standard terms for most
repurchase transactions, the recipient of collaters an unrestricted right to sell or repledgsubject to returning equivalent securities on
settlement of the transactions. The fair valuehefgecurities obtained as collateral under reveysgrchase and securities borrowing
agreements are disclosed below.

Group Parent company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Reverse repurchase agreements
Received collaterals which can be repledged or sold 48,465 45,944 48,465 45,944
- of which repledged or sold 38,733 39,068 38,733 39,068
Total 48,465 45,944 48,465 45,944
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Note 43 Maturity analysis for assets and liabiliti  es
Group
Expected maturity
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Expected to be recovered Expected to be recovered
or settled: or settled:
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
EURmM Note months months Total months months Total
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 - ,8488 30,904 - 30,904
Loans to central banks 13 300 - 300 657 - 657
Loans to credit institutions 13 26,051 9,000 35,05 21,070 14,040 35,110
Loans to the public 13 56,322 57,426 113,748 58,339 55,440 113,779
Interest-bearing securities 14 12,775 21,868 34,643 10,031 24,215 34,246
Financial instruments pledged as
collateral 15 4,065 6,993 11,058 7,088 2,651 9,739
Shares 16 1,917 1 1,918 665 15 680
Derivatives 17 14,823 90,431 105,254 8,026 62,208 70,234
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 18 2 74 76 7 51 58
Investments in group undertakings 19 - - - - - -
Investments in associated undertakings 20 2 37 39 - 59 59
Intangible assets 21 6 41 47 3 97 100
Properties and equipment 7 77 84 2 92 94
Investment properties 23 - 2 2 1 112 113
Deferred tax assets 12 43 0 43 4 1 5
Current tax assets 12 0 - 0 1 - 1
Retirement benefit assets 32 - 25 25 - 133 133
Other assets 24 14,623 1 14,624 8,273 4 8,277
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 25 440 - 440 2 57 - 572
Total assets 160,222 185,976 346,198 145,643 159,118 304,761
Deposits by credit institutions 26 82,291 5,077 388, 73,991 5,435 79,426
Deposits and borrowings from the public 27 76,646 332 76,879 79,820 1,089 80,909
Debt securities in issue 28 26,510 21,962 48,472 5,648 21,482 47,130
Derivatives 17 14,427 88,449 102,876 8,810 58,299 67,109
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 18 35 738 773 25 344 369
Current tax liabilities 12 41 - 41 8 - 8
Other liabilities 29 18,577 - 18,577 18,855 - 18,85
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 30 801 3 804 3 86 3 866
Deferred tax liabilities 12 41 16 57 39 14 53
Provisions 31 0 85 85 2 70 72
Retirement benefit liabilities 32 3 25 28 - 21 21
Subordinated liabilities 33 - 620 620 360 69 429
Total liabilities 219,372 117,208 336,580 208142 86,826 295,247
Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014 118



Note 43 Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities, cont.

Parent company

Expected maturity

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Expected to be recovered Expected to be recovered
or settled: or settled:
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
EURM Note months months Total months months Total
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 ,8488 30,904 - 30,904
Loans to central banks 13 300 - 300 657 - 657
Loans to credit institutions 13 30,631 10,160 40,79 25,671 14,892 40,563
Loans to the public 13 52,012 54,627 106,639 54,647 52,621 107,268
Interest-bearing securities 14 12,775 21,868 34,643 10,031 24,215 34,246
Financial instruments pledged as
collateral 15 4,065 6,993 11,058 7,088 2,651 9,739
Shares 16 1,917 - 1,917 665 14 679
Derivatives 17 14,822 90,432 105,254 8,026 62,208 70,234
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 18 2 74 76 7 51 58
Investments in group undertakings 19 - 308 308 - 376 376
Investments in associated undertakings 20 - 28 28 - 34 34
Intangible assets 21 - 35 35 - 98 98
Properties and equipment - 71 71 - 74 74
Investment properties 23 - 2 2 - 8 8
Deferred tax assets 12 41 - 41 2 -
Current tax assets 12 - - - - - -
Retirement benefit assets 32 - 25 25 - 132 132
Other assets 24 14,586 - 14,586 8,233 - 8,233
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 25 259 259 6 38 - 386
Total assets 160,256 184,623 344,879 146,317 3AY, 303,691
Deposits by credit institutions 26 82,051 5,077 123, 73,949 5,366 79,315
Deposits and borrowings from the public 27 76,646 272 76,873 79,819 1,089 80,908
Debt securities in issue 28 26,510 21,962 48,472 5,648 21,482 47,130
Derivatives 17 14,427 88,449 102,876 8,810 58,299 67,109
Fair value changes of the hedged items in
portfolio hedge of interest rate risk 18 35 738 773 25 344 369
Current tax liabilities 12 39 - 39 4 - 4
Other liabilities 29 18,370 - 18,370 18,687 - 19,68
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 30 611 611 8 66 - 668
Deferred tax liabilities 12 - - - - - -
Provisions 31 - 82 82 - 67 67
Retirement benefit liabilities 32 - 25 25 - 20 20
Subordinated liabilities 33 - 620 620 360 69 429
Total liabilities 218,689 117,180 335,869 207,970 86,736 294,706
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Note 43 Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities, cont.

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Group

Payable  Maximum More than
31 Dec 2014, EURm ondemand 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
Interest bearing financial assets 30,571 69,519 35,671 60,185 37,974 233,920
Non interest bearing financial assets 121,682 121,682
Non-financial assets 869 869
Total assets 30,571 69,519 35,671 60,185 160,525 356,471
Interest bearing financial liabilities 46,057 106,000 34,041 23,669 6,025 215,792
Non interest bearing financial liabilities 122,209 122,209
Non-financial liabilities and equity 10,649 10,649
Total liabilities and equity 46,057 106,000 34,041 23,669 138,883 348,650
Derivatives, cash inflow 460,348 126,316 221,216 69,384 877,264
Derivatives, cash outflow 480,726 124,947 212,268 70,075 888,017
Net exposure - -20,378 1,369 8,948 -691 -10,752
Exposure -15,486 -56,859 2,998 45,463 20,952 -2,932
Cumulative exposure -15,486 -72,345 -69,347 -23,883 -2,932

Payable  Maximum More than
31 Dec 2013, EURm ondemand 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
Interest bearing financial assets 36,850 67,487 26,151 67,676 41,783 239,948
Non-interest bearing financial assets 79,409 79,409
Non-financial assets 1,014 1,014
Total assets 36,850 67,487 26,151 67,676 122,206 320,370
Interest bearing financial liabilities 41,808 110,698 28,689 21,628 7,964 210,786
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities 86,446 86,446
Non-financial liabilities and equity 10,420 10,420
Total liabilities and equity 41,808 110,698 28,689 21,628 104,830 307,652
Derivatives, cash inflow 467,888 125,713 212,976 68,318 874,896
Derivatives, cash outflow 469,864 125,876 212,411 69,415 877,566
Net exposure - -1,975 -162 565 -1,097 -2,670
Exposure -4,958 -45,186 -2,700 46,613 16,279 10,048
Cumulative exposure -4,958 -50,144 -52,844 -6,230 10,048
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Note 43 Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities, cont.

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Parent company

Payable  Maximum More than
31 Dec 2014, EURm ondemand 3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years 5 years Total
Interest bearing financial assets 29,728 70,756 35,183 58,635 37,565 231,866
Non-interest bearing financial assets 121,757 121,757
Non-financial assets 958 958
Total assets 29,728 70,756 35,183 58,635 160,280 354,582
Interest bearing financial liabilities 45,986 105,721 33,911 22,990 6,671 215,279
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities 122,115 122,115
Non-financial liabilities and equity 9,785 9,785
Total liabilities and equity 45,986 105,721 33,911 22,990 138,570 347,179
Derivatives, cash inflow 460,348 126,316 221,216 69,384 877,264
Derivatives, cash outflow 480,726 124,947 212,268 70,075 888,017
Net exposure - -20,378 1,369 8,948 -691 -10,752
Exposure -16,258 -55,343 2,641 44,592 21,019 -3,350
Cumulative exposure -16,258 -71,602 -68,961 -24,369 -3,350

Payable  Maximum More than
31 Dec 2013, EURm ondemand 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
Interest bearing financial assets 37,624 67,494 25,779 66,139 41,434 238,470
Non-interest bearing financial assets 79,280 79,280
Non-financial assets 1,043 1,043
Total assets 37,624 67,494 25,779 66,139 121,757 318,794
Interest bearing financial liabilities 47,209 105,119 28,556 20,882 8,593 210,360
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities 86,259 86,259
Non-financial liabilities and equity 9,650 9,650
Total liabilities and equity 47,209 105,119 28,556 20,882 104,502 306,269
Derivatives, cash inflow 467,888 125,713 212,976 68,318 874,896
Derivatives, cash outflow 469,864 125,876 212,411 69,415 877,566
Net exposure - -1,975 -162 565 -1,097 -2,670
Exposure -9,584 -39,601 -2,939 45,821 16,158 9,855
Cumulative exposure -9,584 -49,185 -52,124 -6,303 9,855

The table is based on contractual maturities ferah balance sheet items financial instrumentsdEovatives, the expected cash inflows and
outflows are disclosed for both derivative assatba@erivative liabilities, as derivatives are magtagn a net basis. In addition to the
instruments on the balance sheet items and demvitstruments, Nordea has credit commitments atim@ito EUR 16,021m (15,882), which
could be drawn on at any time.

NBF has also issued guarantees of EUR 13,283m23)yéhich may lead to future cash outflows if certevents occur.
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Note 44 Related-party transactions

Shareholders with significant influence and clasmify members to key management personnel in NoBieap as well as companies

significantly influenced by key management persbonéy close family members to key managementquersl in Nordea Group are

considered to be related parties to Nordea. Indui¢his group of related parties are Sampo OgjAegon Asset Management. If transactions
with related companies are made in Nordea's ancethged companies' ordinary course of busines®aritle same criteria and terms as those
for comparable transactions with parties of sinsik@anding, and if they did not involve more thammal risktaking, the transactions are not

included in the table.

Group
Nordea Group Nordea Group
undertakings associated undertakings  Other related parties
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets
Loans 31,145 28,488 185 143 - -
Interest-bearing securities 2,750 3,683 57 120 -
Financial instruments pledged as collateral 1,823 ,091 - - - -
Derivatives 4,455 2,163 218 141 - -
Other assets 2,193 1,259 - - - -
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 24 23 -
Total assets 42,390 36,713 460 404 - -
Liabilities
Deposits 52,794 42,073 106 44 1 74
Debt securities in issue 759 1,243 0 11 - -
Derivatives 7,398 2,795 154 34 - -
Subordinated liabilities 550 - - - - -
Other liabilities 230 403 - - - -
Accrued expenses and deferred income 210 261 - -
Total liabilities 61,941 46,775 260 89 1 74
Off balance' 242,058 203,052 4,123 5,662 - -
*Including nominal values on derivatives.
Group 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 162 128 3 3 - -
Net fee and commission income -477 -649 1 2 1 1
Net result from items at fair value -1,237 24 -102 9 - -
Other operating income 76 9 0 - - -
Total operating expenses -194 -157 0 -1 - -
Profit before loan losses -1,670 -645 -98 13 1 1
Parent company
Group undertakings Associated undertakings ~ Other related parties
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets
Loans 5,748 5,775 121 143 - -
Interest-bearing securities - - - - - -
Financial instruments pledged as collateral - - - - - -
Derivatives 0 - 4 9 - -
Investments in associated undertakings - - 28 34 -
Investments in group undertakings 308 376 - - - -
Other assets 0 4 - - - -
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 8 4 - -
Total assets 6,064 6,159 153 186 - -
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Note 44 Related-party transactions, cont.

Parent company
Group undertakings ~ Associated undertakings ~ Other related parties

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Liabilities
Deposits 4 9 1 1 1 74
Debt securities in issue - - - - - -
Derivatives - - 0 - - -
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - -
Other liabilities 0 0 - - - -
Accrued expenses and deferred income - 0 - - - -
Total liabilities 4 9 1 1 1 74
Off balance* 716 651 141 174 - -
*Including nominal values on derivatives.
Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 27 35 3 2 - -
Net fee and commission income 61 53 0 1 1 1
Net result from items at fair value 0 - -2 2 - -
Other operating income 4 6 - - - -
Total operating expenses -4 -28 - - - -
Profit before loan losses 88 66 1 5 1 1

The terms "group undertakings" and "associated imkiags" refer to group undertakings and assodiatelertakings of the Nordea Bank
Finland Group. In addition to the parent compaguffés stated above, the parent company's asskidddaeceivables, interest-bearing
securities, derivatives and other assets from dtloedea group undertakings in the amount of EUR2&n (36,579), liabilities in the amount
of EUR 61,625m (46,588), profit before loan lossethe amount of EUR -1,657m (-641) and off-balasiceet commitments in the amount of
EUR 242,058m (203,052). Off balance sheet trarmaetivith Nordea group associated undertakings atedua EUR 3,983m (5,488) and
corresponding balance sheet values of derivatiers ®UR 214m (132) in assets and EUR 154m (34aliilities.

Compensations and loans and receivables to Key maggment personnel
Compensations and loans to Key management persarespecified in Note 8.

Note 45 Credit risk disclosure

Credit risk management and credit risk analysdescribed in the Risk, Liquidity and Capital mamagat section of the Board of Directors”
Report. Additional information on credit risk isaldisclosed in the Capital and Risk managemenoiRépillar [11) 2014, which is available on
www.nordea.com.

Group

31 Dec 31 Dec
Exposure types, EURm 2014 2013
On-balance sheet items 146,714 153,299
Off-balance sheet items 10,262 15,301
Securities financing 4,063 1,740
Derivatives 31,563 18,698
Exposure At Default (EAD) 192,603 189,038

Tables presented in this note, containing exposueepresented as Exposure At Default (EAD). EAhésexposure after applying credit
conversion factors (CCF).
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Note 45 Credit risk disclosure, cont.

Link between credit risk exposure and the balancereet
This section discloses the link between the loatf@m as defined by accounting standards and supoas defined in Capital Requirements
Regulation (CRR). The main differences are outlimettis section to illustrate the link between thiéerent reporting methods.

Original exposure is the exposure before taking &mcount substitution effects stemming from cradi mitigation, credit conversion factors
(CCFs) for off-balance sheet exposure and allowandthin the standardised approach. In this nateidver, exposure is defined as exposure
at default (EAD) for IRB exposure and exposure gdhr standardised exposure unless otherwise statadcordance with the CRR, credit
risk exposure presented in this note, is divided/ben exposure classes where each exposure cliisglied into exposure types as follows:

. On-balance sheet items

. Off-balance sheet items (e.g. guarantees and isegtiamounts of credit facilities)

. Securities financing (e.g. reverse repurchase agrets and securities lending)

. Derivatives

Items presented in other parts of the Annual Regrertivided as follows (in accordance with theoaating standards):

. On-balance sheet items (e.g. loans to central bamtteredit institutions, loans to the public, meeerepurchase agreements, positive fair
value for derivatives and interest-bearing seasijti

. Off-balance sheet items (e.g. guarantees and isedtilines of credit)

The table below shows the link between the CRRitrisit exposure and items presented in the AnRegilort.

On-balance sheet items

The following items have been excluded from thebed sheet, when calculating on-balance exposwaecordance with the CRR:

. Market risk related items in the trading book, sasltertain interest-bearing securities and pledggtiments.

. Repos, derivatives and securities lending. Theseséactions are either included in the calculatiomarket risk in the trading book or
reported as separate exposure types (derivativescarities financing).

. Other, mainly allowances and intangible assets.

Off-balance sheet items

The following off-balance sheet items specifiedhia Annual Report are excluded when off-balancesuge is calculated in accordance with
the CRR:

. “Assets pledged as security for own liabilitiestdi®ther assets pledged” (apart from leasing). €hemnsactions are reported as

] securities financing (i.e. a separate exposure type

. Derivatives

Derivatives and securities financing

Derivatives can be both on-balance sheet (i.etipesair value) and off-balance (i.e. nominal amts) in accordance with accounting
standards. However, in the CRR, the derivativessaudrities financing are reported as separatesexpdypes. Also, repurchase agreements
and securities lending/borrowing transactions aréhe balance sheet calculated based on noming Mal the CRR calculations these
exposure types are determined net of the collateral

On-balance sheet items

Group
Repos,
derivatives,
Original Items related securities
31 Dec 2014, EURm exposure to market risk lending Other Balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 28,846 28,846
Loans to central banks and credit institutions 29,5 5,768 0 35,352
Loans to the public 69,616 44,777 -645 113,748
Interest-bearing securities and pledged instruments 17,520 28,180 45,701
Derivatives 105,254 105,254
Intangible assets 47 47
Other assets and prepaid expenses 1,190 14,887 91 ,082 1 17,250
Total assets 146,757 43,068 155,890 483 346,198
Exposure at defaul? 146,750

! Derivatives are included in banking and trading books, but not at book values. Counterparty risk in trading derivatives are included in the credit risk.
2 The on-balance exposure have a CCF of 100% but can still have a lower EAD due to provisions in the standardised approach, that are deducted from the original exposure
when calculating EAD.
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Note 45 Credit risk disclosure, cont.

On-balance sheet items

Group
Repos,
derivatives,
Original Items related securities
31 Dec 2013, EURm exposure to market risk lending Other Balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 30,904 30,904
Loans to central banks and credit institutions 28,6 7,131 0 35,767
Loans to the public 74,422 40,176 -820 113,779
Interest-bearing securities and pledged instruments 17,912 26,073 43,985
Derivatives 70,234 70,234
Intangible assets 100 100
Other assets and prepaid expenses 1,551 7,271 65 104 1, 9,991
Total assets 153,425 33,344 117,607 384 304,761
* Derivatives are included in banking and trading books, but not at book values. Counterparty risk in trading derivatives is included in the credit risk.
Off-balance sheet items
Group
Credit risk in
31 Dec 2014, EURm Basel Ill calculation
Contingent liabilities 14,906
Commitments 16,790
Total 31,696
Credit risk in Items not Average  Exposure at
Basel Ill included in Original conversion default
31 Dec 2014, EURm calculation accounts exposure factor EAD
Credit facilities and Checking accounts 15,922 é,03 19,958 37% 7,419
Loan commitments 857 287 1,144 45% 520
Guarantees 13,747 13,747 15% 2,017
Other 1,171 1,171 26% 306
Total 31,696 4,323 36,019 10,262
Credit risk in Basel Il
31 Dec 2013, EURm calculation
Contingent liabilities 15,836
Commitments 16,603
Total 32,439
Credit risk in Items not Average  Exposure at
Basel Il included in Original conversion default
31 Dec 2013, EURm calculation accounts exposure factor EAD
Credit facilities and Checking accounts 13,435 é,67 18,111 31% 5,633
Loan commitments 2,767 259 3,026 26% 793
Guarantees 14,760 14,760 57% 8,415
Other 1,476 1,476 31% 459
Total 32,439 4,935 37,374 15,301
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Note 45 Credit risk disclosure, cont.

Exposure split by industry group

In the table below, the total exposure is splitiustry. The industry breakdown mainly follows Bkbal Industries Classification Standard
(GICS) and is based on NACE codes (i.e. statistilgasification codes of economic activities in Eneopean community). The banks is the

largest sector which together with other public arghnisations are the only industries that acctamiore than 7% of the total exposure of
EUR 193bn. The largest nominal and relative inaeeas found within the other financial companiedystry while the highest nominal and
relative decrease was found within industrial apgibods industry.

Group

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013
Banks 76,007 74,069
Construction and engineering 1,265 2,193
Consumer durables (cars, appliances, etc.) 1,504 1,585
Consumer staples (food, agriculture etc.) 2,660 2,813
Energy (oil, gas, etc.) 1,352 1,450
Health care and pharmaceuticals 914 938
Industrial capital goods 2,151 3,382
Industrial commercial services 3,574 4,043
IT software, hardware and services 769 765
Media and leisure 862 1,123
Metals and mining materials 270 308
Paper and forest materials 1,148 1,572
Real estate management and investment 13,150 12,512
Retail trade 3,757 4,060
Shipping and offshore 5,268 5,188
Telecommunication equipment 161 404
Telecommunication operators 613 715
Transportation 1,914 2,401
Utilities (distribution and production) 3,993 4,502
Other financial companies 12,001 8,497
Other materials (chemical, building materials etc) 2,652 3,337
Other, public and organisations 56,617 53,180
Total exposure 192,603 189,038

Collateral distribution

The table below presents the distribution of celialt used in the capital adequacy calculation m®cEhe table shows real estate to constitute a
major share of eligible collateral items in relatierms. The real estate collateral category savatigest relative decrease during the year,
while the share of other physical collaterals inserl. Real estate is commonly used as collateratédit risk mitigation purposes, and the
majority of real estate collaterals are found inl&nd. Other physical collateral consist mainhsbips and vehicles.

Group

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2013
Financial Collateral 2% 2%
Receivables 2% 2%
Residential Real Estate 73% 82%
Commercial Real Estate 10% 8%
Other Physical Collateral 13% 7%
Total 100% 100%
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Note 45 Credit risk disclosure, cont.

Collaterised Debt Obligations (CDO) - Exposuré

Nordea acts as an intermediary in the credit dévies.market, especially in Nordic names. Nordea akes credit derivatives to hedge
positions in corporate bonds and syntehetic CDOseMNordea sells protection in a CDO transacttoraiiries the risk of losses in the
reference portfolio if a credit event occurs. WiNardea buys protection in a CDO transaction, asgds in the reference portfolio triggered by
a credit event are carried by the seller of pratect

Credit derivatives transactions create counterpa#sglit risk in similar manner to other derivativensactions. Counterparties in these
transactions are typically subject to a financ@lateral agreement, where the exposure is cowdaéd by collateral placements. CDO
valuations are subject to fair value adjustmentsrfodel risk. These fair value adjustments aregeised in the income statement.

Group and parent company 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Bought Sold Bought Sold
Nominals, EURm protection protection protection protection
CDOs, gross 1,204 1,691 1,266 1,587
Hedged exposures 1,005 1,004 965 966
CDOs, net 199 687 302 621
- of which Equity 20 67 57 102
- of which Mezzanine 98 370 108 306
- of which Senior 81 250 136 213

* First-to-Default swaps are not classified as CDOs and are therefore not included in the table. Net bought protection amounts to EUR 47m (47) and net sold protection to EUR
46m (18). Both bought and sold protection are, to the predominant part, investment grade.

2 Net exposure disregards exposure where tranches are completely identical in terms of reference pool attachment, detachment, maturity and currency.
% Of which investment grade EUR 90m (184) and sub investment grade EUR 109m (115).
4 Of which investment grade EUR 423m (411) and sub investment grade EUR 264m (273) and not rated EUR Om (0).

Assets taken over for protection of claims Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current assets, carrying amount:
Land and buildings 108 108
Shares and other participations 2 2
Other assets 1 3 1 0
Total 3 111 3 108

*In accordance with Nordea’s policy for taking over assets for protection of claims, which is in compliance with the local Banking Business Acts, wherever Nordea is located.
Assets, used as collateral for the loan, are generally taken over when the customer is not able to fulfil its obligations to Nordea.

Past due loans, excl. impaired loans

The table below shows past due loans not impajtiby corporate and household customers. Pastaduns to corporate customers that are
not considered impaired were at end of 2014 EUR2@8wn from EUR 251m one year ago. Past due laamtsousehold customers decreased
to EUR 280m (438) mainly due to transfer of Baltianches to Nordea Bank AB (publ).

Group Parent company
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Corporate Household Corporate Household Corporate Household Corporate Household
EURmM customers customers customers customers customers customers customers customers
6-30 days 80 147 92 215 27 125 34 194
31-60 days 64 91 70 144 27 80 37 101
61-90 days 50 42 30 71 18 40 18 51
>90 days 28 0 58 8 20 0 53 8
Total 223 280 251 438 92 244 142 354
Past due not impaired loans
divided by loans to the public
after allowances, % 0.29 0.77 0.34 1.15 0.13 0.73 0.20 1.00
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Note 45 Credit risk disclosure, cont.

Loans to corporate customers, by size of loan
The distribution of loans to corporate by sizeaafrls, seen in the table below, shows a high dedmigersification where approximately 81%
of the corporate volume represents loans up to BQIR per customer.

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EURM 2014 % 2013 % 2014 % 2013 %
0-10 42,561 55.8 41,146 54.9 40,213 55.8 39,041 9 54,
10-50 19,552 25.6 19,140 25.6 18,473 25.6 18,161 .6 25
50-100 5,673 7.4 5,199 6.9 5,360 7.4 4,933 6.9
100-250 7,433 9.8 5,939 7.9 7,023 9.8 5,635 7.9
250-500 1,018 1.3 3,471 4.6 962 1.3 3,293 4.6
500- 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Total 76,238 100.0 74,895 100.0 72,031 100.0 71,064 100.0

Interest-bearing securities
For more information about credit risk relatedrtterest-bearing securities, see Note 14 wheredirging amount of interest-bearing securities
is split on different types of counterparties.

Note 46 Interests in structured entities

Structured entities are entities designed so thitg or similar rights are not the dominant fadtodeciding who controls the entity. It
normally has restricted activities with a narrovd avell defined objective. If Nordea controls suchetity, it is consolidated.

Unconsolidated structured entities

For structured entities in which Nordea has arré@stebut do not control it, disclosures are progideo be considered to have an interest in such
an entity, Nordea must be exposed to variabilitsetarns on the investment in the structured enfityestment funds are the only interest in
unconsolidated structured entities Nordea currdmilgs. Variability in returns is assessed baselath fees received and revaluation of
holdings in the funds.

There are several different products where Nordeesis in investment funds:
. on behalf of depositors where the return is basednvestment

. to hedge exposures in structured products issuegistomers.

. illiquid investments in private equity and credihfls

As Nordea is exposed to variability in returns ayrass basis, information about these funds ardadied although the net exposure is
considerably less.

Investment funds acquired to hedge exposuresunotstied products reduce the exposures and to thatehedges are effective, Nordea is not
exposed to changes in value. The maximum lossesetfunds is estimated to EUR 6m, net of hedges.

Nordeas interests in unconsolidated structuredientind any related liability are disclosed intéiade below:

Group Parent company

31 Dec 31 Dec
EURmM 2014 2014
Assets, carrying amount
Loans to credit institutions - -
Shares 701 701
Total assets 701 701
Liabilities
Deposits and borrowings from the public - -
Liabilities to policy holders - -
Derivatives 105 105
Total liabilities 105 105

Off balance, nominal amount
Loan commitments - -

Nordea have not sponsored any unconsolidated stagcentity in which Nordea do not currently hawdrgerest.
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Note 47 Mergers, acquisitions, disposals and disso

lutions

Subsidiaries acquired during 2014

Line of business

Total assets
EURM

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Other subsidiaries established during 2014

Number of companies

Total assets
EURmM

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Subsidiaries sold during 2014

Line of business

Total assets
EURmM

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Other subsidiaries sold during 2014

Number of companies

Total assets
EURmM

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Subsidiaries merged during 2014

10

Line of business

271

Total assets
EURmM

-9

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Subsidiaries dissolved during 2014

Number of companies

Total assets
EURM

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Associated undertakings dissolved during 2014

Line of business

Total assets
EURmM

Profit/loss for the year as
included in the Bank Group

Note 48 Nordea shares

Nordea Bank Finland Plc does not possess own stiameisg the year Nordea Bank Finland has bougtitsanid shares in its parent company
Nordea Bank AB (publ) as part of its normal tradamgl marketmaking activities. The trades are sigekif the table enclosed. The increased

volumes are explained by higher trading activityNiBF.

Acquisitions Month Quantity Average acq.price Amount, EUR
January 784,416 10.08 7,906,710.77
February 2,641,463 9.99 26,393,391.61
March 2,007,082 10.20 20,468,456.74
April 2,772,290 10.22 28,328,988.16
May 1,521,412 10.42 15,849,726.88
June 1,562,640 10.64 16,619,459.20
July 3,487,072 10.26 35,777,712.41
August 1,992,066 9.92 19,751,797.59
September 2,272,098 10.00 22,731,408.82
October 8,391,659 9.68 81,203,136.49
November 2,995,501 10.01 29,989,755.07
December 4,111,184 9.46 38,883,223.31
34,538,883 343,903,767.06
Sales Month Quantity Average price Amount, EUR
January -705,300 10.07 -7,099,132.22
February -2,699,582 10.00 -26,994,709.05
March -2,059,931 10.19 -20,989,470.17
April -2,486,740 10.24 -25,471,352.50
May -1,688,116 10.44 -17,626,848.24
June -2,150,822 10.60 -22,803,794.83
July -4,903,803 10.26 -50,311,913.90
August -2,068,983 9.90 -20,491,974.88
September -2,267,013 9.99 -22,649,521.97
October -2,022,725 9.89 -19,999,896.78
November -3,540,465 10.02 -35,460,869.92
December -3,148,867 9.44 -29,730,329.59
-29,742,347 -299,629,814.05

The quota value of the Nordea Bank AB (publ) shseUR 1.00. The trades had an insignificant eféecthe shareholding and voting-power
in Nordea Bank AB (publ). At year-end 2014 NBF od828,977 shares of the parent company.

Nordea Bank Finland Plc - Annual Report 2014

129



Note 49 Transferred operations

Transferred Baltic operations

Group Parent company
EURM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 35 138 35 137
Net fee and commission income 0 1 0 1
Net result from items at fair value -10 -4 0 -1
Other operating income 0 1 1
Total operating income 25 136 35 138
Staff costs -9 -36 -9 -36
Other expenses -7 -37 -7 -37
Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets -1 -3 -1 -3
Total operating expenses -17 -76 -17 -76
Profit before loan losses 8 60 18 62
Net loan losses -38 -26 -38 -26
Impairment of securities held as non-financial &sse - - -17 -
Operating profit -30 34 -37 36
Income tax expense 1 -8 1 -8
Net profit for the period -29 26 -36 28
International operations to be transferred

Group Parent company
EURmM 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net interest income 81 73 81 73
Net fee and commission income 48 39 48 39
Net result from items at fair value 3 3 3 3
Other operating income 0 0 0 0
Total operating income 132 115 132 115
Staff costs -21 -15 -21 -15
Other expenses -10 -10 -10 -10
Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets -1 -1 -1 -1
Total operating expenses -32 -26 -32 -26
Profit before loan losses 100 89 100 89
Net loan losses -10 -3 -10 -3
Operating profit 90 86 90 86
Income tax expense -4 -6 -4 -6
Net profit for the period 86 80 86 80
* The operations of London and Frankfurt branches were sold on 1 January 2015.
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The proposal of the Board of Directors to the Annua | General Meeting

The parent company'’s distributable funds on 31 Déssr 2014 were EUR 6,113,829,734.71, of which tloditp
for the year was EUR 821,220,326.24. The Boardioddiors proposes that

1. adividend of EUR 450,000,000.00 be paid
2. whereafter the distributable funds will be EUR B&8?9,734.71.

Signatures of the Directors’ report and of the Ruial Statements:

Helsinki, 27 February 2015

Torsten Hagen Jgrgensen Casper von Koskull

Carl-Johan Granvik Gunn Weersted

Ari Kaperi
President

Our auditors’ report has been issued today.
Helsinki, 27 February 2015

KPMG OY AB

Marcus Toétterman
Authorised Public Accountant
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Auditors’ report

This document is an English translation of the Finnish auditor's report. Only the Finnish version of the report is legally binding.

To the Annual General Meeting of Nordea Bank Finland Plc

We have audited the accounting records, the fimdstatements, the report of the Board of Dire¢tansl the
administration of Nordea Bank Finland Plc for tleayended on 31 December 2014. The financial stattsm
comprise both the consolidated and the parent coypatatement of financial position, income stagemm
statement of comprehensive income, statement ofgdsain equity and statement of cash flows, andsniat the
financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and therdging Director

The Board of Directors and the Managing Directer r@sponsible for the preparation of financialestagnts that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Inggional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) agptatbby the
EU, as well as for the preparation of financiatestaents and the report of the Board of Directoas tfive a true
and fair view in accordance with the laws and ratiohs governing the preparation of the finandiatesnents and
the report of the Board of Directors in Finland €TBoard of Directors is responsible for the appiedpr
arrangement of the control of the company’s accoant finances, and the Managing Director shalts&ehat
the accounts of the company are in compliance thigHaw and that its financial affairs have beearged in a
reliable manner.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion onfthancial statements, on the consolidated finarst@iements and
on the report of the Board of Directors based anamdlit. The Auditing Act requires that we complithwthe
requirements of professional ethics. We conductechadit in accordance with good auditing practicEinland.
Good auditing practice requires that we plan antbpm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatioether the
financial statements and the report of the Boardigdctors are free from material misstatement, @hdther the
members of the Board of Directors of the parentgamy and the Managing Director are guilty of anact
negligence which may result in liability in damagewards the company or have violated the Finnisddi©
Institutions Act, the Limited Liability CompaniescAor the articles of association of the company.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaiditevidence about the amounts and disclosurtieein
financial statements and the report of the Boarmitéctors. The procedures selected depend onuithiéoa's
judgment, including the assessment of the riskeaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud omrehnomaking
those risk assessments, the auditor considersaiteontrol relevant to the entity’s preparatiorfin&ncial
statements and report of the Board of Directorsdghee a true and fair view in order to design apdocedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but notiferpurpose of expressing an opinion on the effen#ésgs of the
company’s internal control. An audit also incluéesluating the appropriateness of accounting siosed and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates manaibggement, as well as evaluating the overall ptaen of
the financial statements and the report of the 8a&Directors.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion,

» both the consolidated and the parent company’sifilahstatements give a true and fair view of tlieancial
position, financial performance, and cash flowadaordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU

« the financial statements and the report of the 8o&Directors give a true and fair view of botle th
consolidated and the parent company’s financidbperance and financial position in accordance it
laws and regulations governing the preparatiomefiinancial statements and the report of the Boérd
Directors in Finland

» the information in the report of the Board of Di@s is consistent with the information in the fical
statements.
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Other opinions

We support the adoption of the financial statemertie proposal by the Board of Directors regardivgtreatment
of distributable funds is in compliance with therlified Liability Companies Act. We support that Beard of
Directors of the parent company and the Managirrgddor be discharged from liability for the finaalcperiod
audited by us.

Helsinki 27 February 2015

KPMG OY AB

Marcus To6tterman
Authorized Public Accountant in Finland
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Management and auditors

Management
The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Rimprises four members.

The President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc is Ari &a&@and Topi Manner acts as his deputy.

Board of Directors

Carl-Johan Granvik Torsten Hagen Jgrgensen

Born 1949. Member since 2012. Born 1965. Member since 2013.

Former positions in Nordea: President of Nordea Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Group
Bank Finland Plc, Head of Group Risk Corporate Centre

Management, Chief Risk Officer and Country
Senior Executive in Finland.

Casper von Koskull Gunn Weersted
Born 1960. Member since 2010. Born 1955. Member since 2010
Head of Wholesale Banking Chief Executive Officer in Nordea Bank Norge ASA,

Head of Wealth Management and Country Senior
Executive in Norway

Auditors

The Nomination Committee of Nordea Bank AB (pubill mropose to the Annual General Meeting 2015 the
election of a new auditor according to rules omtion of auditors. The corresponding AGM decisibiNordea
Bank Finland Plc will be conditional on the outcoofehis election.

The Annual General Meeting of Nordea Bank Finlataddkects the company’s auditors for a period of gear at
a time. The auditor must be an audit firm autharisg the Finnish Chamber of Commerce.

The current audit firm:

KPMG Oy Ab

Auditor with main responsibility
Marcus Toétterman
Authorised Public Accountant
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Corporate Governance Report 2014

Application by Nordea Bank Finland Plc

On Internal Governance in Nordea Bank Finland Plc

General Meeting
Nordea Bank Finland Plc (“Bank”) is the wholly-owhsubsidiary of Nordea Bank AB (publ). The Gendflekting is
the highest decision-making body.

The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Plalsbe responsible for the administration of ttenB and the
appropriate organisation of its operations, anddpresenting the Bank.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Riagists at the moment of four members, one of wisiem
external board member. According to the Article@\e$ociation, the Board of Directors shall conefstot less than
four and not more than seven members. The Boadrettors shall appoint the Chairman and the Deg@itgirman of
the Board. The term of office of the members ofBloard of Directors shall continue until furthertice. The
retirement age for members of the Board of Direcbrall be 70.

The Board of Directors shall, in the work schedap@roved by it, confirm the authorisation to actdad on behalf of
the Bank and the distribution between the membktiseoBoard of Directors and the President.

According to the work schedule, the Board of Dioestis responsible for the organisation and adinatisn of the
Bank and its business.

The Board shall manage the Bank’s affairs with eigertise and care in accordance with legislatios Articles of
Association, the present work schedule and obsgi@oup management’s decisions and instructions.

The Board shall ensure that it has requisite kndgéeof the Bank’s affairs in accordance with legfisih and the
Articles of Association.

The Board shall ensure that it has requisite kndgéeof the Bank’s position, business developmedtraks as well as
other circumstances of material significance toBhek’s operations.

The Bank’s operations are fully integrated into adea Group.

It is particularly incumbent upon the Board of Diters to:

a. establish the Bank’s and the banking Group’sallverganisation,

b. ensure that the Bank’s organisation with resfmeaccounting, management of funds and the Bdimésicial
circumstances generally includes satisfactory cistr

C. approve the risk strategy and other strategidsgas well as see to it that the surveillancéefgoals and
strategy is reliable

d. appoint and discharge the Bank’s President aply President and exercise supervision to eribatehe
Bank’s President fulfils his or her obligations,

e. where needed, in accordance with the NordeapGrmdit instructions, prepare supplementary credit

instructions for issuing credit at Nordea Bank &ird Plc,

determine matters relating to the funding ogers,

resolve on and submit annual reports and integjports for the Bank,

regularly monitor and assess the Bank’s andbdéim group’s financial situation and risks,
convene and prepare items for the Annual Gerdeadting.

The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Pds four Board committees: risk committee, audit cuttee,
remuneration committee and nomination committeehEEammittee has tasks set out to it in the AcCoadit
Institutions.

The Board has approved a policy for the Bank ireotd advance diversity in the composition of tfemBl. The gender

balance shall be promoted when appointing membdtedoard of Directors. The Bank shall strive égual gender
distribution between the genders and has workee @len for meeting this target.
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President, Deputy President and Management Group
Nordea Bank Finland Plc has a President and a Répesident.

The President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc has astad a Management Group to assist and supporinhiuffilling
his duties derived from his role as responsiblenfanaging the day-to-day operations of the Banlk. Mlanagement
Group consists of Nordea Bank Finland Plc’s PregideFO, CRO, Board Secretary, Head of Bankingdfidland
Head of CIB Finland.

Chief Risk Officer

Nordea Bank Finland has a Chief Risk Officer (CRTje CRO of Nordea Bank Finland is subordinatetthéo
President of Nordea Bank Finland Plc. The corredpmnCRO function has been established to sub-graup
Denmark, Finland and Norway. The CRO forms an irglegart of the Group Risk Management function ordea.

The CRO is an independent second line of defes&amanagement function within Nordea Bank Finlamdup.
The CRO shall provide a complete view of whole mofrisks in Nordea Bank Finland Group to thevatd
governing bodies, ensure coordination of risk managnt activities and adequate risk managementpsigt-the legal
entity.

Compliance

According to the Nordea Operational Risk Policy #malInstructions for the Nordea Compliance Fum;tidroup
Compliance as a unit organisationally placed utideiCEQO in Nordea is responsible for developing maghtaining
the framework for managing compliance risks. Thisvoek of Compliance Officers (COs) with reportirigds within
the Compliance function support the first line efehce management in managing compliance risk emdding the
Group Compliance Officer with independent repoFtsese reports provide input to the Group ComplidDffeeer’s
semi-annual compliance report to the Chief Exeeu@fficer, the Board of Directors of Nordea Bank Ai&ibl) and its
subsidiaries including Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

Insider Administration

Nordea Group and Nordea Bank Finland Plc have ¢ora@ance with laws and regulations in the rolessfier and
broker established insider registers and adoptdenguidelines applicable to the whole bank. Adow to the
guidelines members of the Board of Directors, ttesiélent and the Deputy President, external awgdé#ond deputy
external auditors as well as executive managenrghbther relevant persons following separate datiand
notification procedures are restricted from tradim@jlordea shares and related instruments duringr gteriod than
two weeks following publication of the Group’s irita reports. Regarding other financial instrumehtsabove
mentioned top management and other relevant persapsiot engage in short time trading where the tietween
acquisition of ownership of certain securities, #melintended or actual disposal or execution efsthcurities is shorter
than one month (“the one-month rule”). Nordea BRitHand Plc reports on governance and follow uputés
regarding public insider registers and tradingmacial instruments to the Finnish FSA on an ahbaais.

Corporate Governance Report

Nordea Bank Finland Plc submits this report assandr of bonds. This report has been preparednioiép
recommendation 54 in the Finnish Corporate Govera&ode and the report is submitted as a sepaadet from the
Annual Report 2014.

Nordea Bank Finland PlIc is a wholly-owned subsigiarNordea Bank AB (publ), the listed parent compaf the
whole Nordea Group. The Nordea Group is referreabttNordea”. A description of corporate governaimcBordea
during the most recent financial year is includethie 2014 Annual Report of Nordea Bank AB (puhl) the
operations of Nordea Bank Finland Plc are integraito the operations of the Nordea Group. Nordesadstablished
the corporate governance framework at group lewelthe framework is reviewed on a continuous badsiermation
on corporate governance in Nordea and this reperawaailable omvww.nordea.comNordea Bank Finland Plc has
increased governance arrangements on legal eetiy dluring 2014 by establishment of the four Baamhmittees
and the Management Group. Nordea Bank Finland #aqjiven a description on governance arrangements i
accordance with the Act on Credit Institutions &adgle on www.nordea.fi.

Strong corporate governance is about companiesgaiear and systematic decision-making procesises providing
clarity about responsibilities, avoiding conflictsinterest and ensuring satisfactory internal mantisk management
and transparency. Commitment to Nordea’s missi@hvigion requires the integration of sound corppgdvernance
practices into regular business activities to attaas far as possible — a company that is bothgegkerned and well
managed.
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Nordea follows generally adopted principles of aogtie governance including the rules and principtdorth in the
Swedish Code of Corporate Governance. Althouglttides differ in details between the countries, teyall based
on the general international development and comNundic approach within this field and thus shofuadamental
resemblance to one another.

The Board of Directors and the Board Audit Comnaitté Nordea Bank Finland Plc have reviewed thispGmate
Governance Report. This Corporate Governance Repsdribes the main features of the internal coatrd risk
management systems regarding the financial regpptiacess in Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

Report on the key aspects of the systems for inteshcontrol and risk management regarding financialreports

for the Financial Year 2014

Nordea Bank Finland Plc belongs to the Nordea Gemgpthe internal control and risk management sysie relation
to the financial reporting process are organisédaatiea level. Financial reporting processes dhg ifutegrated within
Nordea. The Board of Directors of Nordea Bank FidI&Ilc monitors financial and risk reporting at tkes Bank
Finland PIc level and has dealt with the risk répon Nordea Bank Finland Plc level. Nordea Bamitafid Plc
complies with the Group directives and supportimgjructions to the extent applicable.

Internal Control Process

The Internal Control Process is carried out byBbard of Directors, management and other staffatiia and is
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatdirarchievement of objective fulfilment in termseffiectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of findatand non-financial reporting, compliance withtesxal and internal
regulations, safeguarding of assets as well agmrff management of risks in the operatiohise internal control
process is based on five main components: Contreir@hment, Risk Assessment, Control Activitiedphmation &
Communication and Monitoring.

The framework for the Internal Control Process dimereate the necessary fundamentals for thesemtianisation to
contribute to the effectiveness and the high qualitinternal control through, for instance, cleafinitions,
assignments of roles and responsibilities and comtmols and procedures.

Roles and responsibilities with respect to intengmaitrol and risk management are divided into ttiress of defence.
In the first line of defence, the business orgditiseand Group Functions are responsible for cotidgavithin risk
exposure limits and in accordance with the decideginal control and risk management frameworkthessecond line
of defence, the centralised risk group functiomsrasponsible for providing the internal controdl aisk management
framework. Group Internal Audit performs audits gmdvides assurance to stakeholders on governeske,
management and internal controls, which is theltlime of defence.

The systems for internal control and risk managerm&financial reporting are designed to providasenable
assurance about the reliability of financial repmytand the preparation of financial statementsefdernal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; applicable laws and regulations, and oteguirements for
listed companies and issuers of bonds. The inteoratol and risk management activities are inafliieNordea’s
planning and resource allocation processes. Inteomrol and risk management of financial repatin Nordea can
be described in accordance with the original CO&éwork as follows below.

Control Environment
The control environment constitutes the basis fordda’s internal control and contains the culture @alues
established by the Board of Directors and Executemagement of Nordea Bank AB (publ).

A clear and transparent organisational structuoé imiportance for the control environment. Nordelasiness
structure aims to support the overall strategyh witong business momentum and increased requitsrormcapital
and liquidity. The business and the organisati@enuender continuous development.

The key principle of risk management at Nordehésthree lines of defence, with the first line lpeihe business
organisation and the Group Functions, the secoreddeing the centralised risk group functions wiiefine a
common set of standards and the third line beiegrternal audit function. The Accounting Key Cah{fAKC)
function implements Nordea Group-wide system obaating key controls. This is done to ensure tioatrols
essential for the financial reporting are continslgudentified, monitored and assessed in the Group
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Risk Assessment

The Board of Directors has the ultimate resporigtfibr limiting and monitoring the Nordea Groupisk exposure
and risk management is considered to be an intpgrabf running the business. The main respoiitsithdr
performing risk assessments regarding financiabntéqg risks lies with the business organisatiogrférming risk
assessments close to the business increases #ikilggof identifying the most relevant risks. émder to govern the
quality, central functions stipulate in governimyzdments when and how these assessments are ¢éofoemed.
Examples of risk assessments, performed at leasigdly, are Quality and Risk Analysis for changed Risk and
Control Self Assessments at divisional levels.

Control Activities

Examples of control activities in Nordea:

Entity Wide Controls

Group Accounting Manual, Financial Control
Principles, Group Valuation Committee,
numerous analyses in Management
Reporting

Entity
Wide

Transaction Level Controls
Controls

Reconciliations, approvals, financial
controlling analysis, authorisation, automated
controls and intra Group eliminations

Transaction Level Controls

IT General Controls

Controls over access, systems development
and deployment, data back-up & recovery
$—————————— and logical and physical security critical to
the integrity of the financial reporting
process

IT General Controls

The heads of the respective units are primarilgaasible for managing the risks, associated wighuthits’ operations
and financial reporting processes. This resporititid primarily supported by the Group AccountiMgnual (GAM),
the Financial Control Principles and various goirgrbodies, such as the Group Valuation Commifiée. GAM
includes a standard reporting package used bytitles to ensure consistent use of Nordea’s golesiand
coordinated financial reporting. Fundamental indé¢icontrol principles at Nordea are the segregadfaituties and the
four-eyes principle when approving, for instancansactions and authorisations.

The quality assurance vested in the managementtiegpprocess, where a detailed analysis of theniimal outcome is
performed, constitutes one of the most importantrod mechanisms associated with the reportinggsscThe
reconciliations constitute another set of importaoritrols in which Nordea works continuously totifier strengthen
the quality.

Information & Communication

Group Functions are responsible for ensuring ti&aGroup Accounting Manual and the Financial CdriRranciples
are up-to-date and that changes are communicatbdhe responsible units. These governing docunaetbroken
down into instructions and standard operating ptaces in the responsible units. On an annual bastgunting
specialists from Group Finance provide sessionadopuntants and controllers in order to informudlexisting and
updated rules and regulations with an impact ordiNar

Matters affecting the fulfilment of financial repimg objectives are communicated with externalipartwith Nordea
actively participating in relevant national forumssich as forums established by the Financial SigmyvAuthorities,
central banks and associations for financial instihs.
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Monitoring

Nordea has established a process with the purgasesaring proper monitoring of the quality of tiveancial
reporting and the follow-up regarding possible cieficies. This interactive process aims to coMeC@iSO-
components in the Framework and is illustrated withdiagram below:

Monitoring

ﬁ

Risk

Control
Assesment

Environment

Monitoring

The Risk and Control Self-Assessment process iesludonitoring the quality of internal control imdincial reporting.
The assessment is presented in the annual Opetatind Compliance Risk Map, which is submitted toup
Executive Management, the Board Audit CommitteethedBoard Risk Committee of and the Board of Dex of
Nordea Bank AB (publ).

The Board of Directors, Group Internal Audit (Gland the Board Audit Committee of Nordea Bank ABhbjptave
an important role with regard to monitoring intdroantrol in financial reporting in the whole Noml&roup. Similarly
the Board of Directors and the Board Audit Comneitté Nordea Bank Finland Plc have an important vath regard
to monitoring internal control in financial reparg in Nordea Bank Finland Group.

Group Internal Audit is an independent function coissioned by the Board of Directors of Nordea BABk(publ).
The Board Audit Committee of Nordea Bank AB (publyesponsible for guidance and evaluation of Githiw the
Nordea Group and the Board Audit Committee of NarBank Finland Plc within the Nordea Bank Finland@.
GIA does not engage in consulting activities untbesBoard Audit Committee of Nordea Bank AB (putiljes it
special assignments. The purpose of GIA’s assuractbéty is to add value to the organisation bguaig the quality
of the governance, risk management, and contralgases as well as promoting continuous improvement.

The Board Audit Committee of Nordea Bank Finland Rdndles and the Board of Directors of Nordea Bénkand
Plc approves the Group Internal Audit Annual PlanNordea Group and inspects the Semi-annual Girdepnal
Audit Report on Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

The Board Audit Committee of Nordea Bank Finland &ko assists the Board of Directors of NordeakBéanland

Plc in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities bjor instance, monitoring the Nordea Bank Finl&@rdup’s financial
reporting process, and in relation thereto, theatiffeness of the internal control and risk managygraystems
established by the Board of Directors, the CEO@raup Executive Management (GEM) as well as ther@oa
Directors of Nordea Bank Finland Plc, including #ftectiveness of GIA. The Board Audit CommitigeNordea Bank
Finland Plc is further accountable for keepinglftsdormed as to the statutory audit of the anrarad consolidated
accounts and reviewing and monitoring the impatyiand independence of the external auditors,iaérticular the
provision of additional services to the Nordea B&iMand Group.

This Corporate Governance Report, including therepn the key aspects of the systems for interaatrol and risk
management regarding financial reports, has nat bmgewed by the external auditors and
it is not part of the formal financial statements.
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